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Corporate Profile
AEB/A

Lifestyle International Holdings Limited (the “Company” or “Lifestyle International”
together with its subsidiaries, collectively the “Group”) is a Hong Kong-based
retail operator that specializes in the operation of mid to upper-end department
stores through its two retailer brand names, SOGO and Jiuguang, in Hong

Kong and the PRC. The Group owns two SOGO stores in Hong Kong including
the flagship store in Causeway Bay ("SOGO CWB"), the largest and leading
department store in Hong Kong, as well as the Tsim Sha Tsui store (‘S0GO
TST"), which features a slightly different format that targets a younger group

of customers. Our Shanghai Jiuguang Store was established with a similar
business format to that of our flagship SOGO CWB, and has gained considerable
popularity and become one of the most preferred shopping destinations in
Shanghai since its grand opening in September 2004.

The success of the Group’s SOGO CWB and Shanghai Jiuguang Store over the
years has enabled the Group and its management team to develop concrete
retail brand building and management expertise, which is leveraged on to
further expand its business into other cities in China. Suzhou Jiuguang Store,
the Group’s second self-built store in China, currently the largest department
store in Suzhou City, was inaugurated on 16th January, 2009, while the Dalian
Jiuguang also launched its grand opening on 25th May, 2009. The Group also
has two new projects in the pipeline to fuelling the growth. The Group’s Tianjin
property will be operated as a shopping mall and its opening has been scheduled
to the fourth quarter 2010. As for the Shenyang project, the land will be
developed in two phases and inauguration of the store has been scheduled to
before end of 2012. Riding on the Group's solid foundation that has embadied an
impressive track record, these new projects will further fuel the Group’s growth
momentum in the future.
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Head Office and Principal Place of Business
20th Floor, East Paint Centre

555 Hennessy Road

Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

Principal Banker
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Auditors

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
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Sit, Fung, Kwong & Shum
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Cayman Islands Share Registrar and
Transfer Office (Registrar)

Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Cayman) Limited
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Grand Cayman KY1-1107
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Share Information

Place of listing: Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Stock code: 1212

Board lot: 500 shares

Financial year end: 31st December

Share price at 31st December, 2009: HK$14.50

Market capitalization at 31st December, 2009: HK$24,267 million

Website Address

www. lifestylehk.com.hk
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Financial Highlights
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Operating results
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Prafit before taxation B &A% A
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Gross Profit
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Sales Proceeds Growth in Hong Kong
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+3.5%

e Market leader
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e High Customer loyalty
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Sales Proceeds Growth in China
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+32.4%

e  Future growth driver
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e  Expansion in good progress
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2009 Milestones
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Suzhou
Jiuguang
commenced
operation
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Dalian
Jiuguang
commenced
operation
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Nov ®

Record daily
sales revenue
of a new high of
HK$53.9 million
at SOGO CWB
during Thankful
Week

[RRHB I8 T E
BHERT=
53,900,000/ 7T




Managing Director’s Message

F 508248 %

Lau Luen-hung, Thomas %58
Managing Director Z FE44451E

The year 2009 was a year of enormous challenge as economies across the globe
continued to reel from the impact of the financial crisis. Yet the world did not, as
it was feared at the beginning of the crisis, slide into slump. Rather, it started
to see signs of recovery in the second half of the year, thanks to the joint efforts
from government of major economies to put in place timely and aggressive
monetary policies and fiscal stimulus packages. China, in particular, weathered
the economic storm relatively well and it emerged as a vital force driving

global economic recovery. Capitalising on the rebound in market sentiment and
consumer confidence while staying focused on leveraging its business strengths,
Lifestyle International managed to deliver a satisfactory set of financial results
for the year 2009, with its Hong Kong operations outperformed the market
average and the mainland businesses continuing to gain traction.

For the year ended 31st December, 2009, the Group recorded a 6.7% increase
in turnover from the previous year and a net profit of HK$1,142.5 million, an
increase of 23.2% over that of the previous year. The Board has recommended
payment of a final cash dividend of HK cents 17.0 per share. Together with the
interim dividend of HK cents 11.0 paid on during the year, total dividends for the
financial year 2009 amounted to HK cents 28.0.

In view of the slowing down in demand from major export markets, especially
in the beginning of the year, in addition to the expansionary monetary policies,
the Chinese government implemented various measures to boost domestic
consumption in order to drive the economic growth. With the gradual recovery
of market sentiment and the real economy in the second half of the year,
which were fuelled by an increase in infrastructure spending and fixed assets
investments, China recorded an impressive 8.7% growth in GDP in 2009 that
also led to some 17% growth in the retail sales.

As one of the world's major financial cities and being an open economy, Hong
Kong did not spare by the crisis and indeed experienced a negative growth in
GDP of 2.7% for the year, partly caused by a drop in inbound tourists during
most part of the second and third quarter of the year due to the fear of the
human swine influenza ("Swine Flu"). As the threat of Swine Flu started to abate
towards the end of the third quarter and together with an improvement in the
market sentiment, strong inflow of tourists started to fuel Hong Kong's retail
industry and economy again.
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Notwithstanding the challenging business environment and negative same store
sales growth saw in the first half of the year, our leadership position in Hong
Kong remains unrivalled and for the year under review, the Group's Hong Kong
operations recorded a 3.5% year-on-year growth in total sales revenue. As

the leading department store operator in Hong Kong, we maintained a sizeable
market share at around 2.2% of total retail sales and 21.9% of department
store sales in Hong Kong.

During the year, performance of the Group's flagship Shanghai Jiuguang store
was just as impressive, with sales revenue increased 11.1% that we believe
such growth rate outperformed the industry average in Shanghai. The two new
stores in China, namely the Suzhou Jiuguang and Dalian Jiuguang, inaugurated in
the first half of the year, both got off to a steady start. During the year, a host
of marketing and promotion strategies has been adopted to boost traffic for the
new stores, a move that was in line with the Group's long-term expansion plan in
the PRC. Every foray into a foreign territory takes time and patience in order for
the business to take off and the Group is confident that the two new stores will
be able to contribute in the near future.

We said in August 2009 that we would be renovating the Tianjin property for the
operation as a shopping mall rather than a department store. Renovation work is
yet to be completed and it has been rescheduled to be put into operation in the
fourth quarter 2010. In the mean time, the Shenyang project will be developed
in two phases that phase one will involve the Shenyang Jiuguang store building
located at Zhongjie Road, a well-known pedestrian walk in Shenhe District. The
store is scheduled to be opened before end of 2012.

To increase the Group's retailing business market coverage in China, we have
made a strategic investment in the Beiren Group, a leading retailing group based
in Shijiazhuang City, Hebei Province, since April 2008, with an aim to leverage
on its leading market position in the local market. Our investment in the Beiren
Group is through a 60% subsidiary that owns 30% equity interest therein as

at the end of the year. To further consolidate our position in the Beiren Group,
we have after the year end in February 2010 increased through the same 60%
subsidiary equity interest in the Beiren Group from 30% to 49%. Accordingly,
the Group should from now on be in a better position to be more actively involved
in the management of the Beiren Group.
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Managing Director’s Message
R EEL S

Looking ahead, the management takes a cautiously optimistic view on the Hong
Kong and China economic prospects and retail markets in 2010. The pace and
extent of the economic recovery and growth will be very much dependent on the
monetary policy stance and the manner in which governments across the globe
withdraw liquidity from the market. Nonetheless, growing domestic demand and
job creations, coupled with major events such as the Shanghai World Expo this
year are expected to enhance the growth momentum of China's economy that
will also benefit Hong Kong given its close economic ties with China.

In 2010, the Group will strive to take advantage of the gradual economic
recovery and set the stage for further growth. In Hong Kong, the home turf

of Lifestyle International, we will continue efforts to maintain our market
leadership. Having secured a formidable position in the department store sector
in Hong Kong, the Group is now flexing its muscles in Mainland China, the key
platform for pursuing our long-term business goals. As our mainland operations
are gradually producing encouraging results, we will continue to make all-out
efforts to maintain a sustainable growth. We will carefully apply sound business
strategies to every of our Jiuguang store in the mainland, with the ultimate aim
of setting the industry standard and making Jiuguang a role model.

With our strong balance sheet and fast-growing brand equity, and our proven
ability in identifying lucrative opportunities and translate them into business
profits, we will continue to pursue new projects in the form of self-built stores,
strategic investments or joint ventures, with a view to expanding the Group's
retailing business in China in the coming years.

Last but not the least, on behalf of the board, | would like to thank our team

members for their hard work throughout the year, as well as our customers,
business partners and shareholders for their constant support. We shall be

grateful for your continuing trust and support in the years to come.

Lau Luen-hung, Thomas
Managing Director

9th March, 2010
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Management Discussion and Analysis
ERRHBASH

Market Overview

The year 2009 was a turbulent and yet a dramatic year, with most economies
around the world rocked by the global financial crisis emanating from the United
States in 2008. Yet the world did not, as it was feared at the beginning of the

crisis, slide into slump and cause a re-run of the Great Depression. In particular,

Asia’s financial markets withstood the onslaught of the global financial turmoil
relatively well, and China has emerged as a vital force driving global recovery.
Positive effects of the expansionary monetary policies and various stimulus
plans introduced by government of most major economies around the world
has become more apparent since the second half of the year when most of
the financial and economic indicators suggesting that the worst may be over
and that signs of stability or growth are being seen in major economies. \While
consumers remained cautious about spending due to the possible lingering
economic uncertainties, their confidence level have slowly ticked up with the
gradual improvement of the economic environment.

The massive stimulus packages implemented by the Chinese government have
helped an 8.7% growth in GDP for 2009 with an impressive 10.7% saw in the
fourth quarter which are no doubt stellar results compared with the rest of the
world. Retail sales of consumer goods also rose by some 17% annually, thanks
in part to the government’s economic stimulus programmes designed to boost
domestic consumption. After 13 months of contraction, China's exports surged
a greater-than-expected 17.7% in December 2009 from a year ago.

In Hong Kong, the GDP experienced dramatic volatility from a negative growth
of 7.5% recorded in the first quarter to a positive growth of 2.6% in the fourth
quarter and finished for the year as a whole with a negative growth of 2.7%.
Thanks to the wealth effect created by the rallying in the stock market and surge
in property prices which were caused by the surge in global liquidity, consumer
sentiment started to improve gradually in the second half of the year. With

the threats of the Swine Flu abating from the middle of the third quarter, the
number of inbound tourists from Mainland China and other parts of the world
resumed to normal that helped push up sales in the last quarter of the year. On
balance, total retail sales revenue in Hong Kong for the whole of 2009 recorded
negligible year-on-year positive growth of 0.3%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
ERARHBASH

Financial Review 2009

Despite the challenges posed by the global financial crisis, Lifestyle International
managed to deliver a satisfactory set of results for the financial year 2009. This
was a combined result of the Group’s carefully crafted business plans, its long
established market position, and the huge improvement in market sentiment

as a result of the surge in asset prices in the second half of the year. Amid the
economic downturn, the Group’s operations in Hong Kong and Mainland China
remained relatively resilient and, therefore, have been able to rebound from the
downward trend with relative ease as soon as the market sentiment started to
improve.

The Group’s Hong Kong operations that includes Sogo Causeway Bay (SOGO
CWB]) and Sogo Tsim Sha Tsui (S0GO TST) managed to achieve a 3.5% growth
in aggregate sales revenue despite a negative sales growth recorded during
the first half of the year. The two stores remained competitive and their sales
continued to account for a substantial 21.9% (2008: 21.4%) of the gross
sales revenue of Hong Kong's department store sector. The Group’s operations
in Mainland China are mainly represented by the Shanghai Jiuguang store.
Notwithstanding a hold back during the first half of the year, sales revenue
improved notably in the second half that has led to a decent 11.1% growth for
the year. Meanwhile, Suzhou Jiuguang and Dalian Jiuguang, which were launched
into operation during the year, had delivered healthy performance and were
slowly amassing their strength.

Turnover and Sales Proceeds

The Group once again achieved record-high turnover that represented a 6.7%
increase to HK$3,756.2 million. Total sales proceeds (net of VAT) from both
direct and concessionaire sales transactions increased 9.4% from HK$7,674.7
million in 2008 to HK$8,399.1 million in 2009. The increase was attributable to
same store sales growth of the SOGO CWB, SOGO TST and Shanghai Jiuguang
and additional sales revenue from the two newly opened Suzhou Jiuguang and
Dalian Jiuguang.

Sales proceeds from the Group’s Hong Kong and China operations totalled
HK$6,307 million and HK$2,092.1 million respectively and accounted for
75.1% and 24.9% respectively of the Group's total sales proceeds.

Gross Profit and Gross Margin

The Group’s gross profit margin as a percentage of turnover was 956.7%,
compared with 56.1% in 2008. The amount of gross profit reached HK$2,131
million, representing a 7.8% increase from HK$1,976.4 million recorded in the
previous year. The relatively higher gross profit margin in the current year was a
result of a higher proportion of concessionaire sales from the Group’s Mainland
China operations.

Selling and Distribution Costs

The Group’s selling and distribution costs at the three relatively mature existing

stores remained stable over time and the increase for the Group in the year was
mainly due to inclusion of selling and distribution costs of the two new stores in

the region of approximately HK$171 million.
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Administrative Expenses

The slight increase in administrative expenses was the combined results of the
additional administrative expenses of approximately HK$43 million incurred
for the two new stores and an one-off consultancy fee of HK$34 million paid

in connection with the Group’s acquisition of the equity interests in the Beiren
Group and a reduction of an approximately HK$42 million of non-cash share
option charge, and HK$12 million of legal fee.

Staff Costs

Staff costs (excluding directors) increased moderately 8% to HK$294.5 million
during the year as a result of the combined effects of smaller share option
charges and more headcounts upon commencement of operations of the two
new stores. Staff costs accounted for 3.5% (2008: 3.6%) of total sales revenue
and the steady percentage level was due to low productivity of the two new
stores comparing to the existing more matured stores but was on the other
hand cushioned by the lower share option charges during the year.

Other Income

The surge in other revenue during the year included mainly sundry and cleaning
income of approximately HK$31 million and government subsidy of approximately
HK$17 million from the Suzhou store. The increase was also due to, upon an
agreement being reached with the vendor, recognizing as income of the one-

off HK$60 million guarantee profit previously received in connection with the
purchase of the shopping mall in Shijiazhuang back in 2007 which has been
recorded as a receipt-in-advance on the book.

Investment Income

This comprises mainly interest income from the Group’s surplus cash deposited
at banks and net investment income from yield enhancement financial products
as part of the Group’s treasury functions. The lower investment income during
the year was mainly a result of the low interest rate environment and the lack of
other interest income from Egana as in previous year.

Finance Costs

Total finance costs, mainly comprised interest expense on the Group’s bank
loans and other finance charges, decreased 43.6% to HK$38.4 million (2008:
HK$68.1 million). Total interest costs decreased during the year due to the
low interest rate environment but the amount of interest being capitalized also
decreased upon commencement of operation of the Suzhou store. During the
year, HK$4.8 million (2008: HK$43.2 million) of the interest incurred has been
capitalised as property under development, mainly for the Shenyang project.

Fair Value Changes on Investment Properties

The amount mainly comprises fair value gain (before tax) of approximately
HK$54.8 million on the Group's three properties in Qingdao, Harbin and

Tianjin respectively as well as the fair value gain (before tax) of approximately
HK$114.1 million on a property-under-development project in Shenyang in which
acquisition was completed before the year end.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
ERARHBASH

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group as at the year end was in small net debt position comprising
approximately HK$2,889.7 million of cash at banks and approximately
HK$3,186.7 million of bank loans. Of the cash at banks 80% of which are
denominated in US$ and HK$ and 20% are denominated in RMB. Bank loans
comprises HK$ denominated secured loan of HK$2,550 million, repayable
semi-annually, with final payment due in December 2011, bears interest
calculated with reference to the HIBOR. As at 31st December, 2009, the
Group had committed undrawn loan facility of HK$650 million, expiring also in
December 2011, granted by a bank in Hong Kong. The remaining bank loans
are RMB loans bearing interest calculated with reference to the PBOC lending
rate. The improvement of the net debt position was a result of smaller capital
expenditures and investments made during the year upon completion of the main
construction work of the Suzhou store property in 2008. During the year, the
Group incurred a total of approximately HK$772 million capital expenditures
(2008: HK$1,592 million).

Pledge of Assets

As at 31st December, 2009, the Group’s certain leasehold land and buildings
in Hong Kong with carrying values of HK$1,591.6 million (2008: HK$1,636.0
million), together with certain shares of the Company’s subsidiaries, have been
pledged to secure the banking facilities of HK$4,000 million (2008: HK$4,000
million) granted to the Group of which HK$3,350 million (2008: HK$3,000
million) has been utilised. In addition, certain of the Group's properties in

the PRC with carrying value of approximately HK$1,317.2 million (2008:
HK$1,123.6 million) have been pledged to secure loan facility in the amount
of approximately RMB330 million (2008: RMB330 million) (equivalent to
approximately HK$443.4 million).

Review of Operations

The Group’s operations in both Hong Kong and Mainland China experienced a
slowdown in sales during the first few months of the year when market sentiment
was particularly weak. Yet sales momentum picked up since April, thanks in part
to signs of stabilization of the global and local financial markets and economies.
The Group’s solid business foundation and leading industry status also helped

to pump up the momentum. In Hong Kong, tourist arrivals during the period
from June to August were weak due to the Swine Flu pandemic and as a result
consumer sentiment and spending has been dampened. As it emerged later that
the influenza was not as destructive as it was first feared, an influx of Mainland
Chinese tourists brought by the Golden Week holiday in October kick-started

the shopping spree. Together with the wealth effect brought about caused by
the rallying in the stock market, surge in property prices and the running up to
the festive seasons, market sentiment and consumer confidence has improved
dramatically that helped driving up sales significantly in the fourth quarter. On
the whole, once again the Group’'s Hong Kong operations outperformed the
market average.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
TRkt wALH

$0G0 CWB

As it did over the years, SOGO CWB remained the major contributor of the
Group’s revenue and profit in 2009. A reliable yardstick for economic vitality,
S0GO CWB recorded negative sales growth during the first half of the year when
the pain of the global financial crisis was widely felt which affected consumer
spending. As a result of the improvement in the general market conditions and
economic environment, the store recorded a 2.9% year-on-year sales growth
for 2009 as a whole which was largely attributable to higher average ticket size.
The steady performance of this flagship store was a reflection of S0GO CWB's
well established market status, its huge loyal clientele, and effective marketing
and promotion campaigns. During the “Thankful Week” in November, the store
broke record for the third year in a row, with daily sales revenue reaching a new
high at HK$53.9 million, up approximately 21.5% from the then record a year ago.

S0G0 TST

SOGO TST's performance was by and large steady and consistent throughout
the year despite the challenging economic environment. It logged a 9.6% sales
growth for the first half of the year and a 9% increase in the second half, giving
rise to an overall sales growth for the whole year of 9.2%. The results were
remarkable in view of the economic uncertainties and were attributable to the
continued popularity of the store and the constant inflow of tourists. The sales
growth during the year was a combined result of higher average ticket size and
increase in traffic footfall.

Shanghai Jinguang

Shanghai Jiuguang, which has firmly secured its standing as one of the most
sought-after shopping destinations in Shanghai, remained a consistent profit
contributor of the Group in 2009. As with the Group’s Hong Kong operations,
Shanghai Jiuguang's same-store sales growth slowed down during the first half
of the year before picking up evidently in the second half. On the whole, the store
posted a 11.1% increase in sales year-on-year in local currency term.

Five years since its inception, Shanghai Jiuguang continued to thrive and grow
steadily and consistently. The growth during the year was mainly attributable
to higher average ticket size and stay-and-buy ratio, reflecting strong customer
loyalty and the store’s success in adjusting its product mix.
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The New Stores

Suzhou Jiuguang, the Group’s second self-built store in Mainland China, got

off to a steady start following its inauguration in mid-January 2009 recorded
sales revenue of RMB215.4 million. During the year, the Group adopted a host
of strategies to lure customers to the store, including free shuttle bus service
covering certain areas around Suzhou City. Restaurants on the fourth level of the
premise were launched in a gradual manner to build up customers’ expectation
and grab their attention. The store was opened at a time when the global market
sentiment was at its lowest and, therefore, resilience and fortitude was called
for. Meanwhile, certain improvement and refining works are being carried out in
the store and at the same time, marketing efforts has been stepping up to boost
traffic footfall, a move that is in line with the Group’s long-term expansion plan in
the PRC. The Group believes that traffic footfall and sales of the store will take
off gradually after the new metro line is in operation which was said to be before
end of 2011.

A new member of the Jiuguang empire is the Dalian Jiuguang, which was
launched into operation in May 2009. Dalian Jiuguang, which occupies a

prime location, targets young customers and offers a vast array of brands and
products catering to local demand. The store recorded sales revenue for the
year amounted to RMB59.6 million. Like its Suzhou counterpart, Dalian Jiuguang
would need some time to build and nurture a growing customer base and achieve
better business results.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
ERARHBASH

Expansion and Investments
in Mainland China

To maximize operating efficiency of the relatively small Tianjin property, the
Group has decided to operate the Tianjin property as a shopping mall instead of
a department store. The space of the shopping mall will be put up for renting.
The change of plan will be in the best interest of the Group as it will require less
management resources and incur lower operating costs. Preliminary renovation
work at the Tianjin property has already begun and opening of the shopping mall
has been rescheduled to the fourth quarter 2010.

As for the Shenyang project, the land will be developed in two phases. Phase
one, taking up about half of the land area, involves erecting the Shenyang
Jiuguang store building located at Zhongjie Road, a well-known pedestrian walk
in Shenhe District. Inauguration of the store has been rescheduled to before end
of 2012. The Group will closely monitor changes in market conditions and make
efforts to ensure a smooth launch of the store. The Group will unlikely start
development of the phase two until phase one is completed.

Since November 2006, the Group has been making available a secured loan
facility to the extent of HK$250 million to an independent third party group
relating to it acquiring certain interests in a retail property project adjacent

to our Shenyang project. During the year and upon agreeing a repayment
arrangement with the borrower, the Group has completed acquisition of the
retail property project, which was still in a property-under-development state as
at the year end, for a consideration of HK$282.8 million and settlement of which
was mostly through netting-off against the loan and interest receivable due from
the borrower. The Group inclines not to operate this property itself but will keep
it for investment purpose in view of the fact that construction of the Group’s own
department store building is underway.

In order to increase its geographic coverage and speed up its pace of expansion
in Hebei Province with a view to strengthen its presence and market position in
Mainland China, the Group, through a 60% owned subsidiary, has been holding
certain equity interests in the Beiren Group, a leading retail group based in
Shijiazhuang that operates 7 department stores, 16 supermarkets and a number
of outlets selling items in the electrical appliances and consumer electronics

and jewellery categories, since April 2008. To further consolidate the Group's
position in the Beiren Group, the Group through the same 60% owned subsidiary
increased the overall equity interests in the Beiren Group to 49% subsequent

to the year end in February 2010. Following this move, the Group would be in

a better position to be more actively involved in the management of the Beiren
Group, on both the corporate and operation fronts.
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Future Prospects

Following months of contraction at its steepest rate in the post-war history,
the global economy has apparently passed its trough, and various forecasts for
2010 are now being revised upwards. While the impact of the global financial
crisis was not entirely subsided, the depth and breadth of the economic crisis
have become clearer. Besides, signs of recovery have emerged in some parts
of the world, in particular China, which is playing a key role in lifting the world
economy from recession. All these raise hopes for a sustainable economic
recovery in 2010.

Adding to a justifiable sense of cautious optimism is the World Expo to be held
in Shanghai from May to October this year. The event is expected to enhance
the growth momentum of Mainland China's economy, and that will in turn benefit
the retail sectors in both the Mainland China and Hong Kong. Meanwhile, the
positive effects of the Chinese government'’s stimulus measures continue to
trickle into the real economy, creating jobs and boosting domestic consumption.
All these bode well for the Mainland China and Hong Kong retail markets, as well
as Lifestyle International.

Nonetheless, the management is wary of the uncertainties still lingering over
the world economy and will therefore follow a prudent yet proactive approach

in going about its business in 2010. The Group will continue to make relentless
marketing and promoation efforts and implement ingenious business strategies to
solidify its existing operations in Hong Kong and Mainland China, with a view to
taking full advantage of the gradual economic recovery and setting the stage for
further growth.

The Group’s cash flow in 2010 is expected to remain strong and will be able

to provide steady funding sources for existing projects and new investment
opportunities. As a seasoned department store operator, the Group will work
on all fronts to maintain and enhance its market status. As a strategic investor,
it will be on the lookout for strategic investment opportunities that have the
potential to strengthening the Group’s profitability and financial standing.

In sum, Lifestyle International will in 2010 focus on upholding its leading
marketing position and profitability in order to safeguard its leading status in the
industry with the aim of establishing the Group as a leading retail player in the
PRC.
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Corporate Governance Report
VS AR

~t

2

The Group believes in the principle that maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance benefits all stakeholders, investors, and is good for its business

ZERURRADATERAFTTEADMBRRARIALE 2 HEAEH

AETLRBRE

Commitment to Transparency

The Board emphasizes in creating and maintaining a high level of transparency
through timely disclosure of relevant information on our activities to our
shareholders, investors, media and investment public, through regular press
releases, analysis's briefings, press conferences, as well as timely updating of
the Company's website, availability of designated investor relationship agent to
handle enquiries. Our Executive Directors and senior management, who looks
after the business operation, are committed to response to enquiries from
regulators, shareholders and business partners.

Commitment to Good Corporate Governance Practices
Our management commits to good corporate governance practices as our
corporate culture. We instill this corporate culture into our internal procedures
and control structures, which are supervised and headed by the Board of
Directors and its various committees. All efforts and measures are aimed

at improving the quality and standards of governance practices for greater
accountability towards our stakeholders and the public.

Throughout the year under review, the Group had complied with all the code
provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the "CG Code") as
set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules").

The Board and Board Process

All executive members of the Board are responsible for reviewing, evaluating and
finalizing the Company's strategies and policies, annual budgets, business plans
and performance, and all board members have full access to and are provided
with adequate, reliable and timely information of the Group and its operation

so as to enable them to make timely decision. Such information analysis can be
accessed directly through briefing and reporting by the Executive Directors and
senior management. Access to independent professional and legal advice on
issues is available to all Board members whenever they consider it necessary.

Currently the Board comprises two Executive Directors, four Non-executive
Directors and four Independent Non-executive Directors, and their names are
shown in the Corporate Information to the annual report. Their biographical
details are set out in the Profile of the Directors to the annual report, with their
relationship stipulated therein. Each one of them has different professional and
industrial qualification and experience, which enable them to make valuable and
diversified advice and guidance to the Group's activities and development. Within
the Board, more than one-third of the members are Independent Non-executive
Directors with one of whom being a certified public accountant.
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Our Board members meet on regular basis to discuss strategic and main
business issues, and to evaluate the financial performance of the Group. During
the year, there were five physical full board meetings, a physical meeting for our
Remuneration Committee, two physical meetings for our Audit Committee and
eight full Board written consents.

Regular quarterly board meetings were held for review of the Group's activities,
financial performance and data. In our regular board meetings, Directors
discussed and reviewed the Group's operations, its activities, future directions,
financial performance, budgeting, control and relevant matters having been
identified by the Directors. Board members attended either in person or through
telephone conferencing means in accordance with provision in the Company's
Articles of Association. Additional board meetings will be organized upon request
and demand by Directors. Our Company Secretary will ensure the proper
convening and conducting of the Board meetings, with relevant information and
material being provided to the Directors in a timely manner before the meetings.
During the year, Mr. Lau Luen-hung, Thomas, Mr. Lam Siu-lun, Simon, The Hon.
Shek Lai-him, Abraham and Mr. Hui Chiu-chung, Stephen attended all the five
physical full board meetings; Ms. Lau Yuk-wai, Amy and Mr. Cheung Yuet-man,
Raymond attended four of the said meetings; Mr. Doo Wai-hoi, William attended
three of the said meetings; Dr. Cheng Kar-shun, Henry and Mr. Lau Luen-

hung, Joseph attended two of the said meetings; while Dat6 Dr. Cheng Yu-tung
attended one of the said meetings.

Responsibilities of Members of the Board

The Chairman of the Board is responsible for setting and leading the overall
strategic plan and development of the Group whereas our Managing Director is
responsible, in addition to assisting in setting the Group's strategic planning,
for implementing the Board's decisions, monitoring and supervising the Group's
overall performance, ensuring adequate capital and managerial resources to
implement the business strategies adopted, setting out and monitoring targets,
plans and direction for the senior management, reporting to the Board on the
Group's overall performance and proposing business plans and future strategic
directions for the Board to evaluate and to conclude. \We have distinctive role for
our Chairman and Managing Director but they are often complementing to each
other. Other Board members review and discuss various key issues and put
forward directions and suggestions to the Board.

Pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors has made an annual confirmation of independence. The
Company is of the view that all our Independent Non-executive Directors meet
the independence guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are
independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines.
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Directors' Responsibility for
the Group's Financial Reporting

Directors are responsible to ensure the financial statements of the Group are
prepared in accordance with the relevant statutory requirements and applicable
accounting and financial reporting standards in force, and to ensure that the
financial statements are published in a timely manner and give a true and fair
view of the Group's state of affairs, the results and cash flow for the year.

Directors are responsible to select and to timely apply, on a consistent basis,
suitable accounting policies of the Hong Kong Accounting Standards and

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards in our financial reporting. Thus, the
Group's financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Listing Rules,
regulations, accounting principles and practices generally accepted in Hong
Kong.

The Board understands and emphasizes the importance of presenting a clear
and comprehensive assessment of the Group's overall performance, financial
positions and prospects to the stakeholders and investment public in a timely
manner. Our annual and interim results have been announced within the four-
month and three-month limits, respectively, after the end of the relevant
periods.

Directors' and Officers’ Liabilities Insurance

To indemnify Directors and officers of the Company against all costs, charges,
losses, expenses and liahilities incurred by them in the execution of and
discharge of their duties or in relation thereto, the Company has arranged
insurance cover for this purpose.
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Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company adopts the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the "Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as
its own code of conduct in regarding to our Directors' securities transactions on
the Company's shares.

Specific enquiries have been made to all Directors about their securities
transactions, and all of them have confirmed that they have complied with all the
relevant codes and requirements as set out in the Model Code during the year.

Control Mechanisms

The Board acknowledges its responsibility in maintaining a sound and effective
internal control system for the Group to safeguard investments of the
shareholders and assets of the Company at all times.

Internal Control and Internal Audit

The system of internal controls aims to help achieve the Group's business
objectives, safeguard assets and maintain proper accounting records for
provision of reliable financial information. The system is designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement in the
financial statements or loss of assets and to manage rather than eliminate risks
of failure when business objectives are being sought.

Management has conducted regular reviews during the year on the effectiveness
of the internal control system covering all material factors related to financial,
operational and compliance controls, various functions for risk management and
physical and information systems security. Audit Committee had been reported
during the Audit Committee Meetings key findings identified by the Company's
auditors, discussed findings and actions or measures taken in addressing those
findings relating to the Group's internal controls. No material issue during the
year has been reported to the Board by the Audit Committee.

The Board also sets targets for and reviews plans and progress on continuous
improvement work of the Company's internal control system, working in
conjunction with senior management and the Audit Committee.

The Group keeps an internal audit team within the Group's finance team
headquartered in Hong Kong, that works together with the finance team
members for conducting regular review of the Group's internal control
procedures, including accounting system and operational procedures. Although
the current internal audit team is not working totally independent from the
finance team, the management considers the present arrangement is adequate
and effective having taking into account the current organizational structure,
lines of responsibility, authority of the management team and the risks associated
with the operations of the Group. The senior management and Audit Committee
however are reviewing and monitoring on a regular basis the situation, and

will strengthen independence of the Group's internal auditing functions should
circumstances arise.

26 Lifestyle International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2009

A XD GIRET A
RAREHEMENRBIMERI0FE L AR ES#E
TRAERSGMEETA(MZESFAD - (EREEH
EERARFRNETELRR SR TER -

Bk WERE

EIHESZFARMEE AR
BRI A

R WERAFEHDYETE
#E‘J&iﬁiﬁ o

&R

EERAITHARIMBAKERIFRBERZ AR

ﬁt"%lfh AR ERIRE R AR B E EE AR
FREE -

RAILBARREH

PEBESESIE & R AR IR R R - R
AEREFRIUHES LRI EABEN -
ARHIE T AR M ER R E A SRR A

ERRRHEA IR IFREREL E R M IEBMRER
[2\B A%
RAFE - aﬁﬁm%ﬁﬂW%ETﬂFZWﬁ

ZEERE—VERYYE 2ERTEEE
EETIEARER &ﬁuﬂ%%ﬁ% %xl% %
VimaﬂgﬁiégéﬁEﬁﬁ@W$?%Z?
R ERARARZREBARENOEEERIARSE
AEEAEE 2 BRARBRITBIRIEE - ERE
EERAFELENERRREETMEANEA -

EFRIABREEERERE AU RLEA
RIHE

RENEBEZEHIERE BR - Watibiad st 8l kg
REE B EPR ﬂﬁ&Zﬁﬁlﬁﬁ%EﬁT“*

maEbEZ SN - ZBhEBEERLAFE  ARE

%@$%@W%%@E$'@%@ﬁﬂ§&%@ﬁ
Fr o BEABEXRMA TR BRI B -
WEAEEZBITAMEE  TRESOZ BEEE
NS TARREBEBSRRARE - EEER
RBOTREBRARER - Rl - aREREES
ZEEGRETHRIREETBTN  REFERK
DR AN SR B N BB AL e B BT 1



External Auditors

The Independent Auditor's Report of the Company's auditor, Messrs. Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu, in respect of the audit of the Group's financial statements for
the year is set out on pages 54 and 55 of the annual report. The Board takes
steps to ensure the continued objectivity and independence of the auditors.

For the year under review, the auditors of the Company received approximately
HK$3.75 million in respect of audit services provided to the Group.

Audit Committee

The Company's Audit Committee was established with terms of reference to "A
Guide For Effective Audit Committee" issued by Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants ("HKICPA") in 2002; and a version of the terms of reference is
available on the Company's website.

In compliance with the CG Code, Audit Committee members comprise solely of
our four Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lam Siu-lun, Simon,
Mr. Cheung Yuet-man, Raymond, The Hon. Shek Lai-him, Abraham and Mr. Hui
Chiu-chung, Stephen. None of them is, or has previously been, a member of
the Company's current or previous external auditors. The Audit Committee is
chaired by Mr. Lam Siu-lun, Simon, who is a certified public accountant.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee are as follows:

1. to consider the service and appointment of the Company's external
auditors, nature and scope of auditing, and the related audit fee;

2. toreview and approve changes in accounting policies and practices, to
review the effectiveness of the financial reporting system and process,
its compliance with accounting standards, the Listing Rules and legal
requirements;

3. to oversee the adequacy of the Group's financial reporting process, internal
control procedures and risk management system;

4. to review internal control programme and to ensure adequate responses
to internal audit functions, to consider and discuss audit findings, for any
significant or unusual terms thereof, directly with external auditors; and

5.  to assist the Board in overseeing the proper preparation of the Group's
financial statements and reports.

The Audit Committee held two committee meetings during the year. All
committee members attended both meetings. In the meetings, the committee
reviewed and discussed with the external auditors on the Group's financial
statements before they were submitted to the Board for consideration and
approval.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company's Remuneration Committee was established with terms of
reference specifying its authority and duties. A version of the terms of reference
is posted on the Company's website.

In compliance with the CG Code, the Remuneration Committee members
comprise as majority three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr.
Lam Siu-lun, Simon, The Hon. Shek Lai-him, Abraham and Mr. Hui Chiu-chung,
Stephen, and one Executive Director, Mr. Lau Luen-hung, Thomas, who is the
Managing Director and Chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

Under the terms of reference, the principal role of this Committee is to provide
advice and recommendation to the Board on the remuneration package of
Directors and senior management, on any specific remuneration package with
reference to market conditions, performance of the Group and the individuals
against preset goals and targets as set by the Board from time to time, and if
necessary, on any compensation policy for termination of office of Directors or
senior management.

Besides putting forward recommendation for the Board's approval, the
Remuneration Committee has to make advice and recommendation to
shareholders for approval if required under the Listing Rules and applicable
legislation from time to time. The Remuneration Committee met once in the
year, with all committee members attended the meeting.

Investor Relations and
Communication With Shareholders

The Company regards high quality reporting as an essential element in building
successful relationships with its shareholders. The Company always seeks to
provide relevant information to existing and potential investors, not only to
comply with the different requirements in force but also to enhance transparency
and communications with shareholders and the investing public. This is part of

a continuous communication program that encompasses meetings and relevant
announcements to the market in addition to periodic written reports in the form
of preliminary announcement of results and interim and annual reports.

The Company also maintains a corporate website on which comprehensive
information about the Group is provided. Regular meetings are also held with
institutional investors and research analysts to provide them with timely updates
on the Group's latest business developments and non-price sensitive information.
These activities keep the public informed of the Group's activities and foster
effective communications.

The Group also participated in investment conferences and forums organized by
leading investment banks during the year in order to enhance the awareness of
the investing public of the Group's vision and strategies.

The Company is committed to ensuring that it is fully compliant with disclosure
obligations stipulated under the Listing Rules and other applicable laws and
regulations, and that all shareholders and potential investors have an equal
opportunity to receive and obtain externally available information that is released
by the Group.
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Profile of Directors
TEHAN

EXECUTIVE PIRECTORS

MR. LAU LUEN-HUNG, THOMAS (BA, MBA)

Managing Director

Mr. Lau, aged 55, is the Managing Director of the Company who leads the
management of the whole Group. He is also the Chairman of Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. Lau holds a Bachelor degree and a Master
degree of Business Administration. Mr. Lau is responsible for implementing
overall strategic development, setting policies and monitoring targets of

the retailing business of the Group. He has over 31 years of successful
entrepreneurial experience in industrial manufacturing, international trade,
finance and economic, real estate, department store retailing and information
technology. Mr. Lau was the co-founder of Gemstar-TV Guide International

Inc. in the U.S.A. Currently, he has devoted much of his effort to manage the
business of the Group. Mr. Lau is also a member of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference Shanghai Committee, a director of Shanghai
Chinese Overseas Friendship Association and a member of Hong Kong-Shanghai
Economic Development Association Limited. He is also an Independent Director
of AutoChina International Limited, a NASDAQ listed company. He is the younger
brother of Mr. Joseph Lau and Ms. Amy Lau.

MR. DOO WAI-HOI, WILLIAM (JP)

Mr. Doo, aged 65, joined the Group in March 2005. He is currently the Vice-
Chairman of New World China Land Limited and the Deputy Chairman of NWS
Holdings Limited, and an Independent Non-executive Director of The Bank of
East Asia, Limited, the shares of which are all listed on the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Doo also acts as a director of New World Hotels (Holdings) Limited and
Fung Seng Diamond Company Limited. Mr. Doo has served as a Governor of
the Canadian Chamber of Commerce in Hong Kong since 1995. In addition, Mr.
Doo is a Member of the Standing Committee of the Eleventh Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference in Shanghai, and the Convener of the Shanghai
Committee in Hong Kong and Macau. He has been appointed as the Honorary
Consul of the Kingdom of Morocco in Hong Kong since June 2005. Mr. Doo is
the son-in-law of Daté Dr. Cheng Yu-tung and brother-in-law of Dr. Cheng Kar-
shun, Henry.
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Profile of Pirectors
EE G

NON-EXECUTIVE PIRECTORS

DATO DR. CHENG YU-TUNG (DPMS, LLD (HON), DBAHON),

DSSC(HON), GBM)

Chairman

Datd Dr. Cheng, aged 84, is the non-executive Chairman of the Company. He
joined the Group in March 2004. Daté Dr. Cheng is also the Chairman of Chow
Tai Fook Enterprises Limited, Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Company Limited and
New World Hotels (Holdings) Limited. He is a director of Cheng Yu Tung Family
(Holdings) Limited and Centennial Success Limited. He is also the Chairman

of New World Development Company Limited (conglomerate) and Melbourne
Enterprises Limited, a non-executive director of Shun Tak Holdings Limited and
SJM Holdings Limited, all listed on the Stock Exchange. He was an independent
non-executive director of Hang Seng Bank Limited until 6th May, 2009. Dr.
Cheng was awarded Grand Bauhinia Medal by the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region in 2008. Datd Dr. Cheng is the father of Dr.
Cheng Kar-shun, Henry and the father-in-law of Mr. Doo Wai-hoi, William.

DR. CHENG KAR-SHUN, HENRY (BA, MBA, DBA(HON), LLD(HON), GBS)

Dr. Cheng, aged 63, joined the Group in May 2001. Dr. Cheng is a director of
Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited, Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Company Limited,
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited and Centennial Success Limited.

He is the Managing Director of New World Development Company Limited,
conglomerate listed on the Stock Exchange. Dr. Cheng is also the Chairman and
Managing Director of New World China Land Limited, which is listed on the Stock
Exchange; the Chairman of NWS Holdings Limited, New World Department
Store China Limited and International Entertainment Corporation, all listed on
the Stock Exchange. He is the Managing Director of New World Hotels (Holdings)
Limited and an independent non-executive director of HKR International Limited,
which is listed on the Stock Exchange. He was the Chairman of Vision Values
Holdings Limited (formerly known as New \World Mobile Holdings Limited) and
Taifook Securities Group Limited up to his resignation on 1st February, 2007
and 13th January, 2010 respectively.

Dr. Cheng is the Chairman of the Advisory Council for The Better Hong Kong
Foundation and a Standing Committee Member of the Eleventh Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference of the People’s Republic of China. In 2001, Dr.
Cheng was awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star by the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region. Dr. Cheng is the son of Daté Dr. Cheng Yu-tung
and brother-in-law of Mr. Doo Wai-hoi, William.

MR. LAU LUEN-HUNG, JOSEPH

Mr. Lau, aged 58, joined the Group in May 2001. Mr. Lau is also the chairman
and an executive director of Chinese Estates Holdings Limited which is a
company listed on the Stock Exchange. He has over 34 years of experience in
corporate finance, manufacturing and property investment and development. Mr.
Lau is the elder brother of Mr. Thomas Lau and Ms. Amy Lau.
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NON'EXECUTI VE DIKECTOKS (continued)

MS. LAU YUK-WAI, AMY

Ms. Lau, aged 56, joined the Group in March 2004. Ms. Lau holds a Bachelor
degree in Science and a Doctor degree in Dental Surgeon from the University
of Toronto in Canada. She is also a non-executive director of Chinese Estates
Holdings Limited, which is a company listed on the Stock Exchange. Ms. Lau is
the sister of Mr. Thomas Lau and Mr. Joseph Lau.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE PIRECTORS

MR. LAM SIU-LUN, SIMON (BA, ACA, FTIHKI

Mr. Lam, aged 60, joined the Group in March 2004. He is also the Chairman
of Audit Committee of the Company. Mr. Lam graduated from the University of
Hong Kong in 1973. After graduation, he worked at KPMG Peat Marwick London
and Hong Kong and obtained his qualification as a Certified Public Accountant
from HKICPA in 1979. Mr. Lam has been a practicing accountant for over 20
years and is the proprietor of Messrs. S.L. Lam & Company. He has served as
a member of the Insider Dealing Tribunal on a number of occasions. He is an
independent non-executive director and audit committee member of Le Saunda
Holdings Limited and Kiu Hung Energy Holdings Limited, companies whose
shares are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.

MR. CHEUNG YUET-MAN, RAYMOND

Mr. Cheung, aged 55, joined the Group in March 2004. Mr. Cheung was an
entrepreneur and has over 17 years of experience in the textile and garment
manufacturing industries and has over 16 years of experience in property
investment.

THE HON. SHEK LAI-HIM, RBRAHAM (BA, DIP. ED., JP]

Mr. Shek, aged 64, joined the Group in March 2004. Mr. Shek obtained his
Bachelor degree of Arts in 1969 and has extensive experience in the property
development field. Mr. Shek is a member of the Legislative Council of Hong Kong.
He is also a member of the Council of The Hong Kong University of Science &
Technology and Court of The University of Hong Kong. He is an independent non-
executive director and audit committee member of each of Midas International
Holdings Limited, Paliburg Holdings Limited, Chuang’s Consortium International
Limited, NWS Holdings Limited, ITC Corporation Limited, Titan Petrochemicals
Group Limited and Country Garden Holdings Company Limited and an
independent non-executive director of Hop Hing Group Holdings Limited, Hsin
Chong Construction Group Ltd., Chuang’s China Investments Limited and MTR
Corporation Limited whose shares are listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange. He is also an independent non-executive director of SJM Holdings
Limited and an independent non-executive director and audit committee member
of Regal Portfolio Management Limited. He is also an independent non-executive
director and audit committee member of Eagle Asset Management (CP) Limited,
the manager of Champion Real Estate Investment Trust which is listed on

the Stock Exchange. Mr. Shek is also a director to The Hong Kong Mortgage
Corporation Limited. He is also the Vice Chairman of Independent Police
Complaints Council.
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Profile of Pirectors
EE G

HUI Chiu-chung, Stephen JP

Mr Hui, aged 62, join the Group in July 2005. Mr Hui is currently the Chief
Executive Officer of OSK Holdings Hong Kong Limited. He has 39 years of
experience in the securities and investment industry. Mr Hui had for years been
serving as a Council Member and Vice Chairman of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong, member of the Advisory Committee of the Hong Kong Securities and
Futures Commission, Director of the Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company
Limited, a member of the Listing Committee of the Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited, an appointed member of the Securities and Futures Appeal
Tribunal and was also member of Standing Committee on Company Law Reform.
Mr. Hui was appointed by the Government of the HKSAR a Justice of the Peace
in 2004 and was also appointed a member of the Zhuhai Municipal Committee of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference in 2006. He is at present
a member of the Committee on Real Estate Investment Trusts of the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures Commission. Mr. Hui is also an appointed member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants Investigation Panel A and
member of Government “Appointees” (independent member) of Appeal Panel of
the Travel Industry Council of Hong Kong. Mr. Hui also serves as independent
non-executive director of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited, Luk Fook
Holdings (International) Limited, Jiuzhou Development Company Limited, Chun
Wo Development Holdings Limited and Frasers Property (China) Limited whose
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Directors” Report
TFAHRE

The Directors of the Company present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st December, 2009 (the
“Year”).

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the principal
activities of its subsidiaries are the operation of “lifestyle” department stores
and other retailing format, and property development and property holding.
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note 49 to the
financial statements.

Results and appropriations
The results of the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2009 are set out
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 56.

An interim dividend of HK cents 11.0 per share was paid during the Year. The
Directors have recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK cents 17.0
in cash per share to the shareholders whose names appear on the Register of
Members of the Company on Monday, 10th May, 2010, amounting to a total of
HK cents 28.0 in cash per share for the Year.

Fixed assets

During the Year, the Group revalued all of its investment properties at the end
of the reporting period. The net increase in fair value of investment properties
amounting to HK$178,756,000 has been credited directly to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

The Group continued its leasehold improvements replacement policy and
expended HK$33,420,000 on new leasehold improvements during the Year.

Details of these and other movements during the Year in the fixed assets of the
Group are set out in notes 17 and 18 to the financial statements.

Share capital
Details of movements during the Year in the share capital of the Company are
set out in note 38 to the financial statements.

Directors
The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Lau Luen-hung, Thomas (Managing Director]
Mr. Doo Wai-hoi, William

Non-executive Directors:

Datd Dr. Cheng Yu-tung (Chairman)
Dr. Cheng Kar-shun, Henry

Mr. Lau Luen-hung, Joseph

Ms. Lau Yuk-wai, Amy

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Lam Siu-lun, Simon

Mr. Cheung Yuet-man, Raymaond

The Hon. Shek Lai-him, Abraham

Mr. Hui Chiu-chung, Stephen
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DIRECTORS' REPORT & £ A &

Directors (ontinued)

In accordance with Article 87 of the Articles of the Company, Dr. Cheng Kar-
shun, Henry, Ms. Lau Yuk-wai, Amy and Mr. Lam Siu-lun, Simon shall retire by
rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The term of office of each Non-executive Director and Independent Non-executive
Director is appointed for a specific term of one year and is subject to retirement
and re-election at annual general meeting in accordance with the Company’s
articles of association.

Mr. Lau Luen-hung, Thomas and Mr. Doo Wai-hoi, William entered into service
contract with the Company for an initial fixed term of three years commencing
from 1st April, 2004 and 2nd March, 2005 respectively, and is subject to
renewal and extension automatically for further three years unless terminated
by either party in writing. There is no specific clause in both service contracts
providing for the amount of compensation in case of early termination of office.

Other than as disclosed above, no Director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

Directors’ and chief executives” interests in shares and

underlying shares

As at 31st December, 2009, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which are
required to be notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which he is taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO) or are required, pursuant to Section 352
of Part XV of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or are
required pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 of the Rules Governing the Listing

of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:

(i) Long positions in the issued shares of the Company

s X0
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BRI -
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NHBA2HEE
RIZFNF+A=1T—HB EFRARFTH
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i) FRAFRERITROZHER
Approximate percentage of

interest in the issued share
capital of the Company

Name of Director Nature of interest and capacity Number of shares (Note 3)
HAR DTS BITRA
EEZHNEIT
EEMA ERMERED RDEE (MHE3)
Mr. Lau Luen-hung, Thomas Interest in controlled corporation (Note 1) 1,080,000,000 64.53%
G-t Pt S A AR (BEET)
Interest in controlled corporation (Note 2) 41,000,000 2.45%
PRGN AR (MEE2)
Beneficial owner 36,506,000 2.18%

BaEAA
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Directors” and chief executives” interests in shares and

underlying shares (ontinues)

58 EARKMRAAL

AW R 2ZHEE

Long positions in the issued shares of the Company (continued) il AATRECRITROZFE(E)

Notes: PR -

1. Real Reward Limited (“Real Reward"), which is jointly owned by United Goal Resources 1. fUnited Goal Resources Limited ([ United Goal ] )
Limited (“United Goal") and Go Create Limited (“Go Create”) in equal shares, holds J2Go Create Limited([ Go Create |) #£[F 5%
1,080,000,000 shares. United Goal, a company incorporated in the British Virgin % 27 Real Reward Limited([Real Reward|)##
Islands (“BVI"), is ultimately owned by Mr. Thomas Lau and a family trust with £1,080,000,0000% ° United Goal A&7 24 & 4
certain family members of Mr. Lau Luen-hung, Joseph (“Mr. Joseph Lau’) as eligible BMRBSEMKZ 2 AF - BREBEAER
beneficiaries. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Thomas Lau is deemed to be interested in the AERZHANBR SRS ([R B E )
1,080,000,000 shares held by Real Reward. 9& TRIEKNEZREETIRRES - BRIE

5 RIS - BI85 A iR {E R Real
RewardFf#51,080,000,0008% ¥ & #E 2% ©

2. Dynamic Castle Limited (‘Dynamic Castle”), which is whally-owned by Mr. Thomas 2. £ 2 8% 5k &£ 2 & ¥ B 2 Dynamic Castle
Lau, holds 41,000,000 shares. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Thomas Lau is deemed to Limited ([ Dynamic Castle |) %EM 000,000
be interested in the 41,000,000 shares held by Dynamic Castle. f% o RIEBS R HEEED - 8B ERR

{EF Dynamic CastlePr#F41, DUD 000RH#A
iR o

3. As at 31st December, 2009, the issued share capital of the Company was 3. R-ZEBEZENEFE+_A=+—H "  XQ7
HK$8,368,100.00 divided into 1,673,620,000 shares of HK$0.005 each. 2B ETRA 7% 8 368,100.008 7T * » A

1,673,620,000/% & A E{E0.005% 7T 2 i 17 ©

Long positions in associated corporations i) REELIEZFR

Nature of interest and Total number of Percentage of

Name of Director Name of associated corporation capacity shares held interest

EERE MEEEEERE ERMERESD PR3 4 2 EmEsk

Mr. Thomas Lau Real Reward Interest in controlled 1 50%

Bty corporation (Note 1)

SRS N AR (M)
Crystal Key Investment Limited Interest in controlled 1 100%
corporation (Note 2)
2P R ()
Grandville Venture Corp. Interest in controlled 50,000 100%
corporation (Note 2)
N ERE (MEE2)
Global Centre Investments Limited  Interest in controlled 1 100%
corporation (Note 2)
S AR (M)
Leeson Limited Interest in controlled 1 100%
BEARAR corporation (Note 2)
ZPE A Rk ()
Wise Ocean Limited Interest in controlled 1 100%
BEARANT corporation (Note 2)
NERER (ME2)

Notes: Bff5E

1. United Goal, a company incorporated in the BVI and ultimately owned by Mr. Thomas 1. United Goal B3 @A R BF S MKz A
Lau and a family trust with certain family members of Mr. Joseph Lau as eligible 7] #i5Real Reward 500/ @ I A 25408
beneficiaries, has 50% interest in Real Reward. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Thomas FEREERIL B ANRBBIEERESTRIR
Lau is deemed to be interested in the one share in Real Reward. KEZREEAERKRES - REEALEE

{65+ I8 5% 2 4045 #E70Real Reward— R
it R HE A S ©

2. United Goal, a company incorporated in the BVI and ultimately owned by Mr. Thomas 2. United Goal B R B4 M R B S Az 2

Lau and a family trust with certain family members of Mr. Joseph Lau as eligible
beneficiaries, has 50% interest in Real Reward. Crystal Key Investment Limited,
Grandville Venture Corp., Global Centre Investments Limited, Leeson Limited and
Wise Ocean Limited are, either direct or indirect, wholly-owned subsidiaries of Real
Reward. By virtue of SFO, Mr. Thomas Lau is deemed to be interested in the shares
held by Real Reward in Crystal Key Investment Limited, Grandville Venture Corp.,
Global Centre Investments Limited, Leeson Limited and Wise Ocean Limited.

‘A7) » HEEReal Reward 50%## z * I FA £
BREEREERIHBARDERTERT
RIEHK B 2 RIZEE& 4 WA © Crystal Key
Investment Limited * Grandville Venture Corp. *
Global Centre Investments Limited * EE{E B[R
RNFIREF AR Q7 AReal RewardH % 5
BEREMBAR - BIEEHFRBEKD - 2
85308 5 A 4 AR {E Real Reward7£Crystal Key
Investment Limited * Grandville Venture Corp. *
Global Centre Investments Limited é%f;.ﬁﬁﬁ

AIREFERABHTE ZRIDPEEER
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DIRECTORS' REPORT & £ A &

Directors” and chief executives” interests in shares and
underlying shares (ontinues)

Long positions in associated corporations (continued)

All the interests stated above represented long positions. As at 31st
December, 2009, the Directors and chief executives had no short
positions recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company

pursuant to Section 352 of Part XV of the SFO.

Interests of substantial shareholders

As at 31st December, 2009, so far as is known to any Director or chief
executive of the Company, the following persons (other than a Director or the
chief executive of the Company) had an interest or short position in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of the Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

36

Long positions in the shares and the underlying shares of the Company 0]

58T EARFMRNAL

40 W %2 A )
) AEEEEZFA ()

bR REE R-TTAF+=

A=+—8  ARAREESZ NSRS

XVEPE 352G EF E 2 BrC ML Ak EF

RATB AR EAAR -

iZHe#E

RIZTENF+-A=+—H BEELARFT

BU@RFA - THIAL(FREEBRARATH
BRRADTZ RO RBBRGD - HBBRE
B R EOIEXVEHELRIA Y EXAAAT
B HESSUAR -

EARRDREBRD ZFRE

Approximate
percentage of
interest in the

issued share capital
of the Company

Name of Shareholder Nature of interest and capacity Number of shares (Note 4)
EARAT D BT
RS 2D
ENvisd
RREB ERMERSD ROHAE (Hf3E4)
Real Reward Beneficial owner (Note 1) 1,080,000,000 64.53%
Em e AR
United Goal Interest in controlled 1,080,000,000 64.53%
corporation (Note 2)
Sl A AR ()
Asia Prime Assets Limited  Interest in controlled 1,080,000,000 64.53%
(*Asia Prime”) corporation (Note 2)
A AR (fEE2)
Go Create Interest in controlled 1,080,000,000 64.53%
corporation (Note 3)
A AR (FE3)
Chow Tai Fook Enterprises  Interest in controlled 1,080,000,000 64.53%
Limited (“CTF") corporation (Note 3)
BAREEEERAR(RE SRR (HE3)
Ki&l)
JPMorgan Chase & Co. (a) Beneficial owner 131,500
() BB A
(b) Investment manager 39,598,000
(b) &L IE
(c) Custodian 60,392,177 Total: 100,121,677 5.98%
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Interests of substantial shareholders (ontinues)
(ii) Lending pool with respect of the shares and underlying shares of
the Company

iERRMEE

IR

i 2 A2 R R RARE R 6

Approximate percentage
of interest in the issued
share capital of

the Company

Name of Shareholder Capacity Number of shares (Note 4)

ERDBERITRAE

S i SR il d

REREM 5% RBEE (Ki7E4)

JPMorgan Chase & Co. Custodian 60,392,177 3.61%
FEEA

Notes:

Real Reward is a company jointly owned by United Goal and Go Create in equal shares.
United Goal is ultimately owned by Mr. Thomas Lau and a family trust with certain
family members of Mr. Joseph Lau as eligible beneficiaries. Go Create is wholly owned
by CTF of which family members of Daté Dr. Cheng Yu-tung have controlling interests.
Mr. Thomas Lau, Mr. Joseph Lau and Dr. Cheng Kar-shun, Henry, being Directors,
are also directors of Real Reward.

Asia Prime, a company wholly owned by Mr. Thomas Lau, holds more than one-third
of the entire issued share capital of United Goal, a 50% shareholder of Real Reward.
By virtue of the SFO, Asia Prime and United Goal are deemed to be interested in the
1,080,000,000 shares held by Real Reward. Mr. Thomas Lau and Mr. Joseph Lau,
being Directors, are directors of United Goal and Mr. Thomas Lau is also the sole
director of Asia Prime.

Go Create, a company incorporated in the BVI and wholly owned by CTF of which
family members of Dat6 Dr. Cheng Yu-tung have controlling interests, has 50%
interest in Real Reward. By virtue of the SFO, CTF and Go Create are deemed to be
interested in the 1,080,000,000 shares held by Real Reward. Dat¢ Dr. Cheng Yu-
tung and Dr. Cheng Kar-shun, Henry, being Directors, are directors of CTF and Dr.
Cheng Kar-shun, Henry is also a director of Go Create.

As at 31st December, 2009, the issued share capital of the Company was
HK$8,368,100.00 divided into 1,673,620,000 shares of HK$0.005 each.

All the interests stated above represented long positions. As at 31st
December, 2009, the substantial shareholders of the Company had
no short positions recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO.

TEE

Real RewardfUnited Goal22Go Createt[F]F 15
A ° United Goal 2188 i £ R A BT 5
ANBRBEEEBETREREB ZREEAR
44 © Go Create FHAREE2EHAE - M2
BEWMYELZREKERAXBREER
ik o ERIEREL - ABERERBR
#1H £ 75 AReal Reward 2 E 5 ©

Asia Primef 2188 e L2 EHME - HEA
United Goal 2 5B BT ABB =02 — -
ifiUnited Goal % +5 5 Real Reward 50%#&
Z R o IREBEFEH K EE G - Asia Prime
. United Goal 4748 & 7 Real Reward fT 5 2
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Share Option Schemes

38

The 2004 Share Option Scheme

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted for a
period of 10 years commencing 27th March, 2004 pursuant to a written
resolution of the sole shareholder for the purpose of providing incentives
or rewards to selected full-time employees and Directors for their
contribution to the Group.

Under the Scheme, the Company may grant options to selected full-time
employees and Directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe
for shares in the Company. Additionally, the Company may, from time

to time, grant share options to eligible advisors and consultants to the
Company and its subsidiaries at the discretion of the Board of Directors.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the Scheme and any other scheme of the Company is not permitted
to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue as at the date of
the commencement of dealings in the shares on the Stock Exchange,
being 144,000,000 shares of HK$0.005 each after the share subdivision
in 2007, which represented approximately 8.60% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of this report. The Company may
seek approval from its shareholders in general meeting to renew such
limit provided that it must not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of
the Company at the date of approval of the renewed limit. The maximum
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any other
scheme must not exceed such number of shares as shall represent

30% of the total number of issued shares of the Company from time to
time. The number of shares issued and to be issued in respect of which
options granted and may be granted to any individual in any one year is not
permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue, without
prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. Options granted to
substantial shareholders, Independent Non-executive Directors, or any of
their respective associates (including a trustee of a discretionary trust

of which they or any of their family interests are discretionary objects) in
excess of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital and with a value in excess
of HK$5,000,000 must be also approved by the Company's shareholders.

Option granted must be taken up within the time limit specified in the
offer letter (which shall not be later than 5 days from the date of offer),
upon payment of HK$1 per option. Options may be exercised at any time
during a period commencing on or after the date on which the option is
accepted and deemed to be granted and expiring on a date to be notified
by the Board to each grantee which shall not be more than 10 years from
the date on which the option is accepted and deemed to be granted. The
exercise price is determined by the Directors of the Company, and will not
be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the Company's shares
on the date of grant, (ii) the average closing price of the shares for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Company’s share.

The termination of the Scheme was conditionally approved by the
shareholders of the Company in an extraordinary general meeting held on
3rd March, 2009. No further options will be offered under the Scheme,
but all options granted prior to such termination shall continue to be valid
and exercisable in accordance with the Scheme.
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Share Option Schemes (wntinuer)

The 2009 Share Option Scheme

The adoption of a new share option scheme (the “2009 Share Option
Scheme”) was approved by the shareholders of the Company in an
extraordinary general meeting held on 3rd March, 2009 for a period of 10
years commencing from 3rd March, 2009 as incentive or reward for the
contribution of the eligible participants to the growth of the Group and to
provide to the Group with a more flexible means to reward, remunerate,
compensate and/or provide benefits to the eligible participants.

Under the 2009 Share Option Scheme, the Company may grant options

to (a) any full-time or part-time employee of the Company and/or any
subsidiary; (b) any Director (including Executive, Non-executive and
Independent Non-executive Director) of the Company and/or any subsidiary;
and (c) any consultant or adviser (whether professional or otherwise and
whether on an employment or contractual or honorary basis or otherwise
and whether paid or unpaid), distributor, contractor, supplier, service
provider, agent, customer and business partner of the Company and/or any
subsidiary who, at the sole determination of the Board, have contributed
or will contribute to the Company and/or any subsidiary.

There is no general requirement on the minimum period for which an
option must be held or the performance targets which must be achieved
before an option can be exercised under the terms of the 2009 Share
Option Scheme. However, the Board may offer to grant any options subject
to such terms and conditions in relation to the minimum period of the
options to be held and/or the performance targets to be achieved before
such Options can be exercised and/or any other terms as the Board may
determine in its absolute discretion.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options which may be granted under the 2009 Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company must not, in aggregate,
exceed 166,860,950 shares, representing 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at 3rd March, 2009, the date on which the
2009 Share Option Scheme was approved by the shareholders of the
Company. The Board may seek approval by shareholders in general
meeting to renew such limit provided that it must not exceed 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company at the date of approval of the renewed
limit. The maximum aggregate number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the 2009 Share Option Scheme and any other scheme must not
exceed such number of shares as shall represent 30% of the issued share
capital of the Company from time to time.
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The 2009 Share Option Scheme (continued)

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted to each eligible participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options under the 2009 Share Option Scheme) in any 12-
month period must not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the
Company. Where any further grant of options to an eligible participant
would result in excess of such limit, such further grant must be subject
to the approval of the shareholders at general meeting with such eligible
participant and his associates abstaining from voting.

Options granted to a connected person of the Company or any of its

associates must be approved by all of the Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company (excluding any Independent Non-executive

Director of the Company who is the grantee of the options).

Where options are proposed to be granted to a substantial shareholder
or an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company or any of their
respective associates, and the proposed grant of options will result in

the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options already granted and to be granted (including options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the 12-month period up to
and including the date of such grant representing in aggregate over 0.1%
of the issued share capital of the Company on the date of offer and having
an aggregate value, based on the closing price of the shares at the date
of each grant, in excess of HK$5 million, such grant of options must be
subject to the approval of the shareholders taken on a poll at general
meeting. The connected person involved in such proposed grant of options
and all other connected persons of the Company must abstain from voting
in such general meeting (except that any connected person may vote
against the proposed grant provided that his intention to do so has been
stated in the relevant circular to the shareholders).

Option granted must be taken up within the time limit specified in the offer
letter (which shall not be later than 5 days from the date of offer), upon
payment of HK$1 on acceptance of the offer. Options may be exercised at
any time during a period to be notified by the Board to each grantee which
shall not be more than 10 years from the date of the offer. The exercise
price is determined by the Directors of the Company, and will be at least
the highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
grant, (ii) the average closing price of the shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company’s share.
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Details of options granted by the Company

As at 31st December, 2009, options to subscribe for an aggregate of
38,270,000 shares of the Company granted to a Director (as disclosed above)
and certain full-time employees pursuant to the Scheme remained outstanding,
details of which were as follows:

Number of share options
BRESE

QAN BFBERBLHEH
R-BBAET-A=+—H 50 EXHBE -
ARFRERH AN — S EBRETRREEET
A4 $£38,270,0008 A 2 AR B K71
Z BRI T -

Outstanding

as at Granted Exercised Lapsed

1st January, turing turing turing

Date of grant 2009 the Year the Year the Year
m:s§n¢
-A-H

S EE HRITE ERRT ERiTR FREN

Outstanding
Cancelled as at Subscription
during 31st December, price per
the Year 2009 Option period share
i 3
tZA=1-A
FREH HRTE BRESR SRIBE

Director
EE
Mr. Thomas Lau  07/10/2005 1,008,000 - (1,008,000 -
AEnraE —ZTHE
+AtA

16/03/2006 9,156,000 - (9,156,000 -
ZZTRE

=A+RA

31/08/2007 17,020,000 - - -
“ETLF
NA=1+—H

Emplojees 07/10/2005 3,619,000
] ~2TRf
+AA

(1,947,0000 (382,000

31/08/2007 21,520,000 - - (1,120,000
e 2
NA=+—H

02/02/2009 - 20,400,000 - (440,000
—ETNE
—“AZH

- - 07/10/2006 - HK$6.16
26/3/2014 B.16/87T
(Note 1)
“TLRE
+AtBEZE
—ZT-E
=AZtH
(FizE1)
- - 16/03/2007 - HK$6.37
26/03/2014 6.3757C
(Note 2)
“ETLEF
=A+~BZ
—T-mEF
=A=tH
(FizE2)
- 17,020,000 01/10/2008 - HK$18.50
26/03/2014 18.50/8 T
(Note 3)
—TENE
+A—HZ
—T-pmE
=AZt+iH
(FizE3)
- 1,290,000 07/10/2006 - HK$6.16
26/03/2014 B.16757T
(Note 1)
“TERF
+AtBEZE
“EE
=AZtH
(F3E1)
(20,400,000) - 01/10/2008 - HK$18.50
26/03/2014 18.50/870
(Notes 3 & 4)
ZZTN\F
+A—BZ
—Z-mF
=A=tH
(MFF3%4)
- 19,960,000 07/02/2010 - HK$6.40
26/03/2014 6.40/57C
(Notes 4 & 5)
—E-%F
ZRAtHE
—T-mE
=AZ+H
(FiFE4%5)

Total 52,323,000 20,400,000 (12,111,0000 (1,942,000)

B

(20,400,0000 38,270,000
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Details of options granted by the Company (wntinues)

Notes:

1.

42

The options, granted on 7th October, 2005, are exercisable from 7th October, 2006 to
26th March, 2014 (both days inclusive) subject to the following vesting period:

(i up to 40% of the options commencing 7th October, 2006;

(ii) up to 70% of the options (including the options not exercised under the limit
prescribed for in the previous period) commencing 7th October, 2007; and

(i) up to 100% of the options (including the options not exercised under the limit
prescribed for in the previous periods) commencing 7th October, 2008.

The options, granted on 16th March, 2006, are exercisable from 16th March, 2007 to 26th
March, 2014 (both days inclusive) subject to the following vesting period:

(i) up to 40% of the options commencing 16th March, 2007;

(ii) up to 70% of the options (including the options not exercised under the limit
prescribed for in the previous period) commencing 16th March, 2008; and

(i)~ up to 100% of the options (including the options not exercised under the limit
prescribed for in the previous periods) commencing 16th March, 2009.

The grant of the options to Mr. Thomas Lau was subsequently approved by independent
shareholders on 26th April, 2006.

The options, granted on 31st August, 2007, are exercisable from 1st October, 2008 to
26th March, 2014 (both days inclusive) subject to the following vesting period:

(i) up to 40% of the options commencing 1st October, 2008 or 1st October, 2009;

(ii) up to 70% of the options (including the options not exercised under the limit
prescribed for in the previous period) commencing 1st October, 2009 or 1st
Octaber, 2010; and

(i) up to 100% of the options (including the options not exercised under the limit
prescribed for in the previous periods) commencing 1st October, 2010 or 1st
Octaber, 2011.

The grant of the options to Mr. Thomas Lau was subsequently approved by independent
shareholders on 25th September, 2007.

On 2nd February, 2009 and 3rd March, 2009, approvals have been obtained from the board
of directors and shareholders respectively in respect of cancellation and replacement of the
options granted to employees (other than those granted to Mr. Thomas Lau) as more fully
described in note 39 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

On 3rd March, 2009, the outstanding options previously granted to employees of the Group
on 31st August, 2007 (which entitled such employees to subscribe for an aggregate of
20,400,000 shares) were cancelled and replaced by new options granted by the Company
entitling them to subscribe for the same number of shares at an exercise price of HK$6.40
per share (the "2009 Employee Options”). The 2009 Employee Options are exercisable from
7th February, 2010 to 26th March, 2014 (both days inclusive) in the following manner:

(i) 40% as from 7th February, 2010;

(ii) 30% (in addition to the 40% mentioned in (i) above) as from 7th February, 2011; and

(i) remaining 30% (in addition to the 70% mentioned in (i) and (ii) above) as from 7th
February, 2012.
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Details of options granted by the Company (wntinues)

Notes: (continued)

5. According to the Black-Scholes pricing model (the “Model"), the fair value of the options
granted during the Year was estimated at HK$19.9 million. The variables used in the model
were as follows:

Exercise price HK$6.40
Share price on HK$5.53 closing price on 3rd March, 2009
grant date
as defined in
accordance
with HKFRS 2
Expected volatility — 55.26% historical volatility of the Company’s share price
OVer previous years
Expected life 1.5-3.5 years based on management’s best estimation,
taking into account non-transferability, exercise
restrictions and other behavioural considerations
Risk-free rate 0.57-1.27% reference to yield of Exchange Fund Notes in

accordance with expected life of the option

Expected dividend ~ 4.34% based on historical dividend yield of the shares of
yield the Company over 12-month period

This Model was developed to estimate the fair value of publicly traded options that have

no vesting restriction and are fully transferable. As the Company’s share options have
characteristics significantly different from those traded options, and the value of the share
options varies with different variables of certain subjective assumptions, any change in the
variables so used may materially affect the estimation of the fair value of the share options.

Arrangements to purchase shares or debentures

Other than as disclosed under the section “Details of options granted by the
Company”, at no time during the Year was the Company, its holding company,
or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

Directors’ interests in contracts of significance

Other than as disclosed under the section “Connected Transactions”,

no contracts of significance to which the Company, its holding company,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

Connected transactions
(R) Continuing connected transaction
(i)  Jewellery Dealership Agreement at Sogo CUUB Store

On 27th March, 2008, the Group's 100% owned Sogo Hong Kong
Company Limited (“Sogo HK”) entered into a dealership agreement
with Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Company Limited (“‘CTF Jewellery”)
for a consignment arrangement of a counter of 1,107.40 sq.ft.
on the first floor of Sogo Causeway Bay Store (“Sogo CWB Store”)
for exhibiting and selling of fine jewellery under the brand name of
“Chow Tai Fook” for a period of two years, commencing from 1st
March, 2008 (“2008 CTF Consignment”). The Sogo HK would receive
a monthly commission charging on certain percentages of the
gross turnover at the said counter, subject to an annual minimum
commission of around HK$4 million.
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Connected transactions (ontinued)
Continuing connected transaction (continued)

(R)

44

Jewellery Dealership Agreement at Sogo CWB Store (continued)

In the ordinary course of business of the Group, the Group entered
into the 2008 CTF Consignment with the CTF Jewellery as the
merchandises being sold at the said counter can enhance the
product mix of the available merchandises in our Sogo CWB Store
and fulfill the Group’s customers’ demand.

During the Year, the Sogo HK received a total of around HK$12
million commission, management fee and other charges from the
CTF Jewellery under the 2008 CTF Consignment, and such sum
was within the annual cap of HK$21.3 million as disclosed in the
Company's announcement dated 9th April, 2008.

The Company’s controlling shareholder, Real Reward, is 50% owned
by Go Create which is 100% owned by Chow Tai Fook Enterprises
Limited (“CTF"). CTF Jewellery, being an associate of the CTF, is
deemed as a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules. Thus, the 2008 CTF Consignment constitutes a continuing
connected transaction of the Company.

Shanghai Ongoing Department Store’s tenancy agreement

On 26th November, 2004, the Group’s 65% owned Shanghai
Ongoing Department Store Limited (the “Shanghai Ongoing”) entered
into a tenancy agreement with the Group’s 50% owned E/& &

W ES AR AR (the “CityPlaza Co”) in respect of the leasing

of the entire building of Shanghai Joinbuy CityPlaza (the “Joinbuy
CityPlaza") of approximately 92,000 sg.m., for a period of 20 years
commencing from 1st October, 2004 (“Tenancy Agreement”), at a
basic annual rental of RMB125 million, with adjustment for additional
rental at the rate of 3.5% on the amount over and above the annual
turnover of RMB1,500 million generated from the sales at the whole
Joinbuy CityPlaza. Management fee was on a cost incurred basis.

Details of the Tenancy Agreement were disclosed in the Company’s
circular dated 14th December, 2004. On 30th December, 2004,
independent shareholders of the Company had approved the Tenancy
Agreement together with annual caps of RMB125 million for rental
and of RMBB5 million for management fee for 3 years commencing
from 1st October, 2004. The annual caps of rental and management
fee were both revised and approved by major shareholders of

the Company to RMB155 million and RMB44 million respectively

in accordance to the Company’s circular dated 13th October,

2008. During the Year, rental of RMB125 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$141.9 million) and management fee of RMB33.8
million (equivalent to approximately HK$38.4 million) were paid by
the Shanghai Ongoing under the Tenancy Agreement.

The Tenancy Agreement was arranged for the leasing of the retailing
space as necessary for the operation of the Group’s Shanghai
Jiuguang Department Store (“Shanghai Jiuguang Store”).
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Connected transactions (ontinued)
Continuing connected transaction (continued)

Shanghai Ongoing Department Store’s tenancy agreement (continued)
The Group’s 65% owned Shanghai Ongoing is 10% owned by )&
WA (EE)ER AT (“Joinbuy Group™ and 25% by HiE ARG E
iR A 7 (“Joinbuy Co”). The Group's 50% =8 B HESER A A
(“Cityplaza Co") is owned 12% by Joinbuy Group and 38% by Joinbuy
Co. Joinbuy Co is a subsidiary of Joinbuy Group. Thus, Joinbuy Group
and Jainbuy Co, being substantial shareholders of Shanghai Ongoing,
are connected persons of the Company. Furthermore, they, being
connected persons of the Company, also have substantial equity
interest in Cityplaza Co; and Cityplaza Co becomes an associate

of these two connected persons. Thus, the aforesaid Tenancy
Agreement constitutes a continuing connected transaction of the
Company.

Jewellery Dealership Agreement at Shanghai Jiuguang Store

On 7th September, 2007, the Shanghai Ongoing entered into a
dealership agreement with FRf@HRE 77 (#M)BR AR LE
2>~ a) (“CTF Shanghai”) for the consignment arrangement of a
retailing counter of approximately 96 sq.m. on the second floor of
Shanghai Jiuguang Store to CTF Shanghai for exhibiting and selling
of jewellery under the brand name of “Chow Tai Fook” for a period of
2 years commencing from 18th September, 2007 (the “2007 CTF
SH Consignment "). Upon expiry of the 2007 CTF SH Consignment,
the Shanghai Ongoing entered into a new dealership agreement

on 22nd September, 2009 with the CTF Shanghai of another 2
years commencing from 1st September, 2009 (the “2009 CTF

SH Consignment”). The Shanghai Ongoing would receive a monthly
commission charging on certain percentages of the gross turnover
from sales generating at the said counter, subject to a monthly
minimum commission of RMB86,400.

In the ordinary course of business of the Group, the Group entered
into the two said consignments with the CTF Shanghai as the
merchandises being sold at the said counters can enhance the
product mix of the available merchandises in our Shanghai Jiuguang
Store and fulfil the Group’s customers’ demand.

During the period from 1st January 2009 to 31st August,

2009, the Shanghai Ongoing received a total of around RMB1.4
million (equivalent to approximately HK$1.6 million) commission,
management fee and other charges from the CTF Shanghai under the
2007 CTF SH Consignment, and such sum was within the annual cap
of around RMB2.3 million as stated in the Company's announcement
dated 7th September, 2007.

During the period from 1st September, 2009 to 31st December,
2009, the Shanghai Ongoing received a total of around RMBE31,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$716,000) commission, management
fee and other charges from the CTF Shanghai under the 2009 CTF
SH Consignment, and such sum was within the cap of RMB905,000
as stated in the Company’s announcement dated 22nd September,
2009.

As mentioned in previous paragraph, CTF is a connected person of
the Company and its associate, CTF Shanghai, is also deemed to be
a connected person to the Company. Thus, both the 2007 CTF SH
Consignment and 2009 CTF SH Consignment constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company.
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Connected transactions (ontinued)

iR AT

(A) Continuing connected transaction (continued) () FHEBERS(E)
(iv) Leasing of the premises for the Sogo Tsimshatsui Store i) RPESEXEVERS
Sogo HK, as tenant, entered into a lease agreement on 24th SHEBBIEAAFERREERER AT
February, 2005, with Hong Kong Island Development Limited (*HK (IBEEN)EAEEZTR_ZEZRF_A
Island™), as landlord, for the leasing of ground floor and podium —+ AT AERHZE - BNAERDE
1 and the entire podium 2 of The Amazon at No. 12 Salisbury T EFE1298 R I @M T 5 - HE
Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon to Sogo HK for a term of 15 years 128D RERE B TS ESE - A
commencing from 30th September, 2005 ( “Lease”), at a turnover —ZETRFNAZTHBFAHAGEF
rent based on sales generating within the leasing premises of 6% (THHD])  =EABIREREDENRN
for the 1st to the 10th year and 7% for the 11th to the 15th year. ELEvHEBEYNEEEHe  FHEH
Details of terms inter alia, the annual cap, management fee, charges ANEI1Z10F A6%  MBINZE15FHA
etc., for the Lease were disclosed in the Company’s circular dated 7% o FAAEESIS(BIEERE LR - &
11th March, 2005; and were subsequently approved by independent BE WEHZINARABHA-ZTZT
shareholders on 29th March, 2005. The Company announced on 9th AF=A+—BzZBHAEE  HER
April, 2008 that the annual caps of the rental were renewed for the :%?%EEEEH - +j1 HES B AR R
coming three financial years starting from year 2008. During the HofE o AR —EEN\FHANRE
Year, a total of HK$49.2 million of rental, air-conditioning charges, ﬁﬁ%%ﬁm_ =L )\iﬁﬁﬁé&{% & B4 R
management fees, government rates and other outgoings were paid FEZHEFE LR - RAFE » 2%
by the Sogo HK, and such sum was within the annual cap of HK$64.2 % BEXfNE ,\49 200,000 e A
million as stated in the Company’s announcement dated 9th April, & RRE -BEB - BNEMEHEAM
2008. Y  BRSENTARFGBEREA-E
ZNFEMNANBZAMGERATHZFE L
[ 64,200,000/ L2 #ER °
This Lease is negotiated as at an arm'’s length with general RERLYODIERAFRA T E—REEE
commercial terms. This leased premise is occupied by the Group FEER - MEMERAEEWGR - IR
for its necessary operation of the TST lifestyle department store in ‘% EFEENEADHKSLE B EERN
Kowloon side. AR ©
HK Island is a subsidiary of New World Development Company EE AT RERAR AR ([ Ht A3k
Limited (“NWD") which is an associate of the CTF. As the CTF is a B ZHWBAR St RERAASAX
connected person of the Company, the Lease constitutes a continuing RBZHEA - BRAXKBAKATZE
connected transaction of the Company. BALT  FEt  BOBRAREZFHE
(v) General cleaning and pest control services for Sogo Tsimshatsui Store W)  ERDIERNER RS SENERAE—
and Sogo CVUB Store BEZRESBRE
On 27th March, 2008, Sogo HK entered into a cleaning services RZBENF=A=++tH EXEE
agreement with Pollution & Pratection Services Limited (‘PPS™) EER S REER AT ([EEBES5])

for the provision of general cleaning and pest control services for
its Sogo Tsimshatsui Store (“Sogo TST Store”) for a period of 1
year commencing from 8th January, 2008 (“2008 TST Cleaning
Agreement”). Upon expiry of this agreement, on 14th January,
2009, Sogo HK and PPS entered into a new agreement (‘2009 TST
Cleaning Agreement”) to renew the said services for the aforesaid
services for a period of another two years. Details of agreements
were announced by the Group on 7th April, 2008 and 14th January,
2010.

On the same day (27th March, 2008), Sogo HK also entered into
another cleaning agreement with PPS for the provision of general
cleaning and pest control services for the Sogo CWB Store for a
period of 1 year commencing from 8th January, 2008 (*2008 CWB
Agreement”).

General cleaning and pest control services are required for operation
of both stores. PPS was selected to provide such services through
tendering processes which selections were based on quoted service
fees, qualification and job references of the tenderees. As such,

PPS was selected amaong the tenderers after the normal tendering
processes at normal commercial practice and negotiation.
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Connected transactions (ontinued)
(R) Continuing connected transaction (continued)

General cleaning and pest control services for Sogo Tsimshatsui Store
and Sogo CWB Store (continued)

During the period from 1st January, 2009 to 7th January, 2009,

a total services fees of HK$242,000 was paid by Sogo HK under
the 2008 TST Consignment Agreement & CWB Consignment
Agreement, and such sum was within the cap of HK$282,000 as
stated in the Company’s announcement dated 9th April, 2008.

During the period from 8th January, 2009 to 31st December, 2009,
HK$3.3 million services fee was paid by Sogo HK under the 2009
TST Agreement, and such sum was within the cap of around HK$3.7
million as stated in the Company’s announcement dated 14th
January, 2009.

PPS, a subsidiary of NWD which is in turn an associate of CTF, is

a connected person of the Company. Thus, the aforesaid cleaning
agreements together with the 2008 CWB Agreement all constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company.

Jewellery Dealership Agreement at Suzhou Jiuguang Store

On 14th January, 2009, the Group’s 100% owned Ongoing (Suzhou)
Department Store Limited (“Suzhou Ongoing”) entered into a
dealership agreement with EAIEKE S 77 (# M) BRE AR (‘CTF
Suzhou”) for the consignment arrangement of a retailing counter

of approximately 102 sg.m. on the first floor of Suzhou Jiuguang
Store for selling of fine jewellery under the brand names of “f&X4&"
or “Chow Tai Fook” commencing from 16th January, 2009 to 31st
August 2010 (the “2009 Suzhou CTF Consignment”). Under the
agreement, the Suzhou Ongoing would receive a monthly commission
charging on the certain percentages of the gross turnover at the said
counter, subject to a monthly minimum commission of RMB51,000.

In the ordinary course of business of the Group, the Group entered
into the 2009 Suzhou CTF Consignment with the CTF Suzhou as
the merchandises being sold at the said counter can enhance the
product mix of the available merchandises in our Suzhou Jiuguang
Store and can fulfill the Group’s customers’ demand.

During the period from 16th January, 2009 to 31st December,
2009, Suzhou Ongoing received commission, management fee
and other charges for RMB556,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$631,000) from the CTF Suzhou under the 2009 Suzhou CTF
Consignment, and such sum was within the annual cap of around
RMB1.6 million as stated in the Company’s announcement dated
14th January, 2008.

As mentioned in previous paragraph, CTF is a connected person of

the Company, and its associate, CTF Suzhou, is also deemed to be

a connected person to the Company; as such the 2009 Suzhou CTF
Consignment constitutes a continuing connected transaction of the
Company.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT & % A &

Connected transactions (ontinued)
(R) Continuing connected transaction (continued)

(vii)

\Watches Dealership Agreement at the Suzhou Jiuguang Store

On 22nd September, 2009, the Suzhou Ongoing entered into another
dealership agreement with the CTF Suzhou for a consignment
arrangement of a retailing counter of approximately 590.1 sg.m. on
the first floor of Suzhou Jiuguang Stare for exhibiting and selling of
watches commencing from 29th April, 2009 to 28th February, 2012
(the “2009 Suzhou Watches Consignment”). Under the arrangement,
the Suzhou Ongoing would receive a monthly commission charging

on certain percentages of the gross turnover at the said counter,
subject to a monthly minimum commission of RMB147,525.

In the ordinary course of business of the Group, the Group entered
into the 2009 Suzhou Watches Consignment with the CTF Suzhou
as the merchandises being sold at the said counter can enhance the
product mix of the available merchandises in our Suzhou Jiuguang
Store and can fulfill the Group’s customers’ demand.

During the period from 29th April, 2009 to 31st December, 2009,
Suzhou Ongoing received commission, management fee and other
charges for RMB783,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$889,000)
from the CTF Suzhou, and such sum was within the cap of around
RMB2.6 million as stated in the Company’s announcement dated
22nd September, 2009.

As mentioned in previous paragraph, the CTF is a connected person
of the Company and its associate, the CTF Suzhou, is also deemed
to be a connected person to the Company; as such the 2009
Suzhou Watches Consignment constitutes a continuing connected
transaction of the Company.

WWatches Dealership Agreement at Shanghai Jiuguang Store

On 23rd November, 2009, the Shanghai Ongoing entered into a
dealership agreement with the CTF Shanghai for a consignment
arrangement of a retailing counter of approximately 12 sg.m. on
the second floor of the Shanghai Jiuguang Store for exhibiting and
selling of watches for a period of 2 years commencing from 25th
September, 2009 (the “2009 Shanghai Watches Consignment”).
Under the arrangement, the Shanghai Ongoing would receive

a monthly commission charging on certain percentages of the
gross turnover at the said counter, subject to @ monthly minimum
commission of RMB14,400.

As mentioned in previous paragraph, the CTF Shanghai, is a
connected person to the Company; and thus the 2009 Shanghai
Watches Consignment constitutes a continuing connected
transaction of the Company. The above transaction falls into “de
minimis transaction” within the Listing Rules.
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Connected transactions (ontinued)
(B) Connected transaction

Increases in Equity Interests in Lifestyle Plaza (Suzhou) Co. Limited
On 20th July, 2009, the Group’s 100% owned Charm Wave

Limited (“Charm Wave”) entered into an equity interest transfer
agreement with Suzhou Harmany Development Group Co., Ltd
(*Suzhou Harmony”) in relation to the acquisition of a further 4%
interest in Lifestyle Plaza (Suzhou) Co. Limited (“Suzhou Plaza”) at a
consideration of RMB32.32 million (“Suzhou Acquisition Agreement”).
After the completion of this transaction on 4th September, 2009,
the Group’s total equity interest held under the Charm Wave in the
Suzhou Plaza was increased to 80%.

On 31st December, 2009, the Group’s 100% owned Lifestyle (China)
Investment Co., Ltd. (“Lifestyle China”) entered into another equity
interest transfer agreement with the Suzhou Harmony in relation to
the acquisition of the remaining 20% interest under Suzhou Harmony
in the Suzhou Plaza at a consideration of RMB142.9 million. After
the completion of this transaction, the Group's total equity interest in
the Suzhou Plaza had increased to 100% through the 80% interest
held by the Charm Wave and 20% interest held by Lifestyle China.

The total increases in equity interest to 100% as mentioned above
were in accordance to the original plan and commitment of the
Group as disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 24th
January, 2007, when the Group first entered into the Joint Venture
Agreement with the Suzhou Harmony as announced.

After the completion of the series of equity interest acquisition, the
Group had achieved 100% control in the Suzhou Plaza for which the
Group'’s Jiuguang Suzhou Store is accommaodating. As the above
acquisitions involved the Suzhou Harmony which being a substantial
shareholder of the Group’s non-wholly-owned subsidiary at the time,
these series of transactions constitute connected transactions of the
Company.

Disposal of Ample Sun Group Limited

On 16th December, 2009, the Group’s 100% owned Win Early
Limited (“Win Early”) had entered, together with Smart Success
Investment Limited (*Smart Success”) as joint vendors, into a
conditional sale and purchase agreement with GS China Shopping
No. 1 GmbH & Co. KG (“GS China”), as purchaser, to dispose of
their respective 60% and 40% equity interests in Ample Sun Group
Limited (“Ample Sun”) to the GS China, at a total consideration of
around RMB521 million (equivalent to HK$593.9 million), subject
to adjustment (the “Disposal”). Details of the transactions were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company on 16th December,
2009.

Approval from independent shareholders of the Company was
obtained at the Company's extraordinary general meeting held on
1st February, 2010, which was convened in accordance to the
Company’s circular dated 6th January, 2010, having details of all the
terms and conditions of the said transaction stated thereon.
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Connected transactions (ontinued)
(B) Connected transaction (continued)

Disposal of Ample Sun Group Limited (continued)
At this moment, the transaction is still subject to certain conditions
to be fulfilled on or before 30th April, 2010.

The Ample Sun is an investment holding vehicle with its major asset
being the 48% equity interest in Hebei Future Mall Company Limited
(the “PRC Enterprise”) which operates and owns the Shijiazhuang
Future Mall. The Future Mall is an up-scale shopping complex having
162,151 sq.m retailing space and accommaodating various retail
outlets. Having considered the Group's effective interest in the PRC
Enterprise is only 48% before the disposal and is a minority without
controlling stake, the Group had decided to dispose of this passive
investment and intended to deploy the proceeds to be received

for alternative purpose so as to enhance a better utilization of the
Group’s asset.

The Smart Success is a controlling shareholder having 40%
shareholding in both the Ample Sun and Wingold Limited (“Wingold™),
another 60% owned subsidiary of the Group. Under Rule 14A.13(1)(b)
of the Listing Rules, the disposal constitutes a connected transaction
of the Company, as in the course of disposing the interest, the Smart
Success, being one of the partners in the transaction as vendor, is
also a “controller” (within the meaning of the Listing Rules) by having
40% shareholding in the Wingold.

Furthermore, both Mr. Thomas Lau, the Managing Director of

the Company and his wife, Madam Hung, are parties specific to
certain arrangements, in which Madam Hung had disposed of her
80% equity interest together with related shareholder loan in a
company, namely Wise Move Group Limited, to Dr. Zheng Cong, an
individual, under a separate sales and purchase agreement dated
15th December, 2009 (the “Wise Mave Transfer”). Mr. Thomas
Lau, representing the Board, is also responsible for the negotiation
of the Disposal. In view of the relationships among Mr. Thomas Lau,
Madam Hung, the individual and the GS China in connection with
the Wise Move Transfer, with details as disclosed in the Company’s
circular dated 6th January, 2010 therein, these aforementioned
persans are all deemed to be connected persons of the Company
under Rule 14A.11(4])(a) of the Listing Rules. And the Disposal
constitutes a connected transaction to the Company.

Financial Assistance to Hebei Kuyuan Investment Company Limited

On 11th February, 2010, Win Early and Smart Success entered

into a debt transfer agreement with Hebei Xuyuan Investment
Company Limited (“Hebei Xuyuan”) whereby they had, on a several
basis, assumed the liabilities to pay 60% (that is, RMB207.9 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$237 million)) and 40% (that is,
RMB138.6 million (equivalent to approximately HK$158 million)) of
the account payable owing by Hebei Xuyuan to ja/it 5% X T Eih 2=
AR S LA T (Xiantianxia”) in the total sum of RMB346.5 million.
The total sum was being the total consideration payable by Hebei
Xuyuan for (a) the transfer of the 100% equity interest of Beijing
Huitong RunXin Trading Company Limited (“Beijing Huitong”) from
Xiantianxia to Hebei Xuyuan in the sum of RMB100 million; and (b)
the transfer to Hebei Xuyuan the account receivable owing by Beijing
Huitong in the sum of RMB246.5 million respectively.
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Connected transactions (ontinued)
(B) Connected transaction (continued)
(xi) Financial Assistance to Hebei Xuyuan Investment Company Limited

(continued)
Hebei Xuyuan is an investment holding company and the assumption
by Win Early and Smart Success of the liabilities, on a several basis,
of the accounts payable provides the financial resources to facilitate
settlement of the total consideration for Hebei Xuyuan.

Smart Success is a connected person of the Company by virtue

of being a substantial shareholder of Ample Sun and Wingold. As
Wingold is owned as to 40% by Smart Success, Wingold and its
subsidiaries (including Hebei Xuyuan) are associates of Smart
Success and are thus connected persons of the Company. The
assumption by Win Early of the liabilities to pay 60% of the account
payable owing by Hebei Xuyuan to Xiantianxia constitutes financial
assistance by Win Early to Hebei Xuyuan.

Remuneration policy
The remuneration policy of the Group is set on basis of the employees’ merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments package of the Directors of the Company are reviewed and
concluded by the Remuneration Committee, with consideration to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to Directors
and eligible employees, details of the scheme is set out under the section
headed “Share Option Schemes” above.

Competing business interests of Directors

Save as disclosed below, as at 31st December, 2009, none of the Directors nor
their respective associates had any interest in a business which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with any business of the Group.

As at 31st December, 2009, CTF, of which the family members of Daté Dr.
Cheng Yu-tung (including Dato6 Dr. Cheng Yu-tung himself and Dr. Cheng Kar-
shun, Henry, both non-executive Directors of the Company) had controlling
interests, owned about 38.61% of the issued share capital of New World
Development Company Limited (Stock Code: 0017) (*NWD”) which in turn
owned about 72.29% of the issued share capital of New World Department
Store China Limited (Stock Code: 0825) ("NWDS"). Both NWD and NWDS are
companies whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
NWDS, which was founded in 1993 and listed in July 2007 currently operates
and/or manages a department store business selling merchandise, from direct
purchase and through concessionaire counters. As at 31st December, 2009,
NWDS operated and managed 33 department stores with an aggregate gross
floor area of about 1,063,470 square metres in seventeen cities in the PRC
(namely Wuhan, Shenyang, Wuxi, Harbin, Tianjin, Ningbo, Beijing, Shanghai,
Dalian, Kunming, Lanzhou, Taizhou, Chongging, Changsha, Chengdu, Anshan and
Nanjing). As such, the business of NWDS may compete directly or indirectly
with the business of the Group in the PRC.

Datd Dr. Cheng Yu-tung is not a director of, and is not involved in the daily
operations of, NWDS. Dr. Cheng Kar-shun, Henry, chairman and non-executive
director of NWDS, also is not involved in the day-to-day operations of NWDS.
The management of NWDS and the management of the Group are separate.
The executive directors of NWDS do not participate in the management and
operations of the business of the Group. In relation to NWD, two of its directors,
Dat6 Dr. Cheng Yu-tung and Dr. Cheng Kar-shun, Henry, are also the Non-
executive Directors of the Company and being Non-executive Directors, it is not
intended that they will participate in the daily operations and management of the
Group.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT & % A &

Purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s securities
During the Year, the Company repurchased 12,456,500 ordinary shares from
the market through The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) at an aggregate consideration of approximately HK$91 million.
The share repurchase was effected by the Board for the enhancement of
shareholders’ value and details of which are as follows:

BE - REXHBEFLEAL

RAFER - A2 7 B4R & %791,000,0007% T
BREBBARIGIARAA([BZAT])BEE
12,456,500 EimA% - EHBIELRDEER T AR

BIRRNE - BEFENT

Total number of Highest Lowest
ordinary shares price paid price paid Aggregate
Month of the repurchase repurchased per share per share consideration
HK$ HK$ HK$'000
BB mEER R =R
BE A5 By BaE BIEE BRE
FETT BT FHET
January 2009
—ETNF—H 5,400,000 7.88 6.02 35,759
April 2009
ZZETNFMNA 4,424,000 7.50 7.04 32,253
May 2009
—ETNFEA 2,632,500 9.02 7.63 22,987
12,456,500 9.02 6.02 90,999

All of the shares repurchased during the Year were cancelled on delivery of the
share certificates and the nominal value of such cancelled shares was credited

to capital redemption reserve and paid out from the Company’s retained profits,

and the relevant premium of approximately HK$90,937,000 was paid out from
the Company’s share premium.

Saved as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company during
the Year.

Pre-emptive rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles
although there are no restrictions against such rights under the laws in the
Cayman Islands.

Employees
As at 31st December, 2009, the Group had a total of about 1,000 employees

in Hong Kong and 1,400 employees in the PRC. Staff costs (excluding directors’

emoluments) including employees’ share option charges of HK$23.1 million
(2008: HK$31 million) amounted to HK$294.5 million (2008: HK$272.8
million). The Group ensures that the pay levels of its employees are competitive
according to market trend and its employees are rewarded on a performance
related basis within the general framework of the Group’s salary and bonus
system. During the Year, a total of 20,400,000 (2008: Nil) new share options
were granted to certain employees of the Group with an exercise price of
HK$6.40 per share in replacement of the options previously granted to them in
2007 with an exercise price of HK$18.50 per share.
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Major customers and suppliers

The Group is principally involved in retail business. The five largest customers
and the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for less than 30% of the
Group’s turnover and purchases respectively during the Year.

Sufficiency of public float
Based on information available to the Company and within the knowledge of the
Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued share capital was held by

the public as of the date of this report.

Charitable donations
During the Year, the Group made charitable and other donations amounting to
HK$241,000 (2008: HK$3.6 million).

Event after the reporting period
Details of event after the reporting period are set out in note 47 to the financial
statements.

Auditors

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to reappoint
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Lau Luen-hung, Thomas
Managing Director

9th March, 2010
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BEARES

Deloitte.
= 2]

TO THE MEMBERS OF LIFESTYLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Lifestyle International
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to

as the “Group”) set out on pages 956 to 132, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31st December, 2009, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial

statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true
and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing
and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about

the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and true and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group as at 31st December, 2009 and of the Group’s
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

Sth March, 2010
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BRedar sk

for the year ended 31 December 2009 #E —ZENF+-A=+—HILFE

2009 2008
—EZhEF ZEENF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
FeE FExT FAT
Turnover et 7 3,756,208 3,521,633
Cost of sales SHEE R A 7 (1,625,231) (1,545,203)
Gross profit EF 2,130,977 1,976,430
Other income =N 9 203,939 76,675
Selling and distribution costs SHE R IHARAR (807,70%) (653,232)
Administrative expenses TR (273,395) (269,438)
Investment income BEUWA 10 48,355 148,677
Fair value changes on investment properties % &) % N F(EE 178,756 176,030
Share of profit of a jointly controlled entity el —R RS E L= A 12,341 8,250
Discount arising on acquisition of associates ~ UkBERGL A FIEA 2 42 - 207,577
Share of profits (losses) of associates FE(HEE SR BNEF (E518) 25,360 (1,605)
Reversal of (provision for) impairment loss on  fE L & 50k {E B 18 (o)
loan receivable (#45) 29(b) 18,180 (276,615)
Finance costs BB A (X (38,366) (68,112)
Profit before taxation AR BT ) 1,498,442 1,324,637
Taxation Fi1g 12 (303,547 (265,491)
Profit for the year AR 13 1,194,895 1,059,146
Other comprehensive income HanZ2mEUgA
Exchange differences arising on translation BN ETRRSE L 2
of foreign operation &N =58 28,488 120,638
Share of exchange differences of associates TE(GEt &N TIE =58 3,861 5,810
Share of exchange difference of a jointly JEIE—RERIEHIERE
controlled entity b 5 =%E 1,403 11,366
Transfer of properties to investment
properties BYEEREREYE
— surplus on revaluation —EHAH 159,948 -
— deferred tax relating to revaluation surplus — Bl EHRMZELERIA (39,987) -
Change in fair value for available-for-sale
investments A HERE AT EEE (18,487) (3,538)
Exchange differences release upon disposal HE—RMB AR
of a subsidiary BE 2= R % o] 42 - (2,213)
Reclassification upon impairment of Al E R E R ER
available-for-sale investments ER-ibax | 18,4817 3,538
Other comprehensive income for the year RNEEHMmEEmUA
(net of tax) (HIBRFi1E) 153,713 135,601
Total comprehensive income for the year AEEEMIBRAELE 1,348,608 1,194,747
Profit for the year attributable to: REFEEERT)
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZ SN 1,142,468 927,226
Minority interests DB R RES 52,421 131,920
1,194,895 1,059,146
Tatal comprehensive income attributable to: FE(E 2 EURALEEE -
Owners of the Company RATER A 1,294,136 1,048,846
Minority interests DEIR R RERS 54,472 145,901
1,348,608 1,194,747
Earnings per share gRAR
— basic —HR 16 HK$0.6849 HK$0.5452
— diluted — s 16 HK$0.6812 HK$0.5429
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

2% o0 H R &

at 31 December 2009 M —ZEZNE+-A=+—H

2009 2008
—EEAE ZZT)\F
NOTES HK$°000 HK$'000
P 7E FHET FHET
Non-current assets EMBEE
Investment properties A E 17 1,411,108 363,940
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENEE 18 3,895,014 3,890,636
Prepaid lease payments TERHERIE 19 1,407,190 1,306,558
Long-term deposits paid BN RS 20 237,391 12,496
Interests in associates RBEE N RIS 21 720,442 1,123,805
Interest in a jointly controlled entity RN—R AR T ez 22 502,298 488,554
Deferred tax assets BRI E E 35 - 1,855
Available-for-sale investments At HERE 23 9,688 28,175
Financial assets designated at fair value
through profit or loss BAFEFABGE CREE 24 - 342,412
Club debenture HES 10,756 1,350
8,193,887 7,559,781
Current assets MENVE B
Inventories FE 25 60,513 62,582
Prepaid lease payments JENEERE 19 9,952 7,074
Trade and other receivables TE U B T N Efh FE U 5B 26 163,924 142,027
Amount due from a jointly controlled entity FEUL— =R HE R 6 B 22 ZuE 27 417,484 24,146
Held for trading investments HIEEERE 28 341,457 68,447
Loans receivable eI E TR 29 157,583 258,718
Pledged bank deposits EHEMIRITFER 30 120,203 -
Bank balances and cash RITEGFRES 31 2,769,490 2,439,443
3,670,606 3,002,437
Assets classified as held for sale PERFELEZEE 32 436,909 -
4,107,515 3,002,437
Current liabilities mBAE
Trade and other payables FEBE 3 K2 ELfh FE S 3R 33 2,145,163 1,448,312
Tax payable FESTRIR 114,084 89,350
Bank borrowings — due within one year RITHEE - —ERNT|H 34 1,043,290 592,100
3,302,537 2,129,762
Net current assets mEAEFE 804,978 872,675
8,998,865 8,432,456
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION #7 & 81 7 k&

at 31 December 2009 N —ZETHEF+-A=+—H

2009 2008
—EThE ZEENF
NOTES HKS'000 HK$ 000
FEE FET FEIT
Non-current liabilities ERBAE
Bank borrowings — due after one year RITIEE ——F1E 55 34 2,143,430 2,426,000
Deferred tax liabilities EEFRIBEEE 35 168,983 73,144
Other payable Hoth FE (S 5RIE 36 - 60,000
Amount due to a minority shareholder EN—RHBAR—BLER
of a subsidiary W ¢ 37 3,445 18,329
2,315,858 2,577,473
6,683,007 5,854,983
Capital and reserves BRI
Share capital &N 38 8,368 8,370
Reserves B 6,113,101 5,169,342
Equity attributable to owners of the Company NARER AELER 6,121,469 5,177,712
Minarity interests DEB R 561,538 877,271
6,683,007 5,854,983
The consolidated financial statements on pages 56 to 132 were approved and FEERIREAEMBREREESTRN _T—FTF
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 9th March, 2010 and are ZANBHERBERE  Wh NINESEAERE
signed on its behalf by: =
Lau Luen-hung, Thomas EE ]
Managing Director BT Doo Wai-hoi, William A EE

Executive Director HITEE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BRenE2HE

for the year ended 31 December 2009 #HZE — %

FAFTA=Z+—HLLFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FATREAEEDS
Capital Rsset Share-hased
Share Share redemption  revaluation Exchange payment  Investment Retained Minority
capital premium Reserve reserie reserie reserie reserie reserve profits Total interests Total
i g §f EAEEGE EEEMRE EiGE RONIRE RERE REE gt HERRER it
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000
T T TR T T T T T T T T T
(Note (40))
(Fieta)
At 1st January, 2008 RZZZ)\E-A-H 8925 2913222 - - 3680 90,995 36,995 - 1603301 4636718 960962 5217680
Exchange differences arising on translation of
foreign operations BERNEREL B EE - - - - - 1080% - - - 1080% 12542 120638
Share of exchange differences of associates  FEEEIANFIEY 28 - - - - - 3486 - - - 3,486 2,324 5810
Sare of exchange difference of ajointly ~ FEE—FERAHIEE
controlled entity EZEE - - - - - 11,366 - - - 11,366 - 11,366
Change in fair value for available-for-sale
nvestments RHERENTESY - - - - - - - 13538) - (3538 - (3538
Exchange differences release upon disposal  (HE—FHBAFBALES
of a subsidiary (note 42) =B (W) - - - - - (1,328) - - - (1,328 (885) 2213
Reclassification upon impairment of
avallable-for-sale investments TRHEREHERENIE - - - - - - - 3538 - 3,538 - 3538
Other comprehensive income for the year R EH2EMRA - - - - - 121620 - - - 1160 13981 135601
Profit for the year TEEEF - - - - - - - - @2 9726 13190 1099146
Total comprehensive income for the year ~~ AFERERALE - - - - - 2160 - - Q7288 1048846 145901 1194747
Recognition of equity-settled share based
payments BARAEERHAH - - - - - - 90,981 - - 90,981 - 90981
Reduction on minority interest upon equity ~ ARIEE RS SR EER
nterests swap (note 42) (Misxde) - - - - - - - - - - 9274) 9274)
Share repurchase fRiEE
- repurchase of shares ~EERA (166) - - - - - - - - (1661 - (168)
~ premilm on repurchase of shares -ERkhE - 19270 - - - - - - - (19270 - 19270
- trangfer -85 - - - 166 - - - - (168) - - -
Evercise and lapse of share options BREETEREN " 15,767 - - - - 4528) - 539 12789 - 12,789
Dividends paic to minority inerests ERATLERERS - - - - - - - - - - 20318 20318
Dividends paid BIEfRE - %88 - - - - - - - 4380 - 43180
At 31st December, 2008 i) \E+=R=+-R 8370 2297533 - 166 3,680 212615 123,448 - 25319 517772 677271 584,983
Exchange differences arising on translation of
foreign operations BERISRELCERZE - - - - - %738 - - - 26738 1750 28488
Share of exchange diferences of associates GBS ATIE R EE - - - - - 3566 - - - 3566 % 3861
Share of exchange difference of a jointly & ~FLRIHIEEES
contralled entity 2B - - - - - 1,403 - - - 1,403 - 1,403
Transfer of properties to investment properties ¥ SAZ R &N E
- surplus on revaluation - B[Rk - - - - 153948 - - - - 153948 - 159948
- deferred tax relating to revaluation surglus  — 3B (264 2 EATRR - - - - (39,987) - - - - (39,387) - (39,987)
Change in fair velue for available-for-sale
investments AHERE ATEEY - - - - - - - 118.487) - (18,487) - (18487)
Reclassification upon impairment of
available-for-sale investments HHERERERENIE - - - - - - - 18,487 - 18,487 - 18487
Other comprehensive income for the year A& £ 2EYA - - - - 11991 31,707 - - - 151,668 2,045 153,713
Proft: o the year KEEEH - - - - - - - S M08 102088 52427 11948%
Total compreensive income for theyear ~ AEE 2 EWALE - - - - 1% 3707 - - 1142488 1294136 54472 1,348,608
Recognition of equity-settled share based
payments AREEERDNT - - - - - - 48170 - - 48170 - 48170
Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary llﬁl?% FHBARZEoMES - - - - - - - - - - (149164 (149164)
Share repurchase R EE
- repurchase of shares ~BERA 621 - - - - - - - - 621 - 621
~ premilm on repurchase of shares -EEkRhEE - (093 - - - - - - - 9083 - (9093
~ transfer -8z - - - 62 - - - - 62) - - -
Erencise and lapse of shere options BIEEAEREN 60 93,882 - - - - (22,237) - 4812 76,517 - 76517
Dividends paid to minority interests ERATLERERS - - - - - - - - - - 21,041 21,041)
Dividends paid BEfRS - (384067 - - - - - - - (384067 - (384067
Transfer of reseres BREE - - 13115 - - - - - (13,115 - - -
At 31st December, 2009 \ZEENFTZA=T-H 8368 131641 13115 208 123,641 244,322 149,381 - 3666003 6121469 961538 6,683,007
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

%AW A% E A

for the year ended 31 December 2009 #E —ZENF+-A=+—HILFE

2009 2008
—EEAE T N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES Rk
Profit before taxation B T3 AT M) 1,498,442 1,324,637
Adjustments for: SIEHATAZ :
Interest income on bank deposits RITFERZFBUA (13,466) (48,011)
Loan interests and other interest income B3R F B R EAF BUA (11,735 (45,163)
Finance costs BhE KA 38,366 68,112
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BEREEITE 200,671 148,731
Release of prepaid lease payments TERTHEHIEE 19,854 4,127
Dividend income from available-for-sale investments Al HERE Z IR B A (3,100) (3,500)
Dividend income from held for trading investments BIEEBERE ZREWA (1,551) (1,564)
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEWE  WEREEEBRB () 84 (54)
Fair value changes in respect of index-linked notes AR EUAM R N B RS N =R
and equity-linked note/held for trading investments/ BEEBERE TTHSMIAZ
derivative financial instruments NFEES (36,990) (53,977)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale investments AHEERE 7 RERE 18,4817 3,538
Change in fair value of investment properties REME 2 N EE (178,756) (176,030)
Share of profit of a jointly controlled entity eI —R RS E L= F (12,341) (8,250)
Share of (profits) losses of associates FE(EEE SRR O F)) EE (25,360) 1,605
Write-down of obsolete inventories EESETE EHIOR 193 1,431
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts RIEBR S 1,800 7,764
Waiver of non-current other payable e H At IR B AT F0E (60,000) -
Share-based payment expense [ 48,1170 90,981
(Reversal of) provision for impairment loss on
loan receivable FEWE FUREETE (B0 B & (18,180) 276,615
Discount arising on acquisition of associates WS A REE ZITE (3,752) (207,577)
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital & i#& & B AIK LB LR E 1,460,836 1,383,415
Decrease (increase) in inventories FERA (M) 1,969 (1,410)
(Increase) decrease in trade and other receivables JE Uk B 2k K% EL th i Wi ol (300 ) SRt (19,642) 47,402
Increase in pledged bank deposits BRI TFFIE N (120,203) -
Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables JE A~ B 0 K% ELAth JE A~ B N GRt A ) 380,672 (51,937)
Cash generated from operations IR AL TR RIS T S 1,703,632 1,377,470
Interest received =Y B 25,201 78,068
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BEEEENEH (165,994) (178,455)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid EHPEPERER (55,254) (41,992)
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded EBRNEBER 141 1,215
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES REXBABREFE 1,507,726 1,236,306
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2009 2008

—ZEENE ZZET)N\F
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
B 7E FHET FHT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BEEE
Purchase of index-linked notes BB R ERE - (195,000)
Purchase of held for trading investments EEFEEERE (571,212) (172,138)
Deposit paid for prepaid lease payment and PRIESHAERIE R UE
acquisition of property, plant and equipment  ¥1% .« ERBED LS - (12,496)
Purchase of prepaid lease payments BEEMNAERE (216 (14,468)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWME  HMEREE (317,397) (760,023)
Purchase of investment property EEINEYE (3,374) (4,061)
Purchase of equity-linked note BE RS RE (67,072 -
Purchase of club debenture BEEMES (9,406) -
Increase in loans receivable TEWE g0 (188,700) (65,615)
Increase in deposit paid for acquisition of WE—RBEARE
an associate (S (236,374) -
Proceeds from early redemption of 1R R B O s S IR BT
index-linked notes B 339,616 -
Proceeds from early redemption of IR R B Ol A e M R IR Py
equity-linked note B 69,750 38,997
Proceeds from disposal of held for
trading investments HERIEEBEIREER 324,151 125,415
(Increase) decrease in amount due from FEUR—RELE RS T2 IE
a jointly controlled entity (i) mE L (23,338) 24,568
Interest received from index-linked notes and ~ ERFE BRI 55 [ BARE S E A 22
equity-linked note 57 B WRLE - 25,190
Interest received from held for
trading investments HEEEIREZBE W A 8,819 769
Interest received from derivative instruments  $74 T A2 B F| &8 - 8,077
Dividend received from available-for-sale
investments AP EREZBRIRE 3,100 3,500
Dividend received from held for
trading investments BHIEEBEREZEHRE 1,551 1,564
Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment HEME - BENRERER - 704
Proceeds from (payment to) settle the derivative
instruments HEHE(ZOITETARSER 2,113 (1,008)
Equity interests swap (net of cash and RREBRNRAMEER S KRS
cash equivalents acquired) ZEY) 42 - (342)
Acquisition of assets (net of cash and WEESE (B FTRER S MES
cash equivalents acquired) ZEY) 41 (11,720) (689,861)
Acquisition of an associate W — R E A7) (573) -
Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary U5 — 5 i BB 7128 MERS (202,439) -
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES BRETHFTABESFEE (882,121 (1,686,228)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 4 & B @i € %

for the year ended 31 December 2009 HE—TTNF+_A=+—HILFE

2009 2008
—EBhE —EE)\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMETE
New bank borrowings raised FEiRITEE 1,579,730 301,800
Exercise of share options TT{E R 76,517 12,789
(Decreaselincrease in amount due to a minority fEff—ZKMB AR —%&
shareholder of a subsidiary DEIRER 7 RIBGRA)En (14,884) 18,329
Repayment of bank borrowings BEIRTEE (1,413,700) (300,000)
Dividends paid EIRTAR R (384,067) (435,186)
Dividends paid to minority shareholders EIRN FAOERERE (21,041) (20,318)
Finance costs paid BfREKA 43,177 (101,641)
Repurchase of ordinary shares i o] @Rk (90,999) (196,436)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMEREMTAR SR (311,621 (720,663)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND HERBSESEYEM
CASH EQUIVALENT CRA) F5 313,984 (1,170,585)
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE DIFFERENCE [EREZER > && 16,063 5,072
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING
OF THE YEAR ENESRESZEY 2,439,443 3,604,956
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF
THE YEAR, REPRESENTING BANK FRESRESEEY -
BALANCES AND CASH METEERES 2,769,490 2,439,443
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BeREB LKA

for the year ended 31 December 2009 &% —ZENF+ - A=+—HILFE

General

The Company is a public listed company incorporated in Cayman Islands as
an exempted company with limited liability and its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”). The Company's
holding and ultimate holding company is Real Reward Limited (“Real
Reward"), a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The addresses
of the registered office and the head office and principal place of business
of the Company are disclosed in the Corporate Information to the annual
report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar,
which is also the functional currency of the Company.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are the operation of “lifestyle”
department stores and other retailing format, and property development
and property holding.

Application of new and revised Hong Kong financial

reporting standards

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and revised
Standards, Amendments and Interpretations (‘new and revised HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants

— 8%
ARRAE—ERASHESEMKL ATRE
ERRARZABLEMAR  HBRHRES
BMAEZXSMARAB ([BZAT]) T - BNH
S BLE ML 2 Real Reward Limited([Real
Reward]) BN AR 2 2% B S 4842 A A ©
ARRARZEMREERAHERARETSE
2t N F RO EERHEE -

FAMBHRUARRRIEEERETIE -

AARBREZRAT  EXEHBARZ
TEET G LR A EER LT
B2 LURNEBRERSEYE -

RAHITABGITERRBH
% a

RAEE  AREEASESES R 2
@802 3] RAG(EER AR B
(13787 RS ST A A R IR ) o

("HKICPA").

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007)
HKAS 23 (Revised 2007)
HKAS 32 & 1 (Amendments)

HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27
(Amendments)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 7 (Amendment)

HKFRS 8

HK(FRIC) — INT 9 & HKAS 39

(Amendments)

HK(FRIC) = INT 13

HK(FRIC) — INT 15

HK(FRIC) - INT 16

HK(FRIC) — INT 18

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

Presentation of financial statements
Borrowing costs

Puttable financial instruments and
obligations arising on liquidation
Cost of an investment in a subsidiary,

jointly controlled entity or associate

Vesting conditions and cancellations

Improving disclosures about financial
instruments
Operating segments

Embedded derivatives

Customer loyalty programmes

Agreements for the construction of real
estate

Hedges of a net investment in a foreign
operation

Transfers of assets from customers

Improvements to HKFRSs issued in
2008, except for the amendment to
HKFRS 5 that is effective for annual
periods beginning or after 1st July,
2009

Improvements to HKFRSs issued in

2009 in relation to the amendment to

paragraph 80 of HKAS 39

BEGHEREIR HHBHREZT
LELERT)
GEOERIFR3R  EHAA
TRLELIEL)
EAGEAERER THESRIANGENESL
EALACH)) ZEfE

BEHMBREE RHBAT - KREHEE
FI1FREEGH BELARZRENE
ERIE79: (55])

BEMBRE LS FRBIRI Kt i
FH(B4T)

BEMBRE LS HBTARE 20
F7H(EET)

BEMBREEE ‘N
£85%

FE(ERR KRS AEMTETA
RELEE) 2R
FORRERGH
FERIE 399 (155])

FE(ERR KRS BERRAIsHE
REREE)-

REF135%

B (ERM KRS HERNE
REREE)-

REZ15%

FE (RGBS HONRER 2 FREETH
REREE)-

REF165

B (ERM SRS BBARPAE
REREE)-

REZ18%

BEMBRELEE 2T\ ERH2 BB
(f&a]) R ZYE - R-TTN

FEA-Ag kAR F
EHREN BEMHRE
ERIZE55E 2 SUER D

BEMBREER —ETNERMBRMER

(37 EERGEEGTENE

393 FB0R 2 AT vk
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 474 81 7% #f 5% I 7E

for the year ended 31 December 2009 HE—TTNF+_A=+—HILFE

Application of new and revised Hong Kong financial

reporting standards (untinue)

Except as described below, the adoption of the new and revised HKFRSs
has had no material effect on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the current or prior accounting periods.

New and revised HKFRSs affecting presentation and disclosure only
HKAS 1 (REVISED 2007) PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) has introduced terminology changes (including
revised titles for the financial statements) and changes in the format and
content of the financial statements.

IMPROVING DISCLOSURES ABOUT FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS 7 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS: DISCLOSURES)
The amendments to HKFRS 7 expand the disclosures required in relation
to fair value measurements in respect of financial instruments which are
measured at fair value. The amendments also expand and amend the
disclosures required in relation to liquidity risk. The Group has not provided
comparative information for the expanded disclosures in accordance with
the transitional provision set out in the amendments.

New and revised HKFRSs affecting the reported results and/or financial
position

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 40 INVESTMENT PROPERTY

As part of Improvements to HKFRSs (2008), HKAS 40 has been amended
to include within its scope properties under construction or development
for future use as investment properties and to require such properties

to be measured at fair value (where the fair value model is used and

the fair values of the properties are reliably determinable). In the past,
the leasehold land and building elements of investment properties under
construction were accounted for separately. The leasehold land element
was accounted for as an operating lease and the building element was
carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. The Group has
used the fair value model to account for its investment properties.

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 40 prospectively from
1st January, 2009 in accordance with the relevant transitional provision.
As a result of the application of the amendment, the Group’s investment
properties under construction acquired as a result of acquisition of a
subsidiary in 2009 have been classified as investment properties and
measured at fair value as at 31st December, 2009, with the fair value gain
HK$114,110,000 and related deferred tax expense of HK$28,527,500.
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Application of new and revised Hong Kong financial
reporting standards (wntinue)

The Group has nat early applied the following new and revised Standards,

Amendments or Interpretations that have been issued but are not yet

effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKAS 24 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 (Amendment)

HKAS 39 (Amendment)

HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

HKFRS 2 (Amendments)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 9

HKIFRIC) - INT 14

(Amendments)

HK(FRIC) — INT 17

HK(FRIC) — INT 19

Amendment to HKFRS 5 as part of
improvements to HKFRSs 2008"

Improvements to HKFRSs 20092
Related party disclosures®

Consolidated and separate financial
statements’
Classification of right issues*

Eligible hedged items’

Additional exemptions for first-time
adopters?®

Limited exemption from comparative
HKFRS 7 disclosures for first-time
adopters®

Group cash-settled share-based
payments transactions3

Business combinations®

Financial instruments”

Prepayments of a minimum funding
requirements

Distributions of non-cash assets to

owners'

Extinguishing financial liabilities with
equity instrument?®

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2009.

2 Amendments that are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2009
and 1st January, 2010, as appropriate.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2010.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st February, 2010.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2010.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2011.

7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2013.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 474 81 7% #f 5% I 7E

for the year ended 31 December 2009 HE—TTNF+_A=+—HILFE

Application of new and revised Hong Kong financial

reporting standards (untinue)

The application of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the accounting for
business combination for which the acquisition date is on or after the
beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after 1st July,
2008. HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect the accounting treatment for changes
in a parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary.

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets and will be effective
from 1st January, 2013, with earlier application permitted. The Standard
requires all recognised financial assets that are within the scope of HKAS
39 “Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement” to be measured
at either amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments

that (i) are held within a business model whose objective is to collect

the contractual cash flows and (ii) have contractual cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost. All other debt investments and
equity investments are measured at fair value. The application of HKFRS
9 might affect the classification and measurement of the Group’s financial
assets.

In addition, as part of Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2009, HKAS 17

Leases has been amended in relation to the classification of leasehold land.

The amendments will be effective from 1st January, 2010, with earlier
application permitted. Before the amendments to HKAS 17, leasees were
required to classify leasehold land as operating leases and presented

as prepaid lease payments in the consolidated statement of financial
position. The amendments have removed such a requirement. Instead, the
amendments require the classification of leasehold land to be based on
the general principles set out in HKAS 17, that are based on the extent to
which risks and rewards incidental to ownership of a leased asset lie with
the lessor or the lessee. The application of the amendments to HKAS 17
might affect the classification and measurement of the Group’s leasehold
land.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of the other

new and revised standards, amendments or interpretations will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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Application of new and revised Hong Kong financial 2. RAHTA/GTABRMER

reporting standards (ontinued) R )

Summary of the effect of the ahoue changes in accounting policies tlETBRE B o ERE

The effect of changes in accounting policies described above on the results e BREFHAFEN FFE 2 EE
for the current and prior year by line items presented in the consolidated EERKIEANGAEERERENNT ¢

statement of comprehensive income is as follows:

Year ended 31st Decemher
BE+-A=1t—HLLFE

2009 2008
ZEERF ZETN\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Increase in fair value gain on revaluation of properties & {4t A& AIER AW E 2 1T
under construction for future use as investment YT A FEWEEEMN (FBRIELT
properties (net of deferred tax) iIE) 85,583 -
Increase in praofit for the year AR N 85,583 -
The effect of the changes in accounting policies described above on the P grREEHEURERNAEE R LF
Group's basic and diluted earnings per share for the current and prior year EERERREERT 2 FEBNT
is as follows:
Impact on basic and diluted earnings per share HEREXRXRBIEIRFZZE
Impact on basic earnings Impact on diluted earnings
per share per share
HEREXRBFZHE HEeERBERFZHE

Year ended 31st Decemher
BZ+=-B=1+—HLLEE

2009 2008 2009 2008
—EThEF ZZT)\F —EThEF ZZT)\F
HK cents HK cents HK cents HK cents
AL Al AL AL
Reported figures before adjustment FARAEE2REB T 0.6336 0.5452 0.6302 0.5429
Adjustment arising from change EAMERKREME Y
in accounting policy in relation BHBEESBEL L
to investment property under R (NBRIELERE)
construction (net of deferred tax) (RHE3)
(see note 3) 0.0513 - 0.0510 -
Reported figures after adjustment FAREEEHRE T 0.6849 0.5452 0.6812 0.5429
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 474 81 7% #f 5% I 7E

for the year ended 31 December 2009 HE—TTNF+_A=+—HILFE

Significant accounting policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain investment properties and financial
instruments, which are measured at fair value, as explained in accounting
policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA.

In addition, the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements
of the Company and entities (including special purpose entities) controlled
by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company
has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so
as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income from the
effective date of acquisition and up to the effective date of disposal, as
appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those used by
other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated
on consolidation.

Minarity interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are
presented separately from the Group's equity therein. Minority interests
in the net assets consist of the amount of those interests at the date of
the original business combination and the minority’s share of changes in
equity since the date of the combination. Losses applicable to the minority
in excess of the minority's interest in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated
against the interests of the Group except to the extent that the minarity
has a binding obligation and is able to make an additional investment to
cover the losses.

Business comhinations

The acquisition of businesses is accounted for using the purchase method.
The cost of the acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair values,
at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed,
and equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to the business combination.
The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liahilities that
meet the conditions for recognition under HKFRS 3 Business Combinations
are recognised at their fair values at the acquisition date, except for
non-current assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations, which are recognised and measured at fair value
less costs to sell.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

Business comhinations (continued)

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and initially
measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the business
combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised. If, after
reassessment, the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of
the business combination, the excess is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is initially measured
at the minority’s proportion of the net fair value of the assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities recognised.

On acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary which result in
acquisition of assets and assumption of liabilities, the excess of the
consideration over the carrying values of the underlying assets and
liahilities attributable to the additional interest acquired is added to the
carrying values of the relevant assets.

Investments in associates

An assaciate is an entity over which the investor has significant influence
and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated

in these consolidated financial statements using the equity method of
accounting except when the investment is classified as held for sale.
Under the equity method, investments in associates are carried in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost as adjusted for
post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the net assets of the
associates, less any identified impairment loss. When the Group’s share
of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in that associate
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part

of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. An additional share of losses is
provided for and a liability is recognised only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of that assaociate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liahilities of the
associate recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as goodwill.
The goodwill is included within the carrying amount of the investment

and is not tested for impairment separately. Instead, the entire carrying
amount of the investment is tested for impairment as a single asset.

Any impairment loss recognised is not allocated to any asset, including
goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount of the investment in the
associate. Any reversal of impairment loss is recognised to the extent that
the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, profits and
losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the relevant
associate.

3.

i 2€dAR@

540 ()

W AR R AEE - AV SRR
HE o AEGA R AREAZERE B
THAEE - BERAAEEATFES B
R R REI G A BRI
W MRAE AERIAREATE
(B2 RSB A DR A - BIREH Bra e

KRR TR

DEBBERABUE T 2 - VT REER
AE  BERIRBERLFFEZ DBER
LePIEtE -

WE—RMBARRIMESGHBBEER
AEEAER - REBD KRB EIMES S
HREENBEZEEEZ ZHENNIEHE
EZBRE(E

REEAR2ZRA
BEARNAREE THRITEEALE

AUHHBARRNAEDE L B2 B
B BEAVERERSRIRAN 2 HHR
BIERS - LI SR SRR SRR -

BERARZEENEELABERAED SR
ERF AR BBHE O BRISIEREZ
BERI - RiBEDDE  REZERBZRE
BREARERE BB ERB BRSBTS
MFRIE - WRAREEEBZE QR EES
B2 WBREEHERTE o WHARERG—
REERNRBBEAERRBHARZE 2R
AlzEz(BRERAXTEENZE SR
AIREFEET D 2 EARMAER) - BIR
SEREEREEE ZE-TER - A%
BESRERMETE R ERRRZEE QA
o e BINEIE B RIFL B A MR
AT -

EfRTUR BB A AN 78 H A 5% [ PR G T UK 8 B B
RZB2RRIABANEE  BELIABE
RPFEZZRRBR/BE - GEBHETA
wEZREEE  BHARAERNRE - 8
R-BEZ2HBEREACHSERE—EEL
TTRERE - EAEHRREER T80 I
REMEE  BEERNBERARRESD
FRESRE 2 EHE - BEEMRERE T AR
B MELART U E 2 R B SRR EL AR 2 SRR

AEBEEETHENEE  BEMKABER
MU A Z EMZRR - EEHFGEAE
IR TR

fHASEBE T BEEEAREE B2 N AT

X5 ARASREEBRBERAR I ERS
PR gH 1R -

NEEREBARAR —FENFFH 69



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 474 81 7% #f 5% I 7E

for the year ended 31 December 2009 HE—TTNF+_A=+—HILFE

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of a separate
entity in which venturers have joint control over the economic activity of
the entity are referred to as jointly controlled entities.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities are
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. Under the equity method, investments in jointly
controlled entities are carried in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s
share of the net assets of the jointly controlled entities, less any identified
impairment loss. When the Group'’s share of losses of a jointly controlled
entity equals or exceeds its interest in that jointly controlled entity

(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part

of the Group’s net investment in the jointly controlled entity), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. An additional share
of losses is provided for and a liability is recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of that jointly controlled entity.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liahilities of the
jointly controlled entity recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as
goodwill. Goodwill is included within the carrying amount of the investment
and is not tested for impairment separately. Instead, the entire carrying
amount of the investment is tested for impairment as a single asset.

Any impairment loss recognised is not allocated to any asset, including
goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount of the investment in the
associate. Any reversal of impairment loss is recognised to the extent that
the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

\When a group entity transacts with a jointly controlled entity of the Group,
profits or losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
jointly controlled entity.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets or disposal groups are classified as held for sale

if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded
as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset (or disposal
group) is available for immediate sale in its present condition.

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) classified as held for sale are

measured at the lower of the assets’ (disposal groups’) previous carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and services
provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts and sales
related taxes.

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are sold and title has been
passed.

Income from concessionaire sales is recognised upon sales of goods by the
relevant shops.

Service income is recognised when services are rendered.

Minimum guaranteed sales commission is recognised in accordance with
terms of contracts.

Interest income from a financial asset including financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investment is recognised when the shareholders’
right to receive payment have been established.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment other than construction in progress are
stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property, plant
and equipment other than construction in progress over their estimated
useful lives and after taking into account of their estimated residual value,
using the straight-line methaod.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and equipment in

the course of construction for production or for its own use purposes.
Construction in progress is carried at cost less any recognised impairment
loss. Construction in progress is classified in the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended use.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment
property because its use has changed as evidenced by end of owner-
occupation, any difference between the carrying amount and the fair value
of that item at the date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in asset revaluation reserve. On the subsequent
sale or retirement of the asset, the relevant revaluation reserve will be
transferred directly to retained profits.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued
use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in the period in
which the item is derecognised.

When the leasehold land and buildings are in the course of development for
production or for administrative purposes, the leasehold land component
is classified as a prepaid lease payment and amortised over a straight-
line basis over the lease term. During the construction period, the
amortisation charge provided for the leasehold land is included as part of
costs of buildings under construction. Buildings under construction are
carried at cost, less any identified impairment losses. Depreciation of
buildings commences when they are available for use (i.e. when they are in
the location and condition necessary for them to be capable of operating in
the manner intended by management).

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair values using
the fair value model. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of investment property are included in profit or loss for the period in which
they arise.

For a transfer from an investment property to an owner-occupied property
as evidenced by commencement of owner-occupation, the fair value of the
property at the date of transfer become the deemed cost of that property.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under construction
are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of the investment properties
under construction. Starting from 1st January, 2009, investment
properties under construction are measured at fair value at the end of the
reporting period. Any difference between the fair value of the investment
properties under construction and their carrying amounts is recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Leasehold land held for undetermined future use

Leasehold land held for undetermined future use is regarded as held for
capital appreciation purpose and classified as an investment property,
and carried at fair value. Changes in fair value of the leasehold land are
recognised directly in profit or loss for the period in which changes take
place.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
profit or loss in the period in which the item is derecognised.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Club debenture
Club debenture is measured at cost less any impairment losses.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.
All other lease are classified as operating leases.

THE GROUP AS LESSOR

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

THE GROUP AS LESSEE

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Group
at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the
lessor is included in the consolidated statement of financial position as a
finance lease obligation. Lease payments are apportioned between finance
charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges
are charged directly to profit or loss.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable
as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are recognised as a
reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

LEASEHOLD LAND AND BUILDING

The land and building elements of a lease of land and building are
considered separately for the purpose of lease classification, unless the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and building
elements, in which case, the entire lease is generally treated as a finance
lease and accounted for as property, plant and equipment. To the extent
the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably, leasehold
interests in land are accounted for as operating leases and amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis except for those that have been
classified and accounted for as investment properties under the fair value
model.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in

which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and

on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss

in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in
profit or loss for the period except for exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses
are recognised directly in other comprehensive income, in which cases, the
exchange differences are also recognised directly in other comprehensive
income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the
assets and liabilities of the Group'’s foreign operations are translated into
the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate
of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their income
and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in exchange reserve. Such translation differences
are reclassified from equity to profit or loss in the period which the foreign
operation is disposed of.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take

a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale
are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liahilities in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and liahilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liahilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, and interests
in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset
to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rate and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement
of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it
relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Inventories

Inventories, which represent merchandise held for resale, are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of merchandise is
determined by the retail method and is computed by reference to the retail
selling price of goods less the average gross profit margins. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position when a group entity becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial
liahilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Financial assets are classified into one of the three categories, including
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (‘FVTPL"), loans

and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financial assets designated at FVTPL, of
which interest income is included in investment income.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL has two subcategories, including financial assets
held for trading and those designated at FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near
future; or

° it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments that the
Group manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-
term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging
instrument.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)

Held for trading investments are measured at fair value, with changes in
fair value arising from remeasurement recognised directly on profit or loss
in the period in which they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on these financial assets.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may be
designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

° such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement
or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

° the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or
financial liahilities or both, which is managed and its performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment strategy, and
information about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

° it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded
derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire combined contract
(asset or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Index-linked notes, equity-linked note

Index-linked notes and equity-linked note are hybrid instruments that
contain embedded derivatives. The Group has designated the index-linked
notes and equity-linked note as “financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss” upon initial recognition in accordance with HKAS 39. Financial
assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with changes in fair value
arising from remeasurement recognised directly in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
includes any dividend or interest earned from the financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed

or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade and
other receivables, pledged bank deposits, loans receivable, bank balances
and cash, and amount due from a jointly controlled entity) are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that
are designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as any of the other
categories. Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value

at the end of the reporting period. Changes in fair value are recognised

in other comprehensive income and accumulated in investment reserve,
until the financial asset is disposed of or is determined to be impaired,

at which time, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investment reserve is reclassified to profit or loss. Any impairment losses
on available-for-sale financial assets are recognised in profit or loss.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators
of impairment at the end of the reporting period. Financial assets are
impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For an available-for sale equity investment, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost is considered to
be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
o default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

o it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables, assets
that are assessed not to be impaired individually are subsequently assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment

for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the
portfolio past the average credit period of less than 30 days, observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with default
on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the
asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment
loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade receivables,
where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the
date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)

Impairment losses for available-for-sale equity investments will not be
reversed through profit or loss in subsequent periods. Any increase in

fair value subsequent to impairment loss is recognised directly in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in investment reserve. For
available-for-sale debt investments, impairment losses are subsequently
reversed if an increase in the fair value of the investment can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest

in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liahilities. Financial
liabilities are classified into financial liabilities at FVTPL and other financial
liabilities. The Group’s financial liabilities comprise of only other financial
liahilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost
of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments (including all fees paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liahility, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition. Interest expense is recognised on an effective
interest basis.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including bank borrowings, trade and other
payables, concessionaire sales payable and amount due to a minority
shareholder of a subsidiary are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs. Repurchase of the Company’s own
equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

DERECOGNITION

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in the
relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid or payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Share-hased payment transactions

The fair value of employee services received in an equity-settled share-
based payment transaction is determined by reference to the fair value
of share options at the grant date. The fair value of employee services
is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share-based payment reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the
revision of the estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to the share-based
payment reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payment reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share based payment reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis
over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the related
costs for which the grants are intended to compensate. Other government
grants are recognised as revenue over the periods necessary to match
them with the costs for which they are intended to compensate, on a
systematic basis. Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they become receivable.

Retirement henefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged as
an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.
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4. Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described
in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimates are revised if the revision affects only that period, or
in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods. The following are estimates that the directors
have made in the process of applying the entity’s accounting policies

and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
consolidated financial statements.

Income taxes

At 31st December, 2009, no deferred tax asset has been recognised on
the tax loss of approximately HK$388.4 million (2008: HK$311.2 million)
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The realisability of the
deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient future assessable
profits or taxable temporary differences will be available in the future. In
cases where the estimated future assessable profits or taxable temporary
difference are maore than previously estimated, a material recognition

of deferred tax assets may arise, which would be recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the period in which
the revised estimate takes place.

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will

be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes the
borrowings disclosed in note 34, cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to equity holders of the Company, comprising issued share
capital, reserves and retained profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a regular
basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital and
the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on recommendations
of the directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure through
the payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as
the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
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5. Capital risk management (continued)
The gearing ratio at the year end was as follows:

RHABELw

REFAZEEMAABLRNAT

2009 2008

—EThE ZEENF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHT FAT

Debt (i) (0] (3,186,720) (3,018,100)
Pledged bank deposits BIIRIRITIER 120,203 -
Cash and cash equivalents HERIRLEEY 2,769,490 2,439,443
Net debt BT 558 (297,027 (578,657)
Equity (i) REZS (D 6,121,469 5,177,712
Net debt to equity ratio B FRB R R 4.85% 11.18%

(i) Debt is defined as long— and short-term borrowings as detailed in
note 34.

(i) Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Group attributable to
owners of the Company.

6. Financial instruments

0 EBzZEEREHMEHES  #FEH
PABTRES4 ©

(i) BWEBRARREEABEAREMA
B A T frt g

bk A

Categories of financial instruments SRITEER
2009 2008
—EThE ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Financial assets EREE
Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) RIEAFEFAER
Financial assets designated at fair value through EEARATEFTABRZ
profit or loss SRVEE - 342,412
Held for trading investments BIEEERE 341,457 68,447
Loans and receivables (including cash and cash BERRERRIE (BEReR
equivalents) IREZEY) 3,225,929 2,845,775
Available-for-sale financial assets AN ESREE 9,688 28,175
Financial liabilities THEE
Amortised cost BEEHAKAN 5,218,162 4,383,102
Financial risk management objectives and policies AR EER N RBER

The Group’s major financial assets and liabilities include bank balances and
cash, pledged bank deposits, available-for-sale investments, index-linked
notes, held for trading investments, loans receivable, trade and other
receivables, trade and other payables, amount due from a jointly controlled
entity, concessionaire sales payable, bank borrowings, other payable and
amount due to a minarity shareholder of a subsidiary. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.
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Financial instruments (ontinues) 6.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
CURRENCY RISK

The functional currency of the Company and its major subsidiaries in
Hong Kong is HK$ in which most of the transactions are denominated.
The functional currency of those subsidiaries operating in PRC is

RMB in which mast of its transactions are denominated. Certain bank
balances of the Group amounting to approximately HK$818,845,000
(2008: HK$194,693,000, all index-linked notes and all available-for-
sale investments are denominated in United States Dollar (‘USD"). The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy as HK$
is effectively pegged to USD. However, the management monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arises.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change of 0.5% in exchange rate of USD against HK$ while all
other variables are held constant. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts
their translation at the end of the reporting period for a 0.5% change in
foreign currency rates.

Adk X A
MEEREER N RBER(E)
ANGE [ fez
RARREBBEBWEBARIZIEREA
B BRRIEDRZUBLEE - )R
B2 MBRARZIGEEEAEARE
ERABOIREGUARELEE - KREESH
F 5 ##49818,845,0008 T ( — BT )\ 4 :
194,693,000 7T ) 2 $R1T 4517 LA I P B B 45
BHNZERABATHEEREGUETE
Ho m%%mﬁiﬁma%f% REER
P I 8 SN SR B BB EG e
SNER - WHRE Hq%fgm¢§ﬁm¢%

ez

T%%W$EIF%ﬁE%iZE?T%
RO IRET  THA o B T2
B 2 BURTE o BB S AT ER AN
BEENIRE - R R BRI B 20.5%
SERBHBEAE -

Year ended 31st Decemher
BE+-ZA=1+—HLEE

2009 2008
—ZENE ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Increase (decrease) in profit for the year FEREFIL I Gl
— if HK$ weakens against USD —fWEB TR ETRE 5,457 3,169
— if HK$ strengthens against USD —fEBTAETAE (5,457) (3,169)

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the
inherent foreign exchange risk as the year end exposure does not reflect
the exposure during the year.

INTEREST RATE RISK

As at 31st December, 2009, the cash flow interest rate risk relates
primarily to the Group’s floating-rate bank deposits, loan receivables and
bank borrowings. Whereas, it related primarily to the Group’s floating-rate
bank deposits, loan receivables, index-linked nates, and bank borrowings
as at 31st December 2008. The interests on the Group’s index-linked
notes were linked with Constant Maturity Swap (CMS) rates. The fair value
interest rate risk relates primarily to fixed-rate bank deposits and loan
receivable as at 31st December 2009, whereas, as at 31st December
2008, it related primarily to fixed-rate bank deposits. The Group currently
does not have an interest rate hedging policy. However, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider hedging significant
interest rate exposure should the need arise. The fair value interest rate
risk on bank deposits is insignificant as the fixed deposits are short-term.
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WAERX -
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84

Financial instruments (ontinued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

INTEREST RATE RISK (continued)

The Group’s sensitivity to cash flow interest rate risk has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for bank borrowings, index-linked
notes, bank deposits and loans receivables at the end of the reporting
period and the reasonably possible change taking place at the beginning of
each year and held constant throughout the year. The Group's sensitivity to
interest rate risk at the end of the reporting period while all other variables
were held constant is as follows:

Anik X B )

B EREE R N RRE(F)

SRR (48)
REEHBS A ERAR 2 QURE - RS
RIS E BRI E « BN E
B BAEREERE R FIERR - AR
REEEDNSBBALNE Y BHTR2E
BETBERE o &L PREETE -
A S A R 4 AR B R R LR U
mF

Year ended 31st Decemher
BE+t=-ZA=1+—HLLEE

2009 2008

—EEAF —EENF

Reasonably possible change in interest rate TRz &1 A geEts) 100 bhasis 100 basis
points points

1001E 2 ¥ 1001EE:F

Year ended 31st December
HE+=-A=1+—HLLEE

2009 2008
—EENF ZEEN\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Increase (decrease) in profit for the year FERSHEFIEMCRA)
— as a result of increase in interest rate — AR E A (1,874) (13,015)
— as a result of decrease in interest rate — FRAFIE & 1,121 4,739
CREDIT RISK 1*§H|3A
The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the —EENFF+ZA=+—H  AEEHRY
counterparties failure to perform their obligations as at 31st December, ? AAREBTEEAMKRSEIICHERS

2009 in relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the carrying
amount of those assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position. In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has formulated a defined fixed credit policy and delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of
each individual trade receivable regularly at the end of the reporting period
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced. Retail sales are mainly on cash
basis, either in cash, debit and or credit card payments. The Group has

no significant concentration of credit risk in relation to trade and other
receivables, with exposure spread over a number of counterparties and
customers.

For loans receivables set out in note 29, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each loan receivable on a regular basis and the
value of pledged assets, if any, to ensure adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts.
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Financial instruments (ontinues) 6.
Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

CREDIT RISK (continued)

The credit risk on liquid funds and index-linked notes is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies and government authority.

PRICE RISK

The Group’s available-for-sale investments and held for trading investments
are measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period. Therefore,
the Group is exposed to security price risk. The management manages
this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments with different risk
profiles. Details of the available-for-sale investments and held for trading
investments are set out in notes 23 and 28 respectively.

The Group’s sensitivity to price risk on the available-for-sale investments
and held for trading investment at the end of the reporting period while all
other variables were held constant is as follows:

bk X B )
ﬂﬁ%ﬁllﬁ‘“fiﬁ B R B (158)

=& R ()

mmﬁiﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁg
R RIT RBUTHE - BB E S kB
BHAZRZ ERERRER

S

AEBEAHEERE RFEEREDRE
SHEAEER ZAFERE - Bt A%E
EHRAZESERER - EEEEBERA
TREARZIKEEE AEREHRAR - Al
HERERFIEEERE 2 FED BIFNH
12328 -

FEEMESERFTET  REER SRS I
HEAHAHREERENFIEEERE 2B
RERBRELT

HK$'000
FAT
2009 —ETHhE
Reasonably possible change in price Bz s B st 1%
Increase (decrease) in profit for the year FRRAILMORD)
— as a result of increase in price — B RAEIE IS N 3,511
— as a result of decrease in price —AREERD (3,511)
2008 —EENE
Reasonably possible change in price BIgZ AlpE A IR 1%
Increase (decrease) in profit for the year FREFIGINCHD)
— as a result of increase in price — EBREBRIE 855
— as a result of decrease in price — BB (B55)
LIQUIDITY RISK MEE ® E R

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains
a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations
in cash flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings
and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant source of liquidity.
As at 31st December, 2009, the Group has available unutilised borrowing
facilities of approximately HK$798 million (2008: HK$1,281 million).
Details of which are set out in note 34.

RERRBES R - NEEER MR
ERERRSRNBNARERBAHEERK
FzHR2RREEEY  WRERSREN

FE -BEERERRRITEEZEMR  BR
EFESRRE

REBKSRITEBEASZENRBES K
BeR-_EZNE+-_A=+—H  Xx&EH
2 ARIRERITIE B Rt B %8)E A49798,000,000
BT (—ZZ)\4F ¢ 1,281,000,000567T)  5F
IBE I FESS -
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Financial instruments (ontinued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

LIQUIDITY RISK (continued)

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual maturity

for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. The table includes
estimated interest payment based on interest rate at the end of the
reporting date and principal cash outflows.

Liguidity and interest risk tables

WWeighted

average

effective
interest rate Less than
EFH 1 month
ERAE AR

6. B Ly
B EREER O RKE ()
mENE & R (E)
TE A AEEETE B E HE T A D5
$A o TENRBAEETERERERY
B2AY LLREMYFEBERLAER
R FEEHIIRRBEHMEE R FIx
RESHS R B FIS 5 -

RBED R ERRR

Carrying

amount at

31.12.2009

3 months RZBBNETZ

1 -3 months tolyear 1-5years Adjustments B=t-8
-2=ff <=fRE-% ik Eikd ZBAE

% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKk$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TR TR TR THT
2009 “EENE
Non-derivative financial liabilities KL eBAR
Trade and other payables R R RE hEMTE - 812,610 55,607 1,159,780 - - 2,021,997
Bank borrowings - variable rate FTEE—7EF|% 2.83 3,115 11,145 1,013,014 2,224,985 (126,139) 3,186,720
Amount due to a minority shareholder of ERt—FRHBLR
a subsidiary —RPBRE 2R - - - - 3,045 - 3,045
816,325 66,752 2,232,794 2,228,430 (126,139) 5,218,162
Weighted Carrying
average amount at
effective 31.12.2008
interestrate Less than 3 months it
MEFY 1'month 1 -3 months tolyear 1-Syears Adjustments +ZA=-E
vk —fAR —Z=f@R =fRZ-% —ZRF HE LEAE
% Hk$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
Tt THr Tt THL Tt T
2008 —EENE
Non-derivative financial liabilities FTELRERE
Trade and other payables ERERREMENTIE - 545091 33428 708,154 - - 1,286,673
Bank borrowings - variable rate BITIRE - FEHE 435 8,178 24,534 657,926 2571547 (243685 3,018,100
Other payeble AR R - - - - 60,000 - 60,000
Amount due to a minority shareholder of EN—FHELH
a subsidiary —ZVERR TR - - - - 18,329 - 18,329
553,269 57,962 1365680 2,649,876 (243,685 4,383,102

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments for non-
derivative financial liabilities is subject to change if changes in variable
interest rates differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at the
end of the reporting period.
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Fair value

follows:

Financial instruments (ontinued) 6. B A w
AFE
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as SREENSREBGBEZ AFEEENT ¢
e the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities with standard o MIEEEERRIEETREERBTS
terms and conditions and traded on active liquid markets are EEZeREEREREBBEZATET
determined with reference to quoted market bid prices and ask PRIZERBETSBEABLELEE
prices respectively; and TR
the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities are HEhtmEEATRBEZAFETIZ
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models NRETERS  HABRBEEmEMS
based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices or rates from THRZGEMRAEIAERE ZERS
observable current market transactions and dealer quotes for similar FEBIR VIR REDITET ©
instruments.
The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and SE2RE HEBEKARGEAVERR AR
financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial 2EmEERSHBERAERENFEM
statements approximate to their fair values. H e
Fair value measurements recognised in the statement of financial position R BRARER 2 A EFTE
The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are TREHRVIUATFEEREFEZ2ERT
measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped into Aot ERABRAFERES A —ZF=
Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is observable. o
Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted o FE—HAFEFEIEACHFNEERE
prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical assets or liahilities. BRERMIGPETR 2 A FHEBIRE
$ o
Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other o FE_MATEFEDBRE—RIFAZR
than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for B BEENBEA EE(BIER)
the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. M (BERITE) BB ASREE
derived from prices).
Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation o  FE=MAFEFENFTAWIFRIETEH
techniques that include inputs for the asset or liability that are not RHSEE (E LR AZE) 2 EE
based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). S BEZEEFESH -
31st December, 2009
—EEAF+=-A=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£ E-& B=& st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET FET FET
Financial assets at FVTPL: BATEFABSZZ®
ROVEEE -
Held for trading investments RIEEBERE
— Listed equity securities — EWRAES 78,498 - - 78,498
— Unlisted debt securities —ELHES 262,959 - - 262,959
Available-for-sale financial assets: A ESREE !
— Unlisted investment — LTI E 9,688 - - 9,688
Total st 351,145 - - 351,145
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7. &FH

7. Turnover

Turnover represents the amount received and receivable for goods sold by
the Group to outside customers, net of discounts and sales related taxes,
income from concessionaire sales, service income and rental income
during the year, and is analysed as follows:

BEBREARBELAFERAIAEPERE
A 2 B U8 e 8 R TER, 3T H0 B 8 S AR R R
B BIFEREERA  RBEAUEESK
A AT

2009 2008
—EThEF T )N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Sales of goods — direct sales EhNE —HEHE 2,200,038 2,100,750
Income from concessionaire sales BHFEEHERA 1,416,272 1,271,362
Service income RASUA 78,863 79,465
Rental income HE WA 61,035 70,056
3,756,208 3,521,633

The cost of sales are analysed as follows: HERADITLT -
Cost of goods sold EmEER A 1,572,510 1,493,480
Other cost of sales HAbSHER A 52,721 51,723
1,625,231 1,545,203

Segment information

The Group has adopted HKFRS 8 “Operating segments” with effect from
1st January, 2009. HKFRS 8 is a disclosure standard that requires
operating segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports about
components of the Group that are regularly reviewed by the Group’s

chief operating decision maker for the purpose of allocating resources to
segments and assessing their performance. The chief operating decision
maker of the Group has been identified as the Group’s Managing Director.
In contrast, the predecessor Standard (HKAS 14, Segment Reporting)
required an entity to identify two sets of segments (business and
geographical) using a risks and returns approach.

The Group has two operating segments geographically, Hong Kong and
People’s Republic of China ("PRC”) which are managed separately. The
Group determines its operating segments based on the internal reports
reviewed by the Group’s Managing Director that are used to allocate
resources and assess performance.

The adoption of HKFRS 8 has not resulted in redesignation of operating
segment nor change in measurement of segment result.

The Group has no customers that contributed over 10% of the total
revenue of the Group for both years.
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8. Segment information (wntinue) 8 $HAHmw

Segment revenues and results DI R EE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by NEBIRARE SR D > W R LB
reportable segment. N
Consolidated
Hong Kong PRC total
BB s meEE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
For the year ended 31st Decemhber, 2009 BE-_ZThFE+=A
=t+—HLEEFE
Revenue s
External sales HNEE 3,059,433 696,775 3,756,208
Result ES
Segment result DEPELE 1,116,497 137,319 1,253,816
Fair value changes on investment REYENTEE
properties 178,756
Reversal of impairment loss on loan FEUE SR (E BB 1 [e]
receivable 18,180
Investment income AW 48,355
Share of profit of a jointly controlled entity — fE{5 — KL FEIEHIE 52
sl 12,341
Share of profits of associates iy NGl 25,360
Finance costs & AN (38,366)
Profit before taxation M B A 1,498,442

Consolidated

Hong Kaong PRC total
BB s RA KRR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHET FAT
For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-ZEN\F+=AH
=t+—HLEFE
Revenue Wz
External sales HINEE 2,959,438 562,195 3,521,633
Result S
Segment result DEPELE 990,778 139,657 1,130,435
Fair value changes on investment REMENFEED
properties 176,030
Discount on acquisition of associates BB S N RIELE Y
biir 207,577
Provision for impairment loss on loan FEUWE FURE B 1R B
receivable (276,619)
Investment income FZEWA 148,677
Share of profit of a jointly controlled entity — fE{5 — KL EIEHIE 52
el 8,250
Share of losses of associates JE(G B &N BES1E (1,609)
Finance costs BbE R AN (68,112)
Profit before taxation MR ATE R 1,324,637
The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as AJ¥RE 2 B0 2 &R B 5 B RO BY FE S ATl
the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3. Segment profit S HE AR o DM IEE D BB Y 5%
represents the profit earned by each segment without allocation of F| o MRS RSP RITHES BEHS -
central administrative costs, directors’ salaries, share of profits (losses) JE (B A% N T R R R B R R (IR -
of associates and jointly controlled entity, reversal of (provision for) R S (S S R R B (B4 ) BB A

impairment loss on loan receivable, discount arising on acquisition of SEATFE  BEWMEATERE) - BE
associates, fair value changes on investment properties, investment ! -

=5 R A o &
income and finance costs. This is the measure reported to the Group's ”&)\zﬁﬁ}??jﬁ%Z” EEI %tﬁﬁlkzi%
Managing Director for the purposes of resources allocation and E% ;WIE FHERD LR RRT AL RS
performance assessment. ZEEAR o
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8.

Segment information (ontinues)
Segment assets and liahilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by

8 HHEHm

THEERAE

reportable segment: W
Consolidated
Hong Kong PRC total
B8 H metE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FExT FET
As at 31st December, 2009 N-BEZENEF
+=A=+—H
Assets BE
Segment assets DEEE 3,946,293 6,565,400 10,511,693
Available-for-sale investments Al ERE 9,688
Held for trading investments BEEBEHRE 341,451
Interest in a jointly controlled entity RAREH EEE
RS 502,298
Interests in associates NG 720,442
Amount due from a jointly controlled entity — fEUR—R L [RIRHIE S
EQIE] 47,484
Loans receivable [lE U 2 157,583
Unallocated assets ROBEE 10,757
Consolidated total assets GAEBERE 12,301,402
Liabilities &
Segment liabilities DEEE 893,542 1,251,621 2,145,163
Bank borrowings RITEE 3,186,720
Unallocated liabilities FHOEAE 286,512
Consolidated total liabilities FABEESE 5,618,395
Consolidated
Hong Kong PRC total
B '=F REHE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FExT FET
Other segment information HihpEER
Amounts included in the measure of segment +& D R ES D T EEE
profit or loss or segment assets: ¥EZ B ¢
Addition to non-current assets IEmEVE EER 40,528 732,010 172,538
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #)2 ~ &= MG 2ITE 93,101 107,570 200,671
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - HERE
equipment ZEE 66 18 84
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts RITIRAE 1,800 - 1,800
(Reversal of) provision for write-down of TEHFEMOR (#El)
obsolete inventories A (208) 401 193
Release of prepaid lease payment BNTEERUESE T - 19,854 19,854
Waiver of non-current other payables A IE B E A FE (3K 60,000 - 60,000
Share-based payment B 145K 48,170 - 48,170

Note: Non-current assets excluded financial instruments and deferred tax assets.
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8. Segment information (wntinue) 8 $HAHmw

Segment assets and liahilities (continued) FWEEREE(E)
Consolidated
Hong Kong PRC total
BB HEl RE KR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FHET
As at 31st December, 2008 R-ZEENE+=A
=+—H
Assets BE
Segment assets DEBEE 3,694,759 4,529,997 8,224,756
Available-for-sale investments AREERE 28,175
Financial assets designated at fair value BN EFABEZ
through profit or loss SREE 342,412
Held for trading investments BIEEEKRE 68,447
Interest in a jointly controlled entity R—R A E T e
FERs 488,554
Interests in associates NI e 1,123,805
Amount due from a jointly controlled entity — fEUR—ZR L RIEHIZ S
B 24,146
Loans receivable EWE 258,718
Unallocated assets ROMEE 3,205
Consolidated total assets IRAEBEME 10,562,218
Liabilities aE
Segment liabilities NEBIE 819,768 628,544 1,448,312
Bank borrowings RITEE 3,018,100
Unallocated liabilities APOBERE 240,823
Consolidated total liabilities rEAEEE 4,707,235
Consolidated
Hong Kong PRC total
BB & RE KR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FHT
Other segment information Hith o paEr
Amounts included in the measure of segment &5 & E s H LEE S
profit or loss or segment assets: E2EFE
Addition to non-current assets IERENE EIR 19,751 1,572,627 1,592,378
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - MENMZEZITE
equipment 90,815 57,916 148,731
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, plant and HEW% - BEREES
equipment (Uzs) K58 (67) 13 (54)
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts RIEBREAE 7,374 390 7,764
Provision for write-down of obsolete ST SR
inventories 1,021 410 1,431
Release of prepaid lease payment FENHEFIEE L - 4,127 4127
Share-based payment BRAD R 90,981 - 90,981
Note: Non-current assets excluded financial instruments and deferred tax assets. e ERBEETRESR T ANMEEREELE -
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8. Seqment information (wntinue) 8 +HEHm
Geographical information hEE B
Analyses of the Group’s non-current assets by geographical location of the REEMEWRE D 2 AEBIEREEED
assets are detailed below: T :
2009 2008
—EEAEF —TT)N\F
Hong Kong PRC Hong Kaong PRC
BB FE BB H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FERT FAT FAT
Non-current assets EMEBEE 1,971,722 4,983,737 1,983,527 3,591,453
Note: Non-current assets excluded financial instruments and deferred tax assets. Wik ERBEETRESMITANEERIEAE -
9. Other income 9. BAepoN
2009 2008
—EZhE —EZENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Cleaning income ERUA 51,031 26,002
Project income HE A 8,716 4,258
Waiver of non-current other payable (note 36) BN H M IER BN E 7R (MIRE36) 60,000 -
Government subsidy BT B 17,055 -
Others Hith 67,137 46,415
203,939 76,675
710. Investment income 0. % F N
2009 2008
—®BRE  —TT)\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Interest income on bank deposits RITERZAEWA 13,466 48,011
Interest income on loans receivable EWE T Z R BUA 11,721 36,681
Other interest income HAbF B U A 8 8,482
Dividend income AR B A
Available-for-sale investments AR ERE 3,100 3,500
Held for trading investments BIEEERE 1,551 1,564
Realised (loss) gain on disposal of available-for-sale  HERMEHERE HEE R
investments/held for trading investments/financial B IETERATEAFAES SR
assets designated at fair value through profit or loss  &EE2 2835 (E1E) W (1,679) 26,992
Impairment loss on available-for-sale investments A ERERERE (18,487) (3,538)
Change in fair value of financial assets SREENTEE
Financial asset designated at fair value through BERAFEFABRZ
profit or loss SHEE 4,064 23,021
Held for trading investments BIEEEIRE 31,892 (4,107)
Derivative instrument PTETA 2,113 8,071
48,355 148,677
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71. Finance costs . BER%

2009 2008
ZEERF ZETN\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FA&T
Interest on: TIERZHE
Bank borrowings and overdrafts: HBITERERBES
— wholly repayable within five years — ARAFANBEEER 28,151 78,744
— wholly repayable after five years — AR A FRERER 13,814 11,894
Others E 1,212 20,625
43,171 111,263
Less: Amoaunts capitalised B B 4,811 43,157
38,366 68,112
Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose on HK dollar FR - BERMEZBERS - THREAEER
denominated borrowings at interest rates calculated by reference to the BE  SEFBRTRAEFE(NT0M4ER
HIBOR, ranging from 0.34% to 0.649%, on qualifying assets. 0.B4E)FrEtER B 2B TEE -
12. Taxation j2. #4
2009 2008
—EThE ZETN\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT FET
The charge comprises: THBPETYER -
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBRNER 190,679 177,290
PRC Enterprise Income Tax DTS 55,254 41,992
Overprovision in prior years: B EE R
Hong Kong BB (93) (4,837)
245,840 214,445
Deferred tax charge (note 35) IEIEFRIA ST Y (F5ESD)
Current year NEE 57,107 52,262
Attributable to a change on tax rate RGBS | BUREFI B - (1,216)
303,547 265,491
On 26th June, 2008, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed the RZZFEZNFANAZ+B BB LEER
Revenue Bill 2008 which reduced corporate profits tax rate from 17.5% B(ZZEENFRAKHER)  AZTTN
to 16.5% effective from the year of assessment 2008/2009. Therefore, ETTNRMFERS  SEEFNEHH
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable K17 5%HAEE16.5% ° At - HEFEH
profit for both years. TIRAR MBS [E 2 (& 5T FE R )55 M3 16.5%5T
Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise Income Tax BEPEAREMBECEMETE(TBER
(the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate SRR REEMSBUAE R - F
of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1st January, 2008 onwards. MEARIE T N\F—A—BRBZBXA

25% °
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94

E-PRAFT-ASt-ALFE

Tﬂxdtion (continued) 12. %’ﬁ (4%)
The charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before taxation per AREEYHHEGAEEEWERATBTATS
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as follows: Mz EeRmT :
2009 2008
—EEAE —TT)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FAT
Profit before taxation MR AT & ) 1,498,442 1,324,637
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rates REBTISHERFE ZHIE 241,243 218,565
Tax effect of share of profit of a jointly controlled entity f& Wg KRR EE SN a2 (2,036) (1,361)
Tax effect of share of (profits) losses of associates ML AT C&EF) Jgﬁgzmi =% (4,184) 265
Tax effect on non-taxable income BERBMBAZ BIETE (6,465) (56,164)
Tax effect on non-deductible expenses TR 2 RIB & 8,924 28,747
Tax effect on utilisation of tax losses not previously B FARERTIEE B 2 I
recognised =1 (3,892) (1,659)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERMIBER BT Z 16,627 44,626
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries operating in fEE{th e EER AL S 2 B A
other jurisdictions TRAMEZ B E 30,924 19,102
Overprovision in prior years W FEBERE (93) (4,837)
Withholding tax T 12,3178 10,054
Others Hih 4,121 8,153
Tax charge for the year AEEBIBELZH 303,547 265,491
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13. Profit for the year

13. %% A&

2009 2008
—EThE ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging: AFEE AR THIEE -
Directors’ remuneration: (note 14) EEME - (WiF14)
Fees we 1,000 991
Other emoluments E AN 9,400 3,888
Share-based payment [EZHERE 25,023 59,978
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIRERFT B 13 13
35,436 64,870
Other staff costs H 8 TR 262,507 233,437
Retirement benefits scheme contributions, net of
forfeited contributions RPRAEFIETEI BB S WA R 8,873 8,401
Share-based payment AR 23,147 31,003
Total staff costs 488 TR 329,963 337,711
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEMN S 3,746 3,253
Depreciation for property, plant and equipment ME  MEREEZITE 200,671 148,731
Release of prepaid lease payments FEMHETBE T 19,854 4127
Werite-down of obsolete inventories ST E MR 193 1,431
Minimum lease payments paid under operating lease in gt&&FALIE FHE i RIEFAAT
respect of leasehold land and buildings to ATEA 2 s ARB L) RIE
— ajointly controlled entity — — AR 142,695 140,775
— other parties —Efb AL 63,785 59,930
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEME « BEMREZEE 84 -
Cost of inventories recognised as expense WRAEZ M2 FEKA 1,572,510 1,493,480
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts on trade and
other receivables UK BR TR I H At FEURGRIA 2 RIZAR S 1,800 7,764
Share of tax of a jointly controlled entity R—REEE ST e (5 R 6,940 5,323
Net exchange loss P N B 1R F R - 8,295
and crediting: A RETATIIIER :
Net exchange gain BE 5 28 F 58 1,536 -
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEME - BEREFH 2z - o4
Gross rental from investment properties (net of BEMERSHBE (HKRLE
negligible outgoings) X)) - 19,043
Gross rental from sub-letting of commercial properties R YI¥E SRS 4248 61,035 51,012
Less: Direct operating expenses in respect of
sub-letting of commercial properties W DR AYENEEREERAT (49,494) (53,982)
Net rental income He WA F5E 11,541 16,073
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14. Directors” and employees’ remuneration

4. FH L% AMA

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 10 (2008: 10) directors AR08 (— B \F  108) SO HkfE
were as follows: NzemT :
2009 —EENE
Lau Luen Cheng Kar Lau Luen Cheung Hui Chiu Total
Hung, Do Wai Hoi, Cheng Yu Shun, Hung,  Lau Yuk Wai,  Lam Siu Lun, Yuet Man,  Shek Lai Him, Chung, Foh
Thomas William Tung Henry Joseph Amy Simon Raymond Abraham Stephen 2009
A8% HEE 67 BR4 EE i EES Mk REX RER FRE ZBEAE
HK$ 000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
TER TiERL TR TiER TR TR TEx TEx TEx FEx TEL
Fees e 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 1,000
Other emoluments Efoie
Salaries and other benefits HeREMEHN 9,400 - - - - - - - - - 9,400
Contributions to retirement bengfits R /iE Rt 21t 3h
schiemes 12 1 - - - - - - - - 3
Share-based payment BE 25,023 - - - - - - - - - 25,023
Total emoluments e 34,535 101 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 35,436
2008 —ZEENE
Lau Luen Cheng Kar Lau Luen Cheung Hui Chiu Total
Hung,  Doo Wai Hoi, Cheng Yu Shun, Hung,  Lau Yuk Wai,  Lam Siu Lun, Yuet Man,  Shek Lai Him, Chung, &t
Thomas William Tung Henry Joseph Amy Simon Raymond Abraham Stephen 2008
o iEE gitl L e did ElRS ke KX Pt | it
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
L &R TR TR ThT ThT R TEL T T Tk
Fees e 100 91 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 991
Other emoluments Hitiie
Selaries and other benefits o REMEH 3888* - - - - - - - - - 3,688
Contributions to retirement bengfits 4RI R BI43
schemes 12 1 - - - - - - - - 13
Share-based payment BOIEN 59978 - - - - - - - - - 59,978
Total emoluments Hlegs 63,978 9 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 84,870

Mr. Lau Luen-hung, Thomas and Sogo Hong Kong Company Limited (“Sogo HK"), a

wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has entered into an employment agreement
dated 25th July, 2003 (the “Employment Agreement”) whereby, inter alia, Sogo HK

has employed Mr. Lau as the General Manager commencing from 1st May, 2003.

Mr. Lau is entitled to a monthly salary of HK$200,000 and, subject to the operating

results of Sogo HK, to a discretionary bonus under the employment Agreement.

No directors waived any emoluments in the year ended 31st December,

20089 and 2008.
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14. Directors” and employees” remuneration (antinues)
Of the five highest paid individuals of the Group for the year ended 31st
December, 2009, one of them (2008: one) was a director of the Company
whose remuneration is disclosed above. The remaining four (2008: four)
are employees of the Group, details of whose remuneration were as

4. %% A% R M AW
RE-ZENE+-A=+—BILEE &
EEALRBHALST  —&(ZTB)\F
—E)VAAATEE - W2 MR EXHE -
SHME(ZTTNE - @A) Bl BAEEE

follows: B BEZMeFBEERIET
2009 2008
—EEAE ZZT)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT

Employees: EE :

Salaries, allowances and other benefits Hé o R REMEF 6,442 6,066
Retirement benefits scheme contributions BREFIEH 2R 43 48
Performance related incentive payments BRI MRS 3,720 1,020
Share-based payment R&An <3k 4,052 9,092
14,262 16,226

The emolument of the remaining four were within the following bands:

HAMNESESHA L ZHHN FUTEE

2009 2008

—ZThE —ZTT)\F

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

AH N

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7t & 1,500,000/ 7T - -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T & 2,000,0005 7T 1 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,0018 7T = 2,500,0005% 7T - -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001/ 7T £ 3,000,000/ 7T - 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001/ 7T £ 3,500,000/8 T 2 -
Above HK$3,500,000 3,500,000/ 7T A 1 2

During the year ended 31st December, 2009 and 2008, no remuneration
was paid by the Group to the director or the four highest paid employees
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for

loss of office.

BHE - ZTZNFL _ZTZN\F+_A=+—
BLEFE AEEVERAEESINEARSH
EEXNME ARSI HEMARER S

RIMAREE 2 525 HBEBw1E
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15. Dividends 15 BA
2009 2008
—EThEF —TT)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Dividend recognised as distributions during the year: FRIER AR ZE.
Final dividend in cash paid for year ended HE_ZZ)\F+-A=+—HILFE
31st December, 2008 ARSI 2 REARR 2
— HK cents 12.0 per share —&i12.05% 1
(2008: HK cents 13.5 paid for year ended (ZZEZ)N\F  kHEHE
31st December, 2007) —EEEF+A=+—HL
FERE13.58) 199,998 230,370
Interim dividend in cash paid for six months ended MEBEE-_ZThEA=1HIt
30th June, 2009 NEA RS IR 2 B S
— HK cents 11.0 per share —&R11.05%4
(2008: HK cents 12.0 paid for six months ended (ZTTNF : RNEBEZTTN\F
30th June, 2008) NA=THIEREARE
12.0910) 184,069 204,816
384,067 435,186

76.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, final dividend of HK cents
17.0 (2008: HK cents 12.0) per share has been proposed by the directors
which is subject to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming general

meeting.

Earnings per share

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to
the ordinary equity holders of the Company is based on the following data:

6. ZR &%

RKRARE

RBEHRERE - EFEFHIRNRBRE
BR170BII(ZZZNF - 12080) -
AR B AR B F Rt

4
Z
7R

BRI B ER R AT
Ty T HIBURTES T

2009 2008
—EENF ZETN\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Earnings ZF
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Mt EEREAREERFTE 2 AR
Company for the purposes of basic and diluted FHEG NE(RREE SR
earnings per share 1,142,468 927,226
2009 2008
—EENF ZEEN\FE
’000 ‘000
T’ T
Number of shares ROEHAE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for METEEREANZFME 2 LA INE
the purposes of basic earnings per share S8 1,668,021 1,700,712
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares issuable ARARERETEIIE A 7317 28E
under the Company's share option scheme gErakog2 9,167 7.211
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for AT EEREERNM S 2 LmAR
the purposes of diluted earnings per share NSk 1,677,188 1,707,923
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17. Investment properties 7. %% Hh%E

Completed Investment
investment properties under
properties construction Total
CERREYE HEEHIREYE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHET FAT
FAIR VALUE AERE
At 1st January, 2008 RZZENF—A—H 19,620 - 19,620
Transfer to property, plant and equipment EE T . R NRE (21,000) - (21,000)
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries I N)=SNGIESES DN
(note 41) (Mg5E41) 182,103 - 182,103
Additions during the year FRIRNE 4,061 - 4,061
Increase in fair value recognised in the REABERER L
statement of comprehensive income (note) — AF{EZHN(FIEE) 171,914 - 171,914
Exchange adjustments PEE 5 g ER 7,242 - 7,242
At 31st December, 2008 RZZTTNEF
+=—A=+—~” 363,940 - 363,940
Transfer from property, plant and equipment BE#%% « BE MR EANLTE
and prepaid lease payments IR E IR E R 405,953 - 405,953
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries URBE I BB A BIRSEE A
(note 41) (Bt3E41) - 420,280 420,280
Additions during the year FRRE 3,374 - 3,374
Investment properties recovered from loans & EWE Z Uk (el 2
receivable (note 29(b)) & &Y (FiEa9(b)) 38,180 - 38,180
Increase in fair value recognised in the REERERERZ
statement of comprehensive income NEE 64,646 114,110 178,756
Exchange adjustments BE 4, A% 625 - 625
At 31st December, 2009 RZBZNF+-_A=1+—H 876,718 534,390 1,411,108

Note: The amount did not include the fair value change of HK$4,116,000 on the investment
property held by Kaiyuan Square before the Equity Interests Swap (note 42).

During the year, the Group transferred a leasehold land and building in the
PRC to investment property. The fair value of this investment property

is HK$405,953,000 which have been arrived at based on a valuation
carried out on the date of transfer by Shanghai BDGH Chartered Valuation
Surveyors Co., Ltd. ("BDGH") (formerly known as Shanghai Gooray &
Henry Property Valuation Chartered Surveyors Co., Ltd.), an independent
qualified professional valuers not connected with the Group, BDGH is a
member of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. The fair value

is determined based on the Income Method by capitalising future rental
income derived from the property interest at an appropriate market yield
for the remaining term of the land use rights of the property. The valuation is
made in accordance with the Practice Statements of the Royal Institution
of Chartered Surveyors’ Valuation Standards.

M - ZeBUTABEEREER (M E42) 50
MTESIHRENEELEZATESR
4,116,000/ 7T

RER - REBRUZRTEZ BE - RIE
FEESRANE - WAREMEZATVE
#%405,953,000/8 7T » TyEL R ERA £ [ 0 4R Y
BB A BREEMLEN LS/ EEKE
ELMEEERAR () ERR ] (ATHE L
BERETEMEGEREEMERIRNE
BAMETZHERTE - NEERRAREE
RIEFFFAEMEE 2K E - A FETDRER
NE - BYEEDEYE T IE B2 R
FHRBEEMSEBRAEZ ARRBES WA
BEARCMERE - HEDERER RS
SRS S(HEER)Z BRBIESCETT -
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17.

100

Investment properties (ontinued)
The carrying amount of investment properties shown above comprises:

7. BEHEF @

it E Yz BREEERE

2009 2008

—EThE ZEENF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Land in Hong Kong held under medium lease REBBIFETERAEE 2 i 49,550 -
Land in PRC held under medium lease AR ER RIS E 2 tith 1,361,558 363,940
1,411,108 363,940

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties in Hong Kong at 31st
December, 2009 have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried
out on that date by Knight Frank Petty Limited, an independent qualified
professional valuers not connected with the Group. Knight Frank Petty
Limited are members of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, and have
appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation of
similar properties in the relevant locations. The valuation was arrived at
by reference to relevant market prices for similar properties in the same
locations and conditions.

Fair value of the Group’s investment properties situated in the PRC as

at 31st December, 2009 and 2008 has been arrived at based on a
valuation carried out on that date by BDGH. The fair value is determined
based on the Income Method by capitalising future rental income derived
from the property interest at an appropriate market yield as at 31st
December, 2009 and 2008 for the remaining term of the land use rights
of the property. The valuation is made in accordance with the Practice
Statements of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors’ Valuation
Standards.

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating leases to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured using the fair

value model and are classified and accounted for as investment properties.
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18. Property, plant and equipment 18. H¥ -~ BB AEM

Leasehold land Leasehold Plantand  Furniture, fixtures Construction in
and buildings ~ improvements machinery ~ and equipment  Motor vehicles progress Total
Bl B
BETHREF  BENELE REREE #ERRE RE BEIR @t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKk§000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$ 000
T T T TEn Thn Thr Th
cosT
At 1st January, 2008 R-FE\E-A-A 249123 716,763 185,371 80441 4,857 482,214 3,940,681
Exchange adjustment BT 9,366 19,985 2590 1471 13 6318 59,465
Transferved from investment property ~ ERANIEER 21,000 - - - - - 21,000
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries  WEEMB A TEBEA 409,407 - 20,577 6,522 39 1,240 438,137
Additions wE 63,284 12,848 446 11907 3783 711,106 803,174
Disposals/ritten off HE /i - (635) - (339) - - 974)
At 315t December, 2008 RZFENE
tZA=1+-A 2,9%,292 748,361 188984 100,002 8,966 1,220878 5,261,483
Exchange adjustment EfEE 2,278 2215 323 175 10 761 12612
Transferred to investment property ERTRANE (177,183) - - - - - (177,183)
Transferred to prepaid lease payments ~ ERZERTEFE - - - - - (194,434) (194,494
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries ~ WTEEMB R AIBEA
(note 41) (Fztat) - - - Kl - - 30
Acquired on acquisition of addtional WE-FHBLA
interest in a subsidiary FIMESBEA 53275 - - - - - 53,275
Additions hE 196,678 33420 24,001 21241 1970 224978 502,288
Disposals/written off HE /g - 14) - (264) - - 478)
Reclassifications Eipx 1,132,724 9,005 - - - (1,141,729 -
At 315t December, 2009 RIZENE
T-A=1-H 4,202,064 792,787 213,308 121184 10946 117,244 5457533
DEPRECIATION
At st January, 2008 689,103 363,628 109790 49203 1173 - 1,213,097
Exchange adjustment 1,663 5898 815 N 96 - 9,343
Provided for the year 58,046 67,041 11,146 11327 117 - 148,731
Eliminated on disposals/uritten off - (109 - (219) - - (324)
At 315t December, 2008 RZZENE 748812 436,658 121751 61226 2,400 - 1,370,847
TZA=1-A
Exchange adjustment B R 188 91 % 88 3 - 1,29%
Provided for the year FrnE 102118 70645 12675 13,640 1,593 - 200,671
Eliminated on disposals/uritten off HE /AT HE - (148) - (246) - - (394)
Eliminated upon transfer to investment  BEZRENEH U
property (9,901 - - - - - (9,301)
At 315t December, 2009 RZZENE
+ZA=+-H 841,217 508,076 134,522 74708 3,99 - 1,562,519
NET BOOK VALUES BEFE
At 315t December, 2009 RZFENE
+-A=+-H 3,380,847 284,711 78786 46476 6,950 117,244 3,895,014
At 31t December, 2008 RZFENE
tZA=1-A 2,245,480 311,703 67233 38776 6,566 1,220678 3,890,636
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18.

102

Property, plant and equipment (ontinued)
Included in construction in progress is borrowing cost amounting to
HK$4,811,000 capitalised during the year (2008: HK$43,151,000).

The above items of property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates
per annum:

18. ¥~ BB BEH#

ERIREeREFRERREARAZEERE
4,811,000/ T (ZZZ \F : 43,151,000/
JT) e

BRAEZIRIN LuiwE BELRHEEEB
TIABAER T FREAENE -

Leasehold land and buildings Over the shorter of lease terms AE L RIEF LI 25 HAsk2.5%
or 2.5% (B ERE)
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the lease HEWMEEE $RFE 49 FE HA S 00%
terms, or 20% (ABREEH %)
Plant and machinery 10% TR Rt s 10%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20% B BEEEREE 20%
Motor vehicles 20% P! 20%
2009 2008
ZEThEF ZTTN\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
The carrying amount of leasehold land and buildings &+t R EFEEESE
comprises land and buildings: AT REF -
— long lease in Hong Kong —(REBS REHENEE 485,372 494,241
— medium term lease in Hong Kong —(URBBXFHEOEE 1,244,092 1,282,143
1,729,464 1,776,384
— medium term lease outside Hong Kong — IR B BB RS E 1,631,383 469,096
3,360,847 2,245,480

The Group has pledged certain leasehold land and buildings in Hong
Kong with net book values of approximately HK$1,591.6 million (2008:
HK$1,636.0 million) to secure general banking facilities granted to the
Group.

Certain of the Group’s property, plant and equipment in the PRC with
carrying value of approximately HK$1,317.2 million (2008: HK$1,123.6
million) have been pledged to secure loan facility in the amount of
approximately RMB390.0 million (equivalent to approximately HK$443.4
million) (2008: HK$440.0 million).
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19. Prepaid lease payments

The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise:

20.

2].

19.

AR A

AEE 2 ANEEFIABEE

2009 2008
—EEAEF ZEENF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAT

Leasehold land outside Hong Kong NREBEBREIINZAE L
Medium-term lease (Note) FREAFE A (BFRE) 1,417,142 1,313,632

Analysed for reporting purposes as: MEBRENDWAE :

Current portion BNERER{D 9,952 7,074
Non-current portion FEBNEAER D 1,407,190 1,306,558
1,417,142 1,313,632

Note: As at 31st December, 2009, the Group has not yet obtained the legal document in
respect of the land use right in the PRC with carrying value of HK$1,166,894,000
(2008: HK$1,159,710,000). The Group is in the process of obtaining the land use

right certificate.

During the year, the Group transferred certain prepaid lease payment with carrying

value of HK$78,723,000 to investment properties.

M - R-_ZEZAF+_A=+—80  XEEH
AREVSBRE E1,166,894,0008 T (— T T\
F +1,159,710,0008 70 ) (L A R B 2 £ 1o {5
2R U o NEBIEMIBISZ L

EREZFE -

FR - AKEBKEEE?8,723,0008 T 25
TRNEESREREREYE -

Long term deposits paid 20. &4t R MEA
2009 2008
—EBEhE —TTNE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Deposit paid for: RUTREE NES -
— acquisition of additional equity interest in — W — R A
an associate (Note) RBOMNRARE RS (I 7E) 236,374 -
— acquisition of property, plant and equipment — BB B K& 1,017 12,496
237,391 12,496

Note: This represents approximately 60% of the purchase consideration for the acquisition
of additional equity interest in A RFEILBE A BEBEBRE LA F) (‘Beiren Group™.
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Group’s 60% owned subsidiary has
completed acquisition of an additional equity interest in Beiren Group, increasing its

interest therein to 49%.

M BN ZEe IR EEAHIEEABTREER
BEAR(MIEAREDEINEA T ZBE
REHBO% - NREHMHMBEERR - A&H
HEHB0%E R 2 B AR T B AS
BEEIMEAELS  ENEARBZESEE

49% -

Interests in associates 2). #MERANLE
2009 2008
—ZEENEF ZZET)\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHxT FiET
Unlisted, at cost JEET - AR 675,028 1,119,600

Share of post-acquisition profits and other

comprehensive income FE(E RS 2 S R E b 2 EUA 45,414 4,205
720,442 1,123,805
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21. Interests in associates (ntinued) 21. B ERAHEm
As at 31st December, 2009 and 2008, the Group had interests in the R-BEAER-—_EENF+-_A=+—
following associates: B AEERATEERRRAELS
Place/ Proportion of nominal
country of Principal value of issued capital/
Form of husiness  incorporation/ place of registered capital held Proportion of
Name of entity structure registration operation by the Group voting power held  Principal activity
KRB
ML BRITRE/
M TELE AEMRA
EREE (BEEEL  BX 8 HEELH FEREELH  FEEHR

2009 2008 2009 2008
EThE —TE\§ ZBEhE —TEE

AZFHIEABEEFREE Incorporation  PRC PRC 30% 30% 30% 30% Investment holding
NG bl Ay s | (note 1) of a group of
("Beiren Group”) (PtzE1) companies engaging
(TEAZE ] in the operation of

department stores,

supermarkets and
property leasing
REREE  BIR
NEREEBZ
3 /NG
REER

Dragon Sign Limited Incorporation Hong Kong PRC 50% - 50% - Investment holding of

EEARAR Rl 0 H a company engaged
in operation of
restaurants in

the PRC
THERERE
RNl
RERR
T IEEER T ESBMET Incorporation  PRC PRC 48% 48% 48% 48% Retailing business in
~a] (Future Mall”) (Formerly  #Ak Sz s hE (note 2) the PRC
known as (HizE2) EHERSTEEH
T BEETESERE
/NS
(*Kaiyuan Square”)
TILEBERTREERERR
A EXRTES]) (BT
TERTESERELLR)
([ATESE])
Notes: BIE -
1. The Group holds equity interest of 30% in the Beiren Group indirectly through a 60% 1. AEEBEERBEHEEC0%ER ZWERQF
owned subsidiary of the Group. BEIE AL EB0%0 AR
2. The Group holds equity interest of 48% in Future Mall indirectly through a 60% owned 2. AEEMEEBBEHEAONERZHE AR
subsidiary, Ample Sun Group Limited. At 31st December, 2009 and 31st December, wmREBARAAFAELRTESIBREAR
2008, Future Mall was also owned as to 51% by the Beiren Group. B o c RZETZNFF+_A=FT—AK=ZF
ZNFE+ZA=+—8B  LAEENEEL
KT ES519%#5% ©
As at 31st December, 2009, the 48% equity interest in Future Mall has been RZZTNF+=ZA=1+—H £EXTES
grouped under assets classified as held for sale (note 32). BN A E BN EDARFIELEZE

E(FIEE32) °
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2]. Interests in associates (continued)
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s associates is

22.

set out below:

2]. #HELIAHEEW

B RN G ER

pENEZ MBS EREMT

2009 2008

—EEAE —TT)N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHExT FHET

Total assets BEREE 8,145,170 5,842,331

Total liabilities BfERE 6,263,807 4,035,699

Net assets BEFE 1,881,363 1,806,632

Group’s share of associates’ net assets NEBEE(FBME AT EEFRE 720,442 1,123,805

Revenue Wz 9,746,231 4,383,377

Profits (losses) for the year REE M (EE) 70,956 (7,213)
Group'’s share of profits (losses) of associates for REB B E N RIANFE

the year EA(EE) 25,360 (1,605)

Interest in a jointly controlled entity

At 31st December, 2009 and 2008, the Group had interests in the
following significant jointly controlled entity:

22. %32 uHTHHEL
RZBZENFR_EENEF+ A =+—
B ANEBRTYEBERIEHIEEREE

m

Proportion of

Place of nominal value of
Form of husiness establishment/ issued capital held Proportion of
Name of entity structure operation by the Group voting power held Principal activity
EEBAEF
2RITRAE
BREE EBEEER FRAL HR R i B HELS FARHREELS FTEEK
ERABEHTES Sino-foreign equity  People’s Republic 50% 50% Property holding and
PR 72 &) (Shanghai joint venture of China leasing
Joinbuy City Plaza PINGEEERE I AR HEAME MEREREE
Co., Ltd.)

NEEREBARAR —FENFFH
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22. Interest in a jointly controlled entity (wntinues) 22 32BN THELw
Jointly controlled entity is accounted for using the equity method of H A B e T A AR ¢
accounting:

2009 2008
—EENF ZTENF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET

Cost of unlisted investments in a jointly

—HKAREEEIF LTIREZ

controlled entity [B4N 433,104 433,104
Share of post-acquisition profits and other SEUEES 7 E M R B 2 EUA -
comprehensive income, net of dividend received HIBR B IR B, 69,194 55,450
502,298 488,554
The summarised financial information related to the Group’s interest in the FHAEBMNAAREF BRI S ZMEE
jointly controlled entity is set out below: BHEt T
2009 2008
—®BRE  —TT)\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Non-current assets IERBEE 1,431,323 1,483,068
Current assets MENEE 17,904 16,870
Current liabilities mENEE 347,986 240,330
Non-current liabilities ERBAaE 96,645 282,500
Income WA 180,517 174,468
Expenses 53 155,836 157,970
Group’s share of profit of the jointly controlled entity 7N @ &5 L [F) 15 | B 82 )% 7 12,341 8,250

23.Available-for-sale investments

106

23 TREENE

Available-for-sale investments comprise: ARPERERE -

2009 2008

—EThE ZETNF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHT FET

Unlisted investment at fair value JELETIRE - BATE 9,688 28,175
Available-for-sale investments comprise an unlisted equity securities issued AHEERERE - RKRERETIMN L2
by a mutual fund company incorporated in Bermuda. The investment is EEESNRIMETHFLMRAZS - %i&
denominated in USD and its fair value is based on price quoted by the BEUETLAEN  EATEERAERZI SR
counterparty financial institution. During the year, an impairment loss WIBFTIRME 2 B ETE - 7 18,487,000
of HK$18,487,000 (2008: HK$3,538,000) has been recognised in B (ZZZ)\F : 3,538,00087T) 2 B EE

consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

BERGRE 2 EBERIER o
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24. Financial assets designated at fair value through

profit or loss

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss comprises:

24 BRBLF AN R L2 4F

A

BERATEHABEZ EMEERR -

2008
—ETNF
HK$'000
TR

Index-linked notes EIE BB

342,412

At 31st December, 2008, the index-linked notes are denominated in USD
with principal amount of USD45,000,000. The obligations of interest
accrual depends on the difference between the USD 10-Year Constant
Maturity Swap (‘CMS”) Rate and the USD 30-Year CMS Rate. The issuer
has options to redeem the notes before maturity or at maturity, settled

at the principal amount plus any accrued and unpaid interest. Accrued
interests are paid at fixed intervals on a quarterly basis. The index-linked
notes are designated as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
upon initial recognition as they contain one or more embedded derivatives.

The maturity dates of the index-linked notes outstanding as at 31st
December, 2008 are June 2017 and February 2018 respectively and was
therefore classified as non-current.

During the current year, all of the index-linked notes were early terminated,

resulting in a realised loss of approximately HK$6,064,000 for the year
ended 31st December, 2008.

25. Inventories

R-EZNE+_A=+—H0 XLHEA
45,000,000 7T 2 S S =R Ty LAE T
HE o Wikt FEHETE TSR EE
HRQB ) FIRE =+ FHETTETHRER
BF R ZREETE RS - BITABER
FIEARF ok 2 A ARG BB INMI M Rt R A
FMEERBERE - 25 F BRETEEH
M - AREESHBEER S —ES
EMETETE  MERYIZERRERET
BIRAFEFABR 2 SRMEE -

RIBZENF+TZA=Z+—RH " mRTEZ
HERHBAZEESOIR T —EERNAR
“Z-N\F-RRE BoBRIERD -

WEEE - FERERHOREDERE
I EERE-FEAF A= TR
E4F 496,084, 00078 72 2 A578 -

25 B%

2009 2008

—EEAE  —TT)\F

HK$°000 HK$'000

Fi&xT FiET

Merchandise held for resale BAEEEER M 60,513 62,582
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26. Trade and other receivables

108

26. RE SRR A L RERA

2009 2008

—EEAEF —EENF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHExT FAET

Trade receivables FEWBE T 62,507 56,837
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts W FREEREME (3,578) (2,852)
58,929 53,985

Other receivables, deposits and prepayments Hi e laoE - 14 RIBN A 104,995 88,042
Total trade and other receivables JE AT AR 3 K% EL b E W SR TE 4B RE 163,924 142,027

The Group’s retail sales to customers are mainly on cash basis, either

in cash, debit card or credit card payments. The Group does not have a
defined fixed credit policy as its major trade receivables arise from credit
card sales. The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables net of
allowance for doubtful debts presented based on the invoice date at the

AEERMBEEEHNTEHETENR DS
7 AIARE R RHEARNR - AR
AEETERYERFRAEMRHEE - SA
BEREEEERE - A TARBREDRHAEEHA
FEYRR (R RRBE) RIFEHZ R R

end of the reporting period. RO °
2009 2008
ZEThF —EZTNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx THET
0 - 30 days 0HZ=30H 54,554 42,470
31 - 60 days 31HZ=60H 3,078 10,559
61 — 90 days 61HZ90H 498 672
Over 90 days HBiE90H 199 284
58,929 53,985

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors with

aggregate carrying amount of HK$1,297,000 (2008: HK$956,000) which
are past due at the reporting date for which the Group has not provided
for impairment loss. The Group does not hold any collateral over these

balances. The average age of these receivables is 90 days (2008: 90

days).

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired

NG R W AR A AR B R BRI 48 (511,297,000
BT (ZZZ)\F : 956,000/ 7T) 2 FEUGR -
ZE RN HE AR E - AR
SEAREELREBIERE - REBILEH
ZEERFEEMERR - RERWFIAZ
THERAIOB(ZZTZN\F  90R) -

BHERREZ R R IREDT

2009 2008

—EENF ZEEN\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT

61 — 90 days 61HZ%=90H 498 672
Over 90 days B0 H 799 284
1,297 956

The Group has not provided fully for all receivables over 90 days because
historical experience is such that receivables are recoverable from the

relevant debtors.
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26. Trade and other receivables (wntinued)
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debt on trade receivables

26. R SRR A L R R ()
BUERRERELD

2009 2008

—EThE ZEENF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FA&T

Balance at beginning of the reporting period REH VIS S 2,852 2,799
Written off as uncollectible BRI “13n (515)
Impairment losses provided EEBEE 863 568
Balance at end of the reporting period A HRIR s A 3,578 2,852

27. Amount due from a jointly controlled entity

The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

28. Held for trading investments

27. Rk —ZE R &M THRRA

BRFRAERER  RERAREREE -

28 HAARULE

2009 2008

—EENF —EENF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Listed equity securities at fair value in Hong Kong F& FMRAES - BAFE 18,498 -
Unlisted debt securities at fair value FELTHES  BRATE 262,959 68,447
341,457 68,447

The fair value of held for trading investments is determined based on the
quoted market prices, and fair values provided by financial institution.

FEEEREZATEDREDERSEH
BT ATEERE

29. Loans receivable 29. R g

Loans receivable comprises: FEREREE -
2009 2008
—EThE ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBx FAT

Loan extended in relation to a project in Shenyang FEGIE B R 2B (HFa)

(note a) - 238,718

Loan to EganaGoldpfeil (Holdings) Limited (“Egana”) MEENBIR S B AR A
(note b) (TEEMEIRR DRt 2 B (M D) - 20,000
Loan to JA[JESE R TEHEMREEREFRE M 3L 5 R B HbEE 2%

(note c) BAREMTARERZ

&5 (MeEe) 157,583 -

Total 458

157,583 258,718
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29. Loans receivable (untinue)

Notes:

(a)

(c)

110

The loan represents the amount drawn down and remained outstanding as at 31st
December, 2008 from the HK$250 million facility the Company granted to a third
party group of companies (“Borrower Group”) who was in the process of taking over
a retail property project in the PRC. The loan was secured by the shares in certain
companies of the Borrower Group and guaranteed by a third party individual. The
loan barne interest at the Hong Kong prime rate and is repayable after 18 manths
from the loan agreement date on 6th November, 2006. In connection with this loan
facility, a subsidiary of the Company was granted an option from this Borrower Group
to acquire all equity interest in Leadplus International Limited which holds certain
retail property project which the Borrower Group was contemplating. The repayment
date of the loan was extended to 31st December, 2009 according to supplemental
agreement entered into between the borrower and the Group on 18th November,
2009.

Subsequent to the supplemental agreement signed on 18th November, 2009,

the Group exercised the option to acquire Leadplus International Limited. The loan
principal together with interest receivables amounting to HK$269,835,000 were

settled by off-setting against part of consideration the Group paid to the Borrower
Group for acquiring Leadplus International Limited (see note 41).

On 24th September, 2007, the Group granted a bridging loan of HK$300 million
(the “Bridging Loan”) to Egana (together with its subsidiaries the “Egana Group”) in
connection with the Group’s participation in the financial restructuring of the Egana
(“Proposed Restructuring™). The Bridging Loan bears interest at 2% above the Hong
Kong prime rate offered by The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation and is
secured by a charge over all equity interests in a wholly-owned subsidiary of Egana
that owns a brand (the “Brand”), a charge over certain office premises of the Egana
in Hong Kong and a charge over 434,345,736 shares of HK$1.00 each in the capital
of Egana (the “Pledged Shares”), representing approximately 29.67% of the issued
share capital held by the major shareholder of Egana.

On 26th September, 2008, the Bridging Loan became matured and no full repayment
of the Bridging Loan was made by Egana. On 28th October, 2008, the Group filed a
writ of summons to the High Court of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region to
demand Egana for repayment of the Bridging Loan.

Egana subsequently made partial repayment of the principal amount in the sum of
HK$3,385,000 to the Group and as a result the outstanding principal amount of

the Bridging Loan was reduced to HK$296,615,000 (the “Remaining Loan"). On
31st October, 2008, the Group served a statutory demand on Egana to require
repayment of the Remaining Loan plus interest within 21 days failing which the Group
may proceed under the provisions of the Companies Ordinance to taking further legal
actions against Egana.

At 31st December, 2008, the directors of the Company considered that the likelihood
of full recovery of the Remaining Loan is remote and that a provision for impairment
of the Remaining Loan is required in the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31st December, 2008. At 31st December, 2008, the recoverable amount of
the Remaining Loan is ascertained to be the net realisable value of the pledged office
premises which was estimated to be HK$20,000,000.

On 2nd June, 2009, the Group obtained the legal title of the pledged office premises
from Egana. The pledged office premises had been assessed with the valuation of
HK$38,180,000 at that date. Accordingly, HK$18,180,000 of impairment loss on
loan receivable previously recognised is now reversed and recognised as income in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The amount represents a loan advanced to JAl 1L %K B EMZE AR EL AT,
an independent third party who is in the process of acquiring an equity interest in an
entity during the year. It is unsecured, bears interest at 12% per annum and is fully
repayable on 18th March, 2010.
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29. R R &

P

(a)

(b)

(c)

BREFEARAAETFE=AAREE(E
75 %8 ]) 250,000,000/ iz & 2 12 ELM
RZZEZ\F+_A=+—BHKEEZS
B EBHEEENTERETE—ATENE
HE - FREREERFEENETETAA
ZROEE  YHEZAENALTER &
BEFUBERERFNERTE - BRERB
FESH_TTAF+—ANAR8EAR
BiE - RBEE  ARA—KKBARE
BREER FRER  NBAENBEBRER
ANRIZHRAREZ - AMEEARAREE
BREERETZETTEYHEELR - B
BHRAEENR_TTNAFE+— A+ /B
Y 2HRhE BHEERZEERRRESR
ZEENFFZA=1+—H"-

R-ZZTZNAF+—A+ N \BELHTHH
% AEBETERERKEENBERERA
A o U E A S E S 5 21269,835,000%
LB BEEAEERKEEMBERERA
ARG EESFHDOREZ TR (RH
541) -

R-IZETLFENA-TME FEEGRAE
5] £ SR ON BB (G [R) EL BT B8 1 =) e F [ gt
B EE])FBEA(TRAEA]) - mN
ERELBEEREET((BEER]D - B
BEERAES LTELRITAMBESRER
FIE2/ER B - W ABMNBBRE T A — 1A
([ REDZ2—RX2EHRBARKN2BR
A  BNEREEEESZETHAE
P R ENBIBR IR AP B R EE.008 T2
434,345,736 iz (7 ([ R |) (FH 2 P B
INEIBR = BRI i A B 31T A 4929.67%)
{EHRAF ©

RIZBENFARA-+RE - BEERED
5 EBNEREREEREEBEER - R
“EENFTATNR  REEEFEE
TR SRR EF —HEMSHK - L&
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Hig BONBERAASEEES D RS RE
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—ZEN\FTA=T—B FEERXRE—H
EFEBREBEE TRMNER - BEREE21XR

NEEFISERNFE - BRI - REBmMAE
i AR B 2% B 1691 2 16 S 0 B B R ERER L At

SERITH -

RZZENF+_A=1+—H ARAEHE
REZHWEFRERO A EEER - A
HHE_ZZNF+_A=+—HILFER
BEMBHRERPUFAERIERERE - £
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30.Pledged bank deposits

3].

32.

Pledged bank deposits
The pledged deposits carry fixed interest rate of 0.25% per annum.

Pledged bank deposits of HK$120,203,000 represents deposits pledged
to banks to secure banking facilities and will be released upon the
settlement of relevant bank borrowings. Accordingly, they are classified as
current assets.

30. LRIERIT B R

SHEPRITER
BRI T IR EEFFIR0.25/EA S

S ERTT1730120,203,000/8 7THR E M ERTT
ERZ2FH - NERRITRE - BHRNER
BRRITEERER SO BEARBDEE -

Bank balances and cash 3] BIFRBARA
At the end of the reporting period, bank balances and cash comprised RFERBEER - BITEFELRESIER
mainly short-term deposits which carry interest at prevailing market rates FEIRIRTmS A R 8 B =8 A B80S
with maturity of less than 3 months. BATFR o
Included in bank balances and cash are the following amounts denominated BT iﬁ&fﬁ BRE T AAEEEETED
in currency other than functional currency of the relevant group entities: e B AINE B ST E R TR
2009 2008
—EENFE —EENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TFHET
United States Dollar E5T 818,845 194,693
Assets classified as held for sale 32. 4~ %El AHENREZTA
On 16th December, 2009, Win Early Limited (“Win Early"), a wholly-owned ZETZNFT AR AEEEZEN

subsidiary of the Group, and Smart Success Investment Limited (“Smart
Success”), 40% shareholder of Ample Sun Group Limited, entered into

a conditional sale and purchase agreement as Vendors with GS China
Shopping No. 1 GmbH & Co. KG (the “Purchaser”), a limited partnership
incorporated under the laws of the Federal Republic of Germany, whereby
Win Early and Smart Success conditionally agreed to sell their respective
60% and 40% shareholding in Ample Sun Group Limited to the Purchaser.

The Group acquired 60% shareholding in Ample Sun Group Limited in
2007. Ample Sun Group Limited is an investment holding company and its
major asset is its 48% equity interest in Future Mall, a company established
in the PRC.

The assets attributable to Ample Sun Group Limited expected to be sold
within twelve months from the end of the reporting period were classified
as assets held for sale as at 31st December, 2009. The carrying amount
of the assets as at 31st December, 2009, which has been presented
separately in the consolidated statement of financial position, is as follows:

E KEBRAR([4E]D) (RFEER
%lﬁﬁﬁ A)40%#E 25 2 IR Smart Success
Investment Limited([ Smart Success ) {EA&E 77
EAGS China Shopping No. 1 GmbH & Co. KG ([ &
7 RBEE S EANBAEE M2
EREAABCE)IVERGEERZ &
It - 488 & Smart SuccessB KRB RE T
PEFESANEREEBRAFB0%&40%
J&HE -

AEER_ZTLFUBEREEEGRA
BO%AHE - SR EBEAR QA RREZER
A EXEEERBBATEKIIZ AR
R T ESABWIE

J'L/\

BHRREEARAREEEESNREH
MEEREF T —EARLE  R_FF
NFE+ZA=+T—BIHOBRAKELEZE
E-RBEER _TEAFT+-_A=1+—B2Z
FREED EREMBARRNKR B2

2009
—2TnE
HK$’000
FH

Interest in an associate held for sale

R RS E AR #s

436,909
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33. Trade and other payables 33 R ERA LR RA
2009 2008
ZEENF ZETN\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Trade payables FERTERER 239,324 217,871
Concessionaire sales payable eI BB E IR 832,745 668,387
Other payables, deposits and accrued charges HMEMNRIE - e RESER 1,073,094 562,054
2,145,163 1,448,312
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented based on the ATARREAHEEAENERERRERE
invoice date at the end of the reporting period. BEAZ BRER 4T ©
2009 2008
—EThE ZETN\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET F&T
0 - 30 days 0H=30H 187,768 187,866
31 - 60 days 31H=60H 42,648 26,992
61 - 90 days B61HZ=90H 5,785 527
Over 90 days HiE90H 3,123 2,486
239,324 217,871
The average credit period of trade payables and concessionaire sales FERTBR AR R BT R AT BB I & ;IE 2 T 1E
payable is within 45 days. The Group has financial risk management BEHRASE AN - REEREMBRREIR
policies in place to ensure that all payables are paid within the credit B - BRFTAENRIENMEEHR A o
timeframe.
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34. Bank borrowings 34. BAAHR

2009 2008
—EThE ZETN\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Bank borrowings comprised bank loans and IRITIEERRITER
analysed as: P - WIRA T T -
Secured BEF 3,016,170 2,939,000
Unsecured gt 170,550 79,100
3,186,720 3,018,100
Carrying amount repayable: FEERAREE
On demand or within one year FEESkE—FERNEE 1,043,290 592,100
More than one year, but not exceeding two years —FRENEBRME 1,745,480 500,000
More than two years, but not exceeding three years — FI4E/& (BT HRB =4 56,850 1,745,200
More than three years, but not exceeding four years =128 BB 4 56,850 56,500
More than four years, but not exceeding five years WFERETBBRT 68,220 56,500
Over five years HBEAaF 216,030 67,800
3,186,720 3,018,100
Less:  Amounts due within one year shown under o IIARE B ER
current liabilities —FE Rz A (1,043,290) (592,100)
Amount due after one year —FBBH 7 kA 2,143,430 2,426,000
Floating-rate borrowings comprise: FEEERE:
Carrying amount
REE
2009 2008
—EENEF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
HKD bank loan at HIBOR + 0.29% p.a. BITIRITER - IREBRTT
RZEFEMELEQ29EFED 2,550,000 2,600,000
Other RMB bank loans @ Hih ARERTEFR@ 636,720 418,100
Total borrowings BERRE 3,186,720 3,018,100
o Repayable in two years (2008: three years) and interest rates will be repriced every w ARMF(ZTTNGF : =ZF)RNEERE - A
one month to three months. RER—E=(AAEHEME -
@ Repayable in eight years (2008: six years) and the loans carry interest with reference @ ERNF(ZZZENGE : XF)ANEE MA
to benchmark loan rates of financial institutions set by The People’s Bank of China. BERZFBEUNZEZFRBRARRITEHEZS

MR EE SRR R R -

The ranges of effective interest rates of the borrowings are also equal to BRI R EEIREET L FIEAER -
contracted interest rates.
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34 5B5 B R @)
RIBEENEER - AEEERE RN
% B R IR ENER 1780 4 HE 40/5798,000,0007%
TL(ZZTZT)\F : 1,281,000,000/8 )0 -

34. Bank borrowings (wntinues)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has undrawn borrowing
facilities with floating rate expiring within 2 years amounting to
approximately HK$798 million (2008: HK$1,281 million) as follows:

2009 2008
ZEBEhEF ZETNF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Floating rate AN
— expiring within one year — —FRE|H 141,810 281,370
— expiring beyond one year — —F1£ 55 650,000 1,000,000
191,810 1,281,370

35 Deferred taxation

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of financial
position, certain deferred tax asset and liabilities have been offset. The
following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting

35 ik & R

HRREGEMBRRNR2RANME - FTE
ERBEENRABECEE - B BREEW

ZRETHIRRESR DTN -

purposes:
2009 2008
—EThEF —EEN\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Deferred tax liabilities FIETRIBEAE 168,983 73,144
Deferred tax assets REFHIEE = - (1,855)
Net position ezl 168,983 71,289

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised
and movements thereon during the current and prior years:

NTRAEEER 2 TREEHREERE
EARRAEE LBEFENEE

Interest in
Property, plant subsidiaries,
and equipment/ associates
investment and jointly
properties controlled entity Tax losses Total
nE - BE RBAF
RRfE/ EHEARARER
REWE EHEEZER BIEEE @st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAL FAT FHL FAL
At 1st January, 2008 R—EEN\F—A—H 26,883 - (5,611 21,272
Disposal of subsidiary HERB AR (1,029 - - (1,029
Charge to profit or loss (note 12) 1% BBz (MisH12) 38,772 10,054 3,436 52,262
Effect of change in tax rate ik 2 (1,536) - 320 (1,216)
At 31st December, 2008 NZTTN\F
+=-A=+—H 63,090 10,054 (1,855) 71,289
Charge to other comprehensive NkaEmE2mRA
income 39,987 - - 39,987
Charge to profit or loss (note 12) 0% & 182 (MiE12) 43,474 12,378 1,855 57,707
At 315t December, 2009 RZZETNEF
+=-—fB=+—H 146,551 22,432 - 168,983
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35. Deferred taxation (wntinued)

36.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately HK$388.4 million (2008: HK$322.4 million) available for
offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of approximately HK$ nil (2008: HK$11.2 million) of such losses.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining
HK$388.4 million (2008: HK$311.2 million) due to unpredictability of
future profit streams. At 31st December, 2009, all tax losses may be
carried forward indefinitely.

Other payable

In October 2007, the Group acquired the 60% of the issued share capital
of Ample Sun Group Limited which holds 99% equity interest in Future
Mall. This non-current other payable represents part of the purchase
consideration being withheld in respect of the acquisition which the vendor
guaranteed that the amount of investment income (representing any
attributable net profit after tax but before depreciation and amortisation
from Future Mall during the period between the completion date of this
acquisition and 30th April, 2011) for the Group from this acquisition

will not be less than RMB100,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$113,700,000) (“Investment Income Guarantee ).

During 2008, the Group entered into an equity interests swap agreement
with an independent third party to dispose of its 51% equity interest in
Future Mall (note 42). Following the equity interests swap, Future Mall
has become an associate of the Group and its operation has changed from
property holding for rental income to operation of a department store
since 1st January, 2009. Against this background and the changes, the
Group and the vendor agreed that it is no longer possible to ascertain
whether the Investment Income Guarantee would be met and in December
2009, the Group and the vendor entered into a settlement agreement
whereby, the vendor agreed that the Group is not required to repay the
withheld amount and that the Group will not ask for additional investment
return from the Vendor other than the amount withheld. Accordingly,

the HK$60,000,000 non-current other payable, which repayment was
considered by the directors as probable at 31st December, 2008, was
recognised as other income during the reporting period.

37. Amount due to a minority shareholder of a subsidiary

The amount is unsecured, interest free and repayable after one year.

35 ik 3& BA (4

ﬁ@i&%ﬁﬁ?ﬁ%:a AEBEERSHHFE
E518 40 388,400,000 L (—Z T N\ &F
322,400,000/ L) /] A{ERE A B HF -
VERZEEBRTFHNTBEL(ZZTTN\F
11,200,000 70 ) BRIEERBEE - AR
B % 5% 7 OR & LA TE R - Mt W EBL AR T
388,400,000/% 7T.( === )\ £ : 311,200,000
BIL)BRELEHBEEE - R_ZTNF+=
A=+—R  FrEHBEEES A ERREE -

36. £ e 44 A

37.

RZZZLFE+A  AEERBBEERT
SR A R REBERATCD #
TTRCANB0% © FE BN HIE f JE 15 BB 5 20 0 5E
WHARMZBERE  BUHESRE &
EENRBTK AR E T ——FMA=1
HEfE B B GRERAB TG LMRAR
# 100,000,000 7T ( 4948 & 7% 113,700,000 %
7o) - BMERTESEMEEGRBULERETIT
B A A (B W AR D) -

RZZBENF  AEEBRBTE=TF LK
BERE - AHERERTES 251%K

g (MisEd2) - REEME - ERTES
BRAEE 22 AT - WA - ERTES
VEEE —TTNF-A-BECARED
EXURKEBEE - ERUBEERER - &
SEERESRENAESEEE R AERE
ﬁﬂ&)\ﬁ*ﬂ% YR —FZENF+ = ARILH

Il BAREASERAENENS
%Ei CMAKESTERES EXRERNE
RROMOTESMT B MR - HERUL - EENZ
ZENFFT_A=+-"RRRZEAULTE
1B & 2 E b JF BN HA fE 4 5 1B 60,000,00078 7T
R EHRERREMBEA

R —EWBRE—8 Y &
&2 %G
BRAFEAEER  RBNREN—FREER
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38. Share capital of the Company

116

Details of the changes in the Company’s share capital during the year

38 %L W%

HE_ZZANF+_A=Z+—HLEFE &K

ended 31st December, 2009 are as follows: NRIZBRAZEFHEENT ¢
Number of
shares Amount
%k 2 4= HIE
HK$'000
FAT
Authorised: SETE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.005 each as at RZZEZNFT_A=+—HEK
31st December, 2008 and 31st December, 2009 —ZEENF+=A=+—H
S ME(E0.0058 T2 TimMk 4,000,000,000 20,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRAE
At 1st January, 2008 — ordinary shares of RZZEZENF—HA—H
HK$0.005 each — S mEEC.0058 Tz @Mk 1,705,083,000 8,525
Exercise of share options — ordinary shares of 1T — SR ME0.005/8 T
HK$0.005 each 2R 2,076,000 11
Shares repurchased 5[0l 2 B 1n (33,193,500) (166)
At 31st December, 2008 RZBEENF+=-_A=+—H 1,673,965,500 8,370
Exercise of share options (note a) TR RE (Pt 5Ta) 12,111,000 60
Shares repurchased (note b) EAT i N EE) (12,456,500) (62)
At 31st December, 2009 R-ZBEZAFE+_A=+—H 1,673,620,000 8,368
Notes: B&E
(a)  During the year, 2,955,000 shares of HK$0.005 each were issued at HK$6.16 per @ FAARAREREREATEZZSZH

share upon exercise of the 2005 share option and 9,156,000 shares of HK$0.005
each were issued at HK$6.37 per share upon exercise of the 2006 share option (as
defined under note 39) of the Company by share option holders and all these shares

rank pari passu with other ordinary shares of the Company in all respects.

(b) During the year, the Company repurchased its own shares from the market as

FREER-ZTRFERECESR LIE
39) K 9 Al B %6.16/% T 172,955,000 %
R EE0.0058 T 2 iy ki F6.37/8
JL3£179,156,000/% & A% [ {E0.0058 7T 2 B
- AZERNRENEHEAREEAM
TRk EARSEE

b RER ARERTSLERESFBRHZF

follows: BT -

Number of Price per share Rggregate
Month of ordinary shares SRER consideration
repurchase HK$0.005 each Highest Lowest paid

SREE

0.0058 T
BE A5 ZREREE 54 BIE FrkeENRE
HKS HKS HK$'000
BT BT FHT
January 2009 —ETNF—A 5,400,000 7.88 6.02 35,759
April 2009 —ETNFNA 4,424,000 7.50 7.04 32,253
May 2009 —ETNFRA 2,632,500 9.02 7.63 22,987
12,456,500 9.02 6.02 90,999

Note: The above shares were repurchased and cancelled during the year.

None of the Company’s subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any
the Company’s listed securities during the year.
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39. Share-based payment transactions

The 2004 Share Option Scheme

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted for a
period of 10 years commencing 27th March, 2004. Under the Scheme,
the Company may grant options to selected full-time employees and
directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in
the Company. Additionally, the Company may, from time to time, grant
share options to eligible advisors and consultants to the Company and its
subsidiaries at the discretion of the Board of Directors.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any point of time, without prior approval from the
Company's shareholders. The number of shares issued and to be issued in
respect of which options granted and may be granted to any individual in
any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any point in time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders. Options granted to substantial shareholders, independent
non-executive directors, or any of their respective associates (including

a discretionary trust whose discretionary objects include a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director or any of their
respective associates) in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital
or with a value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be approved by the
Company's shareholders.

Option granted must be taken up within the time limit specified in the
offer letter (which shall not be later than 5 days from the date of offer),
upon payment of HK$1 per option. Options may be exercised at any time
during a period commencing on or after the date on which the option is
accepted and deemed to be granted and expiring on a date to be notified
by the Board to each grantee which shall not be more than 10 years from
the date on which the option is accepted and deemed to be granted. The
exercise price is determined by the directors of the Company, and will not
be less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the Company's shares
on the date of grant, (ii) the average closing price of the shares for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Company's share.

The 2009 Share Option Scheme

The adoption of a new share option scheme (the “2009 Share Option
Scheme”) was approved by the shareholders of the Company in an
extraordinary general meeting held on 3rd March, 2009 for a period of 10
years commencing from 3rd March, 2009 as incentive or reward for the
contribution of the eligible participants to the growth of the Group and to
provide to the Group with a more flexible means to reward, remunerate,
compensate and/or provide benefits to the eligible participants.

Under the 2009 Share Option Scheme, the Company may grant options

to (a) any full-time or part-time employee of the Company and/or any
subsidiary; (b) any Director (including Executive, Non-executive and
Independent Non-executive Director) of the Company and/or any subsidiary;
and (c) any consultant or adviser (whether professional or otherwise and
whether on an employment or contractual or honorary basis or otherwise
and whether paid or unpaid), distributor, contractor, supplier, service
provider, agent, customer and business partner of the Company and/or any
subsidiary who, at the sole determination of the Board, have contributed
or will contribute to the Company and/or any subsidiary.

39 BHRZH

—EEMFRREE

ARRERMB-_TZENF=A_+LAKE
RETEZBRESSI([ZTE]) - RIEZ
& ARRIAIAALRE REMBARLER
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RERLD Wb - RRABATKEREERH
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o MEREEXRABEIERERRBEL
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REAHTF (EREERZEEHALE
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39. Share-based payment transactions (wntinues)

118

The 2009 Share Option Scheme (continued)

There is no general requirement on the minimum period for which an
option must be held or the performance targets which must be achieved
before an option can be exercised under the terms of the 2009 Share
Option Scheme. However, the Board may offer to grant any options subject
to such terms and conditions in relation to the minimum period of the
options to be held and/or the performance targets to be achieved before
such Options can be exercised and/or any other terms as the Board may
determine in its absolute discretion.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options which may be granted under the 2009 Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company must not, in aggregate,
exceed 166,860,950 shares, representing 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at 3rd March, 2009, the date on which the
2009 Share Option Scheme was approved by the shareholders of the
Company. The Board may seek approval by shareholders in general
meeting to renew such limit provided that it must not exceed 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company at the date of approval of the renewed
limit. The maximum aggregate number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the 2009 Share Option Scheme and any other scheme must not
exceed such number of shares as shall represent 30% of the issued share
capital of the Company from time to time.

Where options are proposed to be granted to a substantial shareholder
or an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company or any of their
respective associates, and the proposed grant of options will result in

the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options already granted and to be granted (including options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the 12-month period up to
and including the date of such grant representing in aggregate over 0.1%
of the issued share capital of the Company on the date of offer and having
an aggregate value, based on the closing price of the shares at the date
of each grant, in excess of HK$5 million, such grant of options must be
subject to the approval of the shareholders taken on a poll at general
meeting. The connected person involved in such proposed grant of options
and all other connected persons of the Company must abstain from voting
in such general meeting (except that any connected person may vote
against the proposed grant provided that his intention to do so has been
stated in the relevant circular to the shareholders).

Option granted must be taken up within the time limit specified in the offer
letter (which shall not be later than 5 days from the date of offer), upon
payment of HK$1 on acceptance of the offer. Options may be exercised at
any time during a period to be notified by the Board to each grantee which
shall not be more than 10 years from the date of the offer. The exercise
price is determined by the Directors of the Company, and will be at least
the highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
grant, (ii) the average closing price of the shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company’s share.
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39. Share-based payment transactions (untinues)
Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

39 BHGSREH@
YA B AR 2 S AN T -

Adjusted
Exercise  exercise
Option type Date of grant Vlesting period Exercise period price price
BAE
BRERESE REBH HEHD 1TEH TEE TEE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
2005 7.10.2005 7.10.2005 - 7.10.2008 7.10.2006 - 26.3.2014 12.32 6.16
—ZTTRF —ZTRF “ZTTRFTAERE —TETERFTAERE
+A+tH T )N\F+AEH —ZT-FE=ZA=+<H
2006 16.3.2006 16.3.2006 - 16.3.2009 16.3.2007 - 26.3.2014 12.74 6.37
ZETRF ZZTRF —ETRF=ZA+HE —ETLF=A+BE
=A+xH —ZETZNF=A+<H —E-FE=ZA=+<H
2007A 31.8.2007 31.8.2007 - 1.10.2011 1.10.2009 - 26.3.2014 37 18.50
ZEELFR —ETLF —EZT+FE)\f=+—HE —ETAF+A-HZE
NA=+—H —=—%+A—H —E-FE=A=+<H
20078 31.8.2007 31.8.2007 - 1.10.2010 1.10.2008 - 26.3.2014 37 18.50
ZZTEFLZ T LF —ZT+F)\f=+—HE T \F+H-H=
NA=+—H —ZT-TF+HA—H —ZT-FE=ZA=+<H
2007C 31.8.2007 31.8.2007 - 1.10.2010 1.10.2008 - 26.3.2014 37 18.50
—ZTTHFR e —“ET+E)N\A=+—HFE —EBEEN\F+A-HZE
NA=+—8 i S —E-MFE=ZA=+XA
2009 2.2.2009 (note 1) 2.2.2009 -7.2.2012 7.2.2010-26.3.2014 6.40 6.40
—EZNF —EENF-AZR ZETANF-A=H —E-TFE-_A+EBEE
(B3E1) —T——F-A+tH —E—NFE=ZA=1+<H
Notes: PiEE -
1. Option subject to approval by independent shareholders was proposed and granted by 1. EERAR-ETNF-_A-HEREELS

Board of Directors on 2nd February, 2009. The approval was subsequently obtained
on 3rd March, 2009, which is the date of grant as defined in accordance with HKFRS 2.

PRI 2 BB - RRIVIREBES
BB RELRFEFRAELRHAH_ZTH
FZA=ABSHEAE
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39. Share-based payment transactions (wntinues)

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share options

39 BHGBHIRZH@
TREBETEERESMIFANTBIRE

held by certain employees and directors: -
2009 —EERE
Outstanding at Outstanding at
31st December, Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled 31st December,
Option type 2008 during year during year during year during year 2009
RIZENE RZZENE
+ZA=t-H TZR=1-H
HRATE FERE FRfTE FREM FRHE HRTE
2005 4,621,000 - (2,955,000) (382,000) - 1,290,000
2006 9,156,000 - (9,156,000) - - -
2007A 11,240,000 - - (170,000) (11,070,000) -
20078 10,280,000 - - (950,000) (9,330,000) -
2007C 11,020,000 - - - - 17,020,000
2009 (Note) ZETREE) - 20,400,000 - (440,000) - 19,360,000
Total @t 52,323,000 20,400,000 (12,111,000) (1,942,000) (20,400,000) 38,270,000
Exercisable at end of the year AR T17(E 13,204,000
HKS HKS$ HKS HKS HKS HKS
A A7 A7 A7 A7 A7
\Weighted average exercise FRIMELTEE
price per share 15.29 6.40 6.32 13.33 18.50 nn
2008 —EENF
QOutstanding at QOutstanding at
31st December, Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled  31st December,
Option type 2007 during year during year during year during year 2008
WZETLE RZEEN\E
TZA=+-H TZR=+-H
iR RARTTE FREE ERfTE FRRH FRTE RARTTE
2005 - 6,757,000 - (2,076,000) (54,000 - 4,627,000
2008 - 9,156,000 - - - - 9,156,000
2007A - 11,340,000 - - (100,000 - 11,240,000
20078 - 10,630,000 - - (350,000 - 10,280,000
2007C - 17,020,000 - - - - 17,020,000
Total st 54,903,000 - (2,076,000) (504,000 - 52,323,000
Exercisable at end of the year AR F17(F 20,125,000
HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$ HKS$ HK$
BT B BT B BT B
Weighted average exercise SFRMELSER
price per share 14.96 - 6.16 1718 - 15.29

M BE_TEAFT _A=+—HLFE K
A A)ET#% H 20,400,000 B AR A - AR =
ETHFRR_ETLFCBRERERRET
BTt IR - W MERRERE 2 7
N

Note: During the year ended 31st December, 2009, 20,400,000 share options were newly
granted as replacement for the cancelled share options under option types of 2007A
and 2007B and this is accounted for as a madification of the original share options.
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As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for foreign investment
enterprises in the PRC, the Company’s PRC subsidiaries are required to
maintain a statutory surplus reserve fund. Appropriation to such reserve is
made out of net profit after taxation as reflected in the statutory financial
statements of the PRC subsidiaries while the amounts and allocation

basis are decided by its board of directors annually. The statutory surplus
reserve fund can be used to make up prior year losses, if any, and can be
applied in conversion into capital by means of capitalisation issue.

39. Share-based payment transactions (wntinued) 39 BGEREZH @
In respect of the share options exercised during the year, the weighted ERNDTEERENS  STEBHZM
average share price at the dates of exercise is HK$11.05 (2008: RIS A11.058 T ( —FEZ)\F : 18.57
HK$18.57). BT °
During the year ended 31st December, 2009, share option was granted EBHE-ETZAF+ A=+ —RILEE
on 3rd March, 2009 and the estimated fair value of the options granted AN ARRRZEEZNF=ZA=ZBELHER
on that date was as follows: T o Rz AR 2 BRIE 2 (AT ATFENT
Grant date Fair value
=L A¥E
HK$
BT
2009 3.3.2009 0.98
—ZTAF —ETNF=HA=H
The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately before 3rd March, RARIROREE_TZNEF=A=HAIZ
2009 was HK$5.78. WM{E AL 788 7T °
The fair value was calculated using the Black-Scholes pricing model. The IE AT ETRMB 7 — TR AT | HAEEE
inputs into the model were as follows: BAFHE - RAZBRKXZEHFTOT ¢
2009 2007A 20078 2007C 2006 2005
ZEENE ZERLER “EEtFZ ZEEtER ZETE “ZTHE
Share price on grant date RELFEASZRE HKS5.53 HK$33.80 HK$33.80 HK$43.80 HK$13.15 HK$12.15
Adjusted share price on WRE B CRRRE
grant date HK$5.53 HK$16.90 HK$16.90 HK$21.90 HK$6.58 HK$6.08
Exercise price TEE HK$6.40 HK$37.00 HK$37.00 HK$37.00 HK$12.74 HK$12.32
Adjusted exercise price BRARIFEE HK$6.40 HK$18.50 HK$18.50 HK$18.50 HK$6.37 HK$5.16
Expected volatility BHRE 55.26% 32% 32% 32% 30.71% 32.47%
Expected life BES 15to35years 26todByears  16to3.6years 1.5t 3.5 years 5.5 years 8.5 years
Risk-free rate BRI R 0.57%-1.21% 4.09%t04.23% 4.03%tod.16%  3.81%to 4.00% 4.53% 4.18%
Expected dividend yield BEREZ 4.30% 1.22% 1.22% 1.22% 2.52% 2.73%
Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility of the TERREBARARIRENBAFE 2B LR
Company'’s share price in the preceding year. The expected life used in the BET - ZEAPFEAZBAFRDIERE
model has been made, based on management's best estimate and take BELERTIERE - 1TERVRITAZSE
into account the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and EERIEL 2 BEGBFHEL TR -
behavioral considerations.
The Group recognised an expense in the statement of comprehensive REBEEZE_ZZNE+_A=+—HILEE "
income of approximately HK$48.2 million (2008: HK$91.0 million) for the REBBARREEBRER Z2EKH K
year ended 31st December, 2009 in relation to share options granted by W R X 4948,200,0008 L (Z T T )\ F
the Company. 91,000,000/ 7T) °
40. Reserves 405 %

RERPBEIIECRZABERER - &
RBEZHEMNBRARAFEEZERES - B
B 2 BR TR B B S A RDAE %
WRZBBIZAN - MARBRDOEEEHE
EREFRE  AELBE A AREAEE
FEZBE(A) WATRERNEETZH
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41. Acquisition of assets 4. KBRA
During the year ended 31st December, 2009, the Group completed the HE_ZZNF+_A=+—"HIEFER
acquisition of 100% interest in Leadplus International Limited (“Leadplus”) AEBDTERBEBLE =7 W HEEMRARE
from an independent third party, for a consideration of HK$282,835,000. BRAR([EM]) 223D RKEA
Maijor assets of Leadplus are investment properties under construction 282,835,000/ 7T - GBIz EBEEANMNF
situated in the PRC and as such, the acquisition has been accounted for as Bl EREPIREYE - Atk - ZWBIREE
acquisition of assets rather than business. WEEABR - MIELEFUEBARR -
Net assets of the Leadplus acquired are as follows: FrURE <RI BEFEINT -
Leadplus
SEhn
HK$'000
FET
Property, plant and equipment ME - BERRE 30
Investment properties under construction TERFIREMZE 420,280
Other receivables H fth fEULFRIE 3,426
Bank balances and cash RITREF RIS 1,280
Trade and other payables JEAST BR 0 e EL Ath FE A< K18 (142,181
282,835
Satisfied by: KT AER
Cash consideration HERE 13,000
Settlement of outstanding loan and interest receivables due S ERE S EEREZEER
from Borrower Group (note 29(a)) KB (Ff5E28(a)) 269,835
282,835
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WEEEA 2 IR 4 m i FaE ¢
Cash consideration paid ENEERE 13,000
Bank balances and cash acquired FrURBBSRITR T A S (1,280)
11,720
During the year ended 31st December, 2008, the Group completed the HE-_ZTT N\F+_A=+—HLEFERN -
acquisition of 100% interest in each of A:EF &8 rEE AR A A)* (Dalian RNEBED TR BB E = 7 W KEFERR
Itokin Commercial Building Company Limited) (“Dalian Co”), & & F £558 FEBRAR([KEAR]) - EEFERD
mEARA R (Qingdao Itokin Commercial Building Company Limited) EERATH[ESAA]) - REFEREE
("Qingdao Co", K2 FEPsRrEHRR AR (Tianjin Itokin Commercial BRAR(TRERF ] RaRAEFEHEEE
Building Company Limited) (“Tianjin Co"), and WA EEFEIEHEGRE L BRAR([TREEARDSQR (FREFEH
&)* (Harbin Itokin Commercial Building Company Limited) (“Harbin Co”) WA )z 28R - LB R743,467,000/%
(collectively referred to as “Itokin Companies”) from an independent third Lo FHB AR ZEEEEARFH L TH
party, for a consideration of HK$743,467,000. Major assets of the Itokin REF - At - ZWBREERBAR M
Companies are land and buildings situated in the PRC and as such, the B E S LGNS
acquisitions have been accounted for as acquisitions of assets rather than
businesses.
RNEFEHEEAR AR, SSTEBEEGR AR, REFEHHRD REFHBEEBRAF - 5 HABREE
[EERA R &I REFERE8 R E AR A 7] were subsequently renamed as BRAR - REFHBHEERAAREE
FllEmECB@IERA AR, ZZEEEEERAE, FIEEEERR) BFEREEARABTNERD RSB BT
BRA R R EENEREBBR A respectively. BEE(KE)ERAR  mEZRE(ES)E
RARE - FIEEEECR) ARAFLEE
BREREARAT -
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4.

42.

Acquifition 0f assets (continued)
Net assets of the Itokin Companies acquired were as follows:

4. BERAE @

PRUCEB R AR 2 BEFEWT ¢

Itokin
Companies
FREEE AT
HK$'000
FHT
Property, plant and equipment mE - WENREE 438,137
Prepaid lease payments TEfTH 150,435
Investment properties EWE 182,103
Other receivables H eI A 2,006
Bank balances and cash RITREGFE A 35,489
Trade and other payables FETBR R N Hofh FE A~ 7008 (61,403)
Short-term loan HIE K (3,300)
743,467
Satisfied by: BTN FAEZAT
Cash consideration HeRE 725,350
Other payable Ho A fE (5008 18,117
743,467
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WEEE RS MLFE -
Cash consideration paid ENEERE 725,350
Bank balances and cash acquired PR IRITAAE R & (35,489)
689,861
Equity interests swap 42. BHEE$
On 18th April, 2008, the Group entered into an equity interests swap RZZEZNFOA+NE - NEEEERE
agreement with the purchaser, e[t 58 TR b E B Z D B R A 7 VEZAZEAMILETEERERNDE

Hebei Kaiyuan Real Estate Development Joint Stock Company Limited
(“Kaiyuan Real Estate”), an independent third party, for the disposal of
51% equity interest in Future Mall which was at that time 99% held
by a 60% owned subsidiary of the Group, A5 H/BIEE 5 ER A F)
(Shijiazhuang Xuheng Trading Company Limited), in exchange for the
entire equity interest in Ja[ 1L B)RI&E B BR A ) (formerly known as jaf
ibfBJRE 5 AR A 7)) (Hebei Xuyuan Trading Company Limited) (‘Hebei
Xuyuan”) held by Kaiyuan Real Estate (“Equity Interests Swap”). Future
Mall has since become an associate of the Group following completion
of the Equity Interests Swap (note 21).

RAR(THTEE )AL g E R -
A &R SR T E S (B A 5 B 7 A 0%
BB RARAREREESBERAAFE
99%#E 55 ) 2 519N A - FELARER R T
FHERE 2L BRI EBR AR ([ AT
AALBRE S ER A ]) 2 A AR (K
BER]) - REBERERE  EXTES
BUbR AR E Z B N E (HEE21) -
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42.

124

Equity interests swap (ontinued)

The net assets of Hebei Xuyuan, which comprise mainly those of its
associated company Beiren Group upon completion of the Equity Interests
Swap that has been accounted for using the purchase method, were as

42. BB R @)

KRB R TTAREILBRZ BEFE(TE
BEABMEARIEASEZ EEFE) BiRK
BRSBTS

follows:

Hebei Xuyuan

Group’s carrying Fair value
amount adjustments Fair value
ST B R SR B
ZEREE AR EBE ATE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT TFHET FAT
(note)
(MI3E)
Interests in associates NI o 199,265 475,190 674,455
Other receivables H b fE Y k18 3,805 - 3,805
Bank balances and cash WITHEFERES 71 - 71
203,141 475,190 678,331
Discount arising on acquisition of Uy BB 8N R EE A 2 IT A8
associates (207,577)
Total consideration BB 470,754
Satisfied by: BIFIHEAEA
51% equity interest in Future Mall SR TES 2 51%[% 470,754
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition BB EE A 2 IR SR AR
Cash consideration paid ERNEERE -
Bank balances and cash acquired PRl RITRERIRS 71
71

Note: The fair value adjustments of interests in associates represented mainly the
revaluation surplus of the land and buildings of the associates of Hebei Xuyuan.

The fair value of property, plant and equipment are determined by an independent
appraiser, BDGH, at the acquisition date.

Hebei Xuyuan contributed a loss of HK$1,605,000 to the Group's profit
for the year between the date of acquisition and 31st December, 2008.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1st January, 2008, effect to total
group revenue and profit for the year would have been insignificant.
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42. Equity interests swap (ontinue)

The net assets of Future Mall at the date of disposal upon the Equity

42. BH R @

FRTESN EXAREERZ ZHER

Interests Swap as described above were as follows: B BEFENT
Future Mall
KRTES
HK$'000
FHET
Investment properties AW 1,562,110
Other receivables Hth fE i 58 3,300
Bank balances and cash BITHEERES 413
Trade and other payables JE A~ BR Tk % EL th JE A~ R IE (637,408)
Deferred tax liabilities EERRIEEE (1,029)
927,386
Minarity interests DER RS (9,274)
918,112
Transferred to interest in associates [ F N NG (445,145)
472,967
Exchange reserve realised 5 30 0 5 kS 2,213
470,754
Satisfied by: KT FAEZ -
100% interest in Hebei Xuyuan and its associates T L B R R H B2 N B 2 2f g s 470,754
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WEEE RS mLFE -
Cash consideration paid BENRERE -
Bank balances and cash disposed of FTHERITET RS (413)
(413)
43. Operating leases 43. BEWE
The Group as lessee AEBERFEA
2009 2008
—EThE ZETN\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Minimum lease payments paid under operating leases HERIB B LA DS~
during the period: BEALHOFHE
Other assets HibBE 12,826 -
Leasehold land and buildings HE L RIET 2,114,873 2,211,986
2,127,699 2,211,986
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases which fall
due as follows:
2009 2008
—EThE ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FA&T
Within one year —FR 151,148 145,362
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EZERTF(REERRE) 585,325 560,549
Over five years BARF 1,391,226 1,506,075
2,127,699 2,211,986
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43.

126

Operating leases (ntinuer)

The Group as lessee (continued)

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for
leasing commercial properties and other assets which represented
machineries. Leases are generally negotiated for an average term of one
to five years and rentals are fixed for an average of two years except the
following:

(a) Lease of Shanghai Joinbuy Cityplaza by Shanghai Ongoing Department
Store Limited, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, for the
period from 1st October, 2004 to 30th September, 2024, with an
option to renew for a further 10 years.

(b)  Lease of the Amazon, No. 12 Salisbury Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon
by Sogo Hong Kong Company Limited, with Hong Kong Island
Development Limited for the period from 15th September, 2005
to 14th September, 2020, with an option to renew for a further 5
years.

The Group as lessor
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with tenants
for the following future minimum lease payments:

43 8B%HE )
REEEREAAGE)
TSI A EE R LY R
AR (B E) BB 2 S - G —MIRT
MREH—EREHE  HeFHESMEE
TE - ML T BIBRIBRSDN -

@ ARFBFREMBARLEANBEEHR
RARIFRIZEB LEBNERTES 2
By HBHR -—ETOFTA-BEC
ZoWFENA=TE - AERE—SE
HI+4F -

b SA(EB)BEERAREESHREA
IRABPARISLARLEESR D EREER
BIR2FL/HELELY  HHH-FT
FFNA+TRAE=ZZS-ZEFNA+N
B AEBEE-SENDE -

AEEER LA
RESBHBER - AEEDERST 00
A SIEROZBLT :

2009 2008

—EEAF —EZENF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Within one year —FR 40,390 27,876
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EZFAF(BIEEEMTF) 58,378 18,972
98,768 46,848

Leases are generally negotiated for an average term of one to five years.
In addition, the Group had contracted with its concessionaire to receive

contingent rentals based on the concessionaires’ turnover for an average
term of one to two years.
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44. Capital and other commitments

44 Bk B BegkpE

2009 2008
—EEAF ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Capital expenditure in respect of the acquisition of BHEEAME HEX
property, plant and equipment REZEARAX

— Authorised but not contracted for — RN RETA 2,954,400 2,978,900

— Contracted for but not provided in the consolidated — B 5] 401 R 4R & B 7S
financial statements wEBE 13,300 378,400
2,968,200 3,357,300

45. Contingent liabilities

46.

Pursuant to two sales and purchase agreements entered into among the
subsidiaries in 1985 and 1996, certain properties were transferred within
the Group. The assignments of these properties have not been executed. If
no exemption for stamp duty is granted under the Stamp Duty Ordinance,
upon execution of the assignment of the properties, the Group will be
subject to an aggregate stamp duty of approximately HK$38.9 million.

Pledge of assets

At 31st December, 2009, the Group has pledged certain leasehold

land and buildings in Hong Kong with carrying values of HK$1,591.6
million (2008: HK$1,636.0 million), together with certain shares of the
Company's subsidiaries, to secure the banking facilities of HK$4,000
million (2008: HK$4,000 million) granted to the Group of which HK$3,350
million (2008: HK$3,000 million) has been utilised.

In addition, certain of the Group’s property, plant and equipment in the
PRC with carrying value of approximately HK$1,317.2 million (2008:
HK$1,123.6 million) have been pledged to secure loan facility in the
amount of approximately RMB330.0 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$443.4 million) (2008: HK$440.0 million).

47. Event after the reporting period

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period as at 31st December
2009, the Group’s 60% owned subsidiary, Hebei Xuyuan, on 9th and
11th February, 2010 respectively, entered into an equity interest
transfer agreement and a debt transfer agreement with [t 46 K &
HERIE AR E £ ) (“Xiantianxia”), whereby (i) Xiantianxia agreed
to transfer its 100% equity interest in 3k FUE@RBEEE S ERE A7)
(“Beijing Huitong") at a consideration of RMB100.0 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$113.7 million) and its major asset is certain percentage
of equity interest in Beiren Group and (ii) Xiantianxia agreed to transfer to
Hebei Xuyuan an account receivable of RMB246.5 million owing by Beijing
Huitong for a consideration of the same amount. Following the completion
of the aforesaid transfer of equity interest, the Group’s equity interest in
the Beiren Group has been increased to 49%.

45 RE AR

46.

BREHBARMR - NWNARFER—NIKRFE
RIVZMEERS  ETHERASKHE
NABMEE  EZSVEEEZ=SDAR
17 o fHARBEAR IR ENTEBL IR EFA R ENTERL -
AIRSEENEEZSMER - $AGNA K
#738,900,000/8 7T ENTER ©

RARY
W_EZAFE+_A=+—H K&
E # BR [ 1& /4 1,591,600,000% & ( — =
= J\ 4 : 1,636,000,000 % 7T ) L A & &
ZETHELHWREF  EBRARQAMN
BRALZETHRMHER AR EEE
% 4R 77 B & % 4,000,000,000 % T ( — =
= )\ % : 4,000,000,000% 7T ) = &3\
H 7 3,350,000,000 8 7T ( = T T )\ F ¢
3,000,000,000/7T) 28V °

RN REBIRMEEX)1,317,200,0007% 7T(—
TE )\ ¢ 1,123,600,0005% 77) 2 i A B
ME - BE&&EED A AK%390,000,0000T
(4948 E 7 443,400,000 ) (ZEE N\ 4 -
440,000,000/ ) ER B & REIEIR IR -

47 B EMA B FA

R-ZENFT_A=T—ARSHHEEE
Hi& - 7<% B 7 A 60% & < M & A =1A b
JEREAIE R TR EREBR AR (5
RTFDAIR-FE-FF-_ANAKT—H
RIS RIS R I R ERSEE BAE  RuE - )
ARTREBEREANILUERBEESER
AE(MEUER D 22 AERE - RER
A #100,000,0007T (46 #247113,700,000
BRIRETEEERRILLAREETED
bz BARREE « RUNDERTREBMIE
REEHILRERER ZEBBERARKE
246,500,0007 - RESEMEZESEMAR - ©
il AR S AR KL - ARENIEAS
B2 I =49% -
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48. Related party disclosure

48 A HRALRE

Transactions @ x5
During the year, the Group had entered into the following significant FR - AEECEHUTEEEATRE
transactions with the following related parties and connected parties: BATHETNIEARS
2009 2008
—EENF —EENF
Nature of transaction HK$’000 HK$'000
REME FET FAT
Name of related parties
EREALEE
Shanghai Joinbuy City Plaza Co. Ltd. Rental and management fee paid 180,214 174,068
(“Property JV") (note 1)
ERhERTESERAR BEREe REEE (M)
(IMxEaEBERE])
Name of connected parties
BEALTER
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Co., Ltd. Income from concessionaire sales 11,999 12,307
(“CTF Jewellery” (note 2)
AREHRERTERAR(EAXREKRE D) FETENESHE WA (FIEE2)
AXRBHRERT(EMN)ERAT] Income from concessionaire sales 1,520 -
—#MDIE (note 2)
(TARBERMIRE —FRIMN D5 D) FEETEAE S E WA (B =E2)
AXRBHRERT(EMN)ERAT] Income from concessionaire sales 2,370 2,510
— b5 E (note 2)
([AXEBEHMNHKE - EEDIE]D) FEETEAE S WA (B =E2)
Hong Kong Island Development Limited Rental, vetting fee, air-conditioning 49,245 45,203
(*Hong Kong Island”) charges and management fee paid
HEEREBRARIES]) (note 2)
BEE  EHER  EHER
EERE(M2)
Pollution & Protection Services Limited (“PPS")  Cleaning service fee paid (note 2) 3,549 11,867

BHHSREER AR ([EE)5]))

EERIREER (M52)

Notes:

m

2

Property JV is a jointly controlled entity in which the Group has 50% interest.

CTF Jewellery, ] AfR&RMNIRE — BRI S 5, BIAREIMNKE — L85

J&, Hong Kong Island and PPS are companies in which Datd Dr. Cheng Yu-
tung and Dr. Cheng Kar-shun, Henry, directors of the Company, have beneficial
interests.

At 31st December, 2009, concessionaire sales payable included amounts of
approximately HK$27,289,000 and HK$5,550,000(2008: HK$19,087,000
and HK$3,434,000) aged within 30 days due to CTF Jewellery and & A

& &R/ ZKE respectively in which related parties, Datd Dr. Cheng Yu-tung

and Dr. Cheng Kar-shun, Henry, directors of the Company, have beneficial
interests. The amount was trading in nature and related to payables arising
from concessionaire sales. These trading balances are unsecured, non-interest
bearing and repayable according to the terms of the concessionaire dealership
agreement.

(b) Compensation of key management personnel

128

The remuneration of executive directors during the year was

determined by the remuneration committee having regard to the
performance of the individuals and market. Details of which together

with the other 4 highest paid management personnel are disclosed in

note 14 above.

Lifestyle International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2009

ML -
m

(2

MEQLDERAEEEANED Z KA

EHIEE -

FARBHRE - AAREHNKE —#FMNDJE
ARBHMAKRE - LEDE - BB REHD
ERARTEFZEEBMPIE L R BRAE
IREEERENATE -

RZZBZAF+ZA=+—-B  EAEHFE
BEHEFABRERANRIORAXZN T ERBEA
TAXRBRE RAXBRMNKE 2B 5
#)27,289,0005 7T }2 5,550,000/ 7T (—ZZF
J\4F : 19,087,000% 7t & 3.434,000% 7T ) °
ARBEREEERPBLIRIRMAEB L
HEZEREnln ZEZJVEBE ST
W BT AR SH O P AL RS SRORAER -
UL EBRR A SRR IR - %8 RARETE

B han KRR -

o>

it

TREBEASHMH
FACRTEFCHE I BFIEER S
BERKRRRMISMRETE - 1KEZ M
EREHMNEESRAEREKREZ
B S FF B LR 14458 -



49. i 2MBLA#N
RZEENFRZZEENF+ZA=+—
B ARBEEMBARZFHBUOT ¢

49. Particulars of principal subsidiaries
At 31st December, 2009 and 2008, the details of the Company's principal
subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of incorporation and Issued and fully paid Attributable equity
operation share capital interest of the Group
Name of company date of incorporation BRITREMRAK AEEEGRAES  Principal activities
NFERB MR REERE AR 2009 2008 2009 2008 *EEH
AR B “EThE T\ ZEEAE _TTN\F
Ample Sun Group Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 HK$10,000 60% 60% Investment holding
AREEARAR 17th August, 2007 10,0003 T 10,000 7T BEAER
B
“RRHE\AT+H
Asia Kinetic Limited Hong Kong HK$2 HK$2 100% 100% Business of sourcing
RIRABR AT 27th February, 2002 2B T 28T products for fellow
B subsidiaries
“EE-E-F-t+H PIGEA = NGEE
EmE%
Congenial Company Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 HK$10,000,000 100% 100% General trading and
24th April, 1981 10,000,000t 10,000,000 T property holding
B —REFHRDERE
“AN—EMAZ+EA
Eastlord Development Limited Hong Kong HK$500,000 HK$500,000 100% 100% Praoperty holding and
MAEEEBRAF 21st August, 1987 500,000 ¢ 500,000/ 7T leasing
£ WEREREE
“AN\EFENAZT—A
Everwin Worldwide Limited Hong Kong HK$2 HK$2 100% 100% Property leasing
KERKERARF 17th November, 2000 2B 2B MERE
B
“TRTET—AT4A
Fine Shine Limited Hong Kong HK$2 HK$2 100% 100% License holder
BEBRATA 11th September, 2003 BT BT HREREA
B
“ET=FNAT-R
Forceworld Investments Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$500,000 HK$500,000 100% 100% Property holding
ARREBRAR 15th July, 1988 500,0007 T 500,000#7T WERA
E3
IPAVAG:S SRkl =
Future Develop Limited British Virgin Islands/ Us$3 US$3 100% 100% Investment holding
Hong Kong EEPH IER RERR
12th December, 2003
ERYEBRES/BH
“ZT=F+-ATZH
Glory Line Management Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$500,000 HK$500,000 100% 100% Provision of property
BEEEERAR 5th September, 1995 500,000 7 500,000 7T security and

BE
—“ANEEAATR

management services
REDERZRERRG
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49. Particulars of principal subsidiaries (ontinue) 49. i Z#B L AHM
Place of incorporation and Issued and fully paid Attributahle equity
operation share capital interest of the Group
Name of company date of incorporation BRITREHRK AEEESRSER  Principal activities
AEER TEMRIREEBEAR 2009 2008 2009 2008 FE£H
MR A “EERE ZZT)\F ZEShE _TT)N\F
Grand Kinetic Limited Hong Kong HK$2 HK$2 100% 100% Property holding and
BEZHRAA 7th February, 2001 BT 2B leasing
B NEREREE
“TZ-F-"A+H
Pacific Trump Development Limited Hong Kong HKS2 HK$2 100% 100% Property leasing and
TRERERAR Bth July, 1995 BETT 2B investment holding
0] MERERRERR
—AWNWEFEARA
Public Might Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 HK$1,000 100% 100% Property investment and
HEARATA 30th August, 1984 1,000 7T 1,0007T provision of building
& management Services
—AW\BENA=TA MERERRERE
EERHB
Ronson Kwok Asia Pacific Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1,000,000  HK$1,000,000 100% 100% Building management and
5th October, 1993 1,000,000t 1,000,000/ club operator
0] REEERGHEE
—AWNA=FTARA
Sogo Hong Kong Company Limited  Hong Kong HK$4,000,000  HK$4,000,000 100% 100% Retailing business
ER(BB)EEBRAF 23rd September, 1983 4,000,0008% 4,000,000/ TEER
&k
“MW\=FEhA=+=H
Superlite Limited British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 US$1 100% 100% Property holding
Hong Kong 1% (ESH MERE
3rd April, 2001
RBRMRHE BE
—ZT-FMA=A
HBANAEHER AR (Shanghai  People’s Republic of China US$12,000,000 US$12,000,000 65% B65% Retailing business
Ongoing Department 26th July, 2004 12,000,000%c  12,000,000% 7T TEXEE
Store Limited) HREARLME
ZTEMFLAZ1RA
B REEERAFM Peaple's Republic of China U5$74,990,000 US$74,990,000 100% 100% Property holding
1st December, 2006 74,990,000  74,990,000% T MERE
I AR ARE
G
BEREEEARAAN People’s Republic of China U5$74,990,000 US$74,990,000 100% 100% Property holding
12th March, 2007 74,990,000 T 74,990,000 T NERE
REARLME

“2R+E=RA+-A
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49. Particulars of principal subsidiaries (wntinues)

49. 1 BB %A #H%

Place of incorporation and Issued and fully paid Attributahle equity
operation share capital interest of the Group

Name of company date of incorporation BRTREMRAR REEMEGERAER  Principal activities

ARER HEMRIREEREAR 2009 2008 2009 2008 xEE£H%
AEMAR L B 5 “EEAE “TT)\E ZBEAEF CTT)\E

FRES (BN BRAR™ People’s Republic of China RMB600,000,000 RMB433,056,790 100%  66.8% Property holding and

Lifestyle Plaza (Suzhou) st March, 2007 AR ARE leasing

Co., Limited FEARAME 600,000,000T 433,056,7907C MEREREE

“TREE=f-H

ARBEEHN)BRAF™ People’s Republic of China US$12,000,000 US$12,000,000 100%  100% Retailing business
17th January, 2008 12,000,000  12,000,000%7T TEEK
hEARAME
ZTT)\F-At++tR

BREEEEREFERA A People’s Republic of China RMB190,328,983 N/A 100% N/A Property holding
20th June, 2006 AR A TER WERE
hEARLME 190,328,983 ¢
ZTEAFAAZTA

FliREE(KE)BRAR™ People’s Republic of China US$45,000,000 US$45,000,000 100% 100% Retailing business
S9th October, 1993 45,000,000%T  45,000,000%7T TEEH
hEARAME
—WN=F+ANA

FIEERE(RE)BRAR People’s Republic of China US$40,000,000 US$40,000,000 100% 100% Property holding

(Previously named as 7th August, 1996 40,000,000%%  40,000,000%7T WERA

KEFBRBEARAF  PEARLNE

(AIBRZFHRFEBRAAY) —ANAFENALR

FEEE(ER)ARARM™ People’s Republic of China RMB225,000,000 RMB225,000,000 100%  100% Property holding
31st December, 1995 N ARE MERA
FEARENE 225,000,000T 225,000,0007¢
—-WNAFTZA=+—H

RREFIREEERARY People’s Republic of China US$18,000,000 US$18,000,000 100% 100% Property holding
16th October, 1995 18,000,000%%  18,000,000% T NERA
FEARLNE
—NMNAEF+A+AH

a sino-foreign equity joint venture established in the PRC. PR 2 FINEGERE
a wholly foreign-owned enterprise established in the PRC. R BIRK Y 2 2INEREE

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the

reporting period.

B RRN RS SRR BTES -
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for the year ended 31 December 2009 HE—TTNF+_A=+—HILFE

50. Statement of financial position of the Company 50. % 2 G A BRI £

Statement of financial position of the Company at the end of the reporting

RIREMEEE R - ARRFHRRKBLE

period includes:

2009 2008
—EEAE —ET)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiExT FAT

Non-current asset IERBEE
Interest in subsidiaries RHTB R RHERSE 4,194 4,194

Current assets MEVEE
Other receivables Hib e zE 1,304 a0
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEURHT B~ T2k 3,612,585 3,538,689
Bank balances and cash RITEFRES 25,836 195,972
3,639,725 3,734,711
Current liabilities BAE

Other payables E At R RIE 2,941 4,859
Tax payable eI 2,926 1,194
5,867 6,053
Net current assets mENEEFE 3,633,858 3,728,658
3,638,052 3,732,852

Capital and reserves BRI
Share capital %N 8,368 8,370
Reserves s 3,629,684 3,724,482
3,638,052 3,732,852

Profit for the year ended 31st December, 2009 of the Company amounted
to approximately HK$255,570,000 (2008: HK$1,294,014,000).

Under the Company Law (2009 Revision) of the Cayman Islands, the
share premium of the Company is available for distribution or paying
dividends to shareholders subject to the provisions of its memorandum
or articles of association and provided that immediately following the
distribution of dividends, the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall
due in the ordinary course of business. The Company’s reserve available
for distribution as at 31st December, 2009 consisted of share premium
of approximately HK$1,916,411,000 (2008: HK$2,297,533,000)

and retained profits of approximately HK$1,563,664,000 (2008:
HK$1,303,336,000).

Lifestyle International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2009

HE_ZZANF+_A=Z+—HILEFE &K
A2 M4 /255,570,000 T (ZEEN
% :1,294,014,000% 7T) °

RIEFM S HS R ADE(20091E7]) » AR A
Z s E R RBEE A REGERERASA
AIZ8RE - 729K TR S E R RS M R R
o EEBEREDIRER  ARRABRED
XNERAREEBBREPEHZES - ©
“EZAFF A=+ B ARAFZA
o0 I 7 5 /R B £ 02 8 #91,916,411,00078
7L (ZZ T )\ : 2,297,533,00048 70 ) &RIR
B % A1 %71,563,664,000/8 T (Z TS\ F -
1,303,336,0007% 7T ) #5% °
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31st December,

BAADKE L
BE+-A=t+—RILEE

2009 2008 2007 2008 2005
—EENE —TTN\F —TTLE —TTRE —TTHE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAT FAT FAT FAT
(Restated)
(&31)
Turnover LEE 3,756,208 3,521,633 3,112,368 2,581,962 2,094,299
Profit attributable to owners NABIEAR AER
of the Company SEFI 1,142,468 927,226 1,024,085 740,170 539,378
Earnings per share (HK cents) SRRAFIEL)
- Basic -ER 68.5 54.5 60.2 43.7 34.7
— Diluted - 68.1 54.3 59.8 43.7 N/ATEA
Total dividends per share SR B A%
(HK cents) (7&1L) 28.0 24.0 24.0 178 15.3
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position oM BRI L
At 31st December, B+=ZA=+—H
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
—EENF —TEN\E —ETLE —EERE —ETTRE
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FAT FAT FAT FAT
Total assets BEBAE 12,301,402 10,562,218 10,434,243 6,279,003 5,629,191
Total liabilities BfEHE (5,618,395 (4,707,235) (5,216,563 (2,420,094) (2,261,998)
Total net assets BEFERE 6,683,007 5,854,983 5,217,680 3,858,909 3,367,193
Minority interests DR RS (561,538) 677,271 (560,962) (4,929 (41,255)
Total net assets attributable to PN/NSIE SN L
owners of the Company EEFELRE 6,121,469 5,177,712 4,656,718 3,853,980 3,325,938
Net assets per share (HK$) BREETE
(&) 3.99 3.50 3.06 2.28 1.99
Net assets per share attributable AR FIEA ARE(L
to owners of the Company (HK$) FREEFE
(7&7T) 3.66 3.09 2.73 2.27 1.96
Number of shares issued DT EE  1.673.620.000 1,673,965,500 1,705,083,000 1,695,936,000 1,694,000,000
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20/F., East Point Centre, 555 Hennessy Road
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Facsimile:  (852) 2831 2972
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